IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA

CHRISOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
Appellant(s),

VS.

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent(s),

Electronically Filed
May 09 2022 01:57 p.m.
Elizabeth A. Brown
Clerk of Supreme Court

Case No: A-19-800950-W
Docket No: 84643

RECORD ON APPEAL
VOLUME

ATTORNEY FOR APPELLANT
CHRISTOPHER KELLER # 81840,
PROPER PERSON

1200 PRISON RD.

LOVELOCK, NV 89419

ATTORNEY FOR RESPONDENT
STEVEN B. WOLFSON,
DISTRICT ATTORNEY

200 LEWIS AVE.

LAS VEGAS, NV 89155-2212

Docket 84643 Document 2022-14715



A-19-800950-W  Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) vs. State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

INDEX
VOLUME: PAGE NUMBER:
1 1-244

2 245 - 421



A-19-800950-W

VOL

NS ST ]

DATE

11/19/2020

5/20/2020

10/21/2020

4/26/2022

4/27/2022
5/9/2022

2/12/2020

5/9/2022

4/11/2022

11/2/2020

9/16/2020

11/19/2020
10/28/2021

10/20/2020
4/26/2022
1/5/2021
1/15/2021

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff (s)

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

INDEX

PLEADING

Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis
(Confidential)

Audiovisual Transmission Equipment
Appearance Request and Physical Presence
be Waived

Case Appeal Statement
Case Appeal Statement
Case Appeal Statement

Certification of Copy and Transmittal of
Record

Defendants Supplemental Response to
State's Response to Defendants Pro Per
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus

District Court Minutes

Finding of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Order

Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law, and
Order

Motion to Appoint Counsel, Hearing
Requested

Motion to Produce

Nevada Supreme Court Clerk's
Certificate/Remittitur Judgment - Dismissed

Notice of Appeal
Notice of Appeal (Belated)
Notice of Change of Hearing

Notice of Department Reassignment

PAGE
NUMBER :

202 -204

133 -136

150 - 151

401 - 402
403 - 404

118 - 130

405 - 421

301 - 348

152-174

142 - 145

205 - 206
280 - 284

147 - 149
398 - 400
209 - 210
213 -213



A-19-800950-W

VOL

DATE

11/5/2020

4/18/2022

9/16/2020
11/19/2020
11/19/2021
9/16/2020
1/14/2021
3/9/2021

9/5/2019

3/20/2020

9/16/2020

12/7/2020

8/26/2019

3/30/2022

11/19/2021

12/23/2021

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff (s)

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

INDEX

PLEADING

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law and Order

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact,
Conclusions of Law and Order

Notice of Hearing
Notice of Hearing
Notice of Hearing
Notice of Motion
Notice of Rescheduling of Hearing

Order Denying Defendant's Motion to
Produce

Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus

Order for Production of Inmate Christopher
Robert Keller, BAC #81840

Order for Production Via Video Conference
of Inmate Christopher Robert Keller, BAC
#81840

Order to Proceed in Forma Pauperis
(Confidential)

Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction Relief - NRS 34.735)

Request for Submission of Motion;
Telephonic Hearing Requested If Necessary

Request for Submission of Motion;
Teleconference Hearing Requested - If
Necessary

Request for Submission of Motion;
Telephonic Hearing Requested If Necessary

PAGE
NUMBER :

175 -198

349 - 397

140 - 140
199 - 199
285 - 285
141 - 141
211-212
214 - 216

67 -67

131-132

137-139

207 - 208

1-66

298 - 300

286 - 291

292 -297



A-19-800950-W

VOL

DATE

1/17/2020

1/21/2020

8/27/2021

8/27/2021

11/19/2020

9/16/2020

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff (s)

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

INDEX

PLEADING

State's Response to Defendant's Pro Per
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction)

State's Response to Defendant's Pro Per
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-
Conviction)

Transcript of Hearing Held on October 1,
2020 (Continued)

Transcript of Hearing Held on October 1,
2020 (Continuation)

Unsigned Document(s) - Order to Proceed
in Forma Pauperis (Confidential)

Unsigned Document(s) - Order

PAGE
NUMBER :

68 - 92

93 -117

217 - 244

245 - 279

200 - 201

146 - 146



B3

H%Q?QK)Q%E@ R kellen #31840 FILED

~Lovelode Correctionnl center AUG 2 6 2019 7

1200 PRISON D .
PRIZON £ kb

Lovelou , Ny S94l9
PETITIONER TN Pro S€

TN THE DisTeicr CourT
CLARK. <COMNTY , NV

s touen. R Ke\\ﬁ?\%

) Peritioner Choe NO  A-19-800950-W
S Dept. XIX

: DEPT NI

STATE oF NEVADA ,
Date of HEP(’Q—!/‘JG’ .
. R&PQNOEN\' TiME o PErANG.
E&Tmm FHR WRIT OF HABens Corpis

(FesT ~ConNVICigd RelER —~ NRs 3U.7350 1 For-m swwvmmuj

PeTiTiond
1 Keller 15 presently Tmerisovee AT LOVELOUC CORRECT GNAL
Centel, Perstling CownTy , NEVADR,

- ElGhT TSUDICAL DigTRicT COMRT TN AND For. THE
COUNTY OF ClARK. ENTERED THE TUOGMENT WODER. ATTARGIC,

ng . e - |
REC 3 0B[i0/;7 TS THE PATE OF TUDLmMENT OF CUNWICTIoN

p \RT

C\_ER\{GF U\ C-1p-32M17 i5 THE Case NUMBeR.,

5 leneTH o Sentend 15 20 o LiFE



o Keller is NOT PResesTly Spaving A SENTENCE For
A convicTion  OoTHer THen THE Coppvicriony  ANDER. ATTRO.

7. TRAFFICKING CONTROIED SWBSTANCE ¢ Feloni =N pv%hﬂ\!
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ALL CROUNDS ARE BASEDCNTHE 5T (Hop |

AMENDMENTS OF THE ()8 ConNsTITUTION.

CA)

CROUND ONE: T EGAL SENTENCE

KELLER \WAS SENTENCED TO A [Q-LIFE FER.
DRUG TRAEEIC.ING WITH A CONSECUTWNE, [O- WIFE

Fep A HABRITUAL CRIMINAL ENBANCEMENT, WHICH

WAS CHARCED AS A SEPRATE COUNT OF THE
INDICTIMENT \

(et ) T2 AME%_L\SB}(_\/Q&ME_OELSLE,\/ADA“

80 NEV 183,44 P.Aad 599, 19(do NEX. AL BX0S S 0o N38T
THE. Coups FOOND THE TRIALCOORY ERREDIN

| MPOSING A QO-MOYEAR SENTENCE FOR SALED

AAD A 1019 YEAR COMCORRENT HARITOA CRIMINAL
ENHANCEMENT, THE. COoRT RELD THATL THE PURRCSE

OF THE. HARITOAL CRIMINAL ACT WAS NGTTO.

CHARCE AND_SEERATE SUBSTANTNE CRIME, 35T
TO RPE AN AVERMENT OF FACT THATCOND AFFECT

THE PONISHMENT. CONSEQUENTLY THERE COoLD

ONLY BE CNE_SENTENCE. THERE FOR THE CONGEC -
- UTINE_SENTENCE RESENDED AS S ONIFORMLY

HELD. STATE s [3ARD MESS, SN NEV.SH H Pl 817

(1939 PEAELE v DUNLOR, [0S CAL APP O 31H,894
P 221 (s WILLIAMS S SMITH, &&WAsa&d M3

191 224 197 (1ax©)

ONDPER TIHE CONSTITUTIONS (I8 AMENDMENT

RIGHRT T0 AJSURY TRIMLAND THE DLE PPocES CLALSE
REAUI QESWCT THAT | l\lQ&EAﬁE_S_SI&IE Lpire

f
J
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REYOND _PREACRIBED STATUTERY MAXIMOM SHAND

RE SURMITTED TO A JUORY AND PRONEN [BENOND

A REASONARLE. DCOBT, HABTUAL ~APPEND va New

| 2000 U5, LEXIS R0 A WAS NOT ALLCWED IN KB ERS

CASE, THIS WOOLD OF ALZO GAVE KEUWLER THE

(HAL\LLEJ@AE@QL/ L S F1PST WO CONMCTIONS

SUOILD OF FIT OMDER CRIME SPPEE LAWS, BECARE

THEY ROCTH AROSE OOT OF THE SAME STTUATION,

WHENTWO OR MOPE CONVICTICNS ARISEOOT OF A

SINGLE ACT, TRANSERETICN. CONMCTICNS SHOOLD RE.

| COONTED ASCNE CONVICTION, RESIN ve NEVARA IHNEY.
Nlol ,50,P A 984 (19790 NEY, LEXISSI0 Na lOHTH,

CPAY ys STATE 194 NEV 10 (3c0e)
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CRASE KED ERD AS A HAR TUAL_CRIMINAY FER NS |73~

O, AT NO PONT DIS THE SIATE FiL e AN AMENDED

lNFC)BMA\ OM_CONTAINING A CHAPC—JEQF HA@\TQ&

CRINMINAL \C’PLWFHFQV%Q’THJL)D[Q}P& DISTRICT 3

NEV, 1880 (K% SHOWS TUAT STATE MUST OSE THE
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(B) GROMNDTLYO - NOT ANOWED T QUESTICN._K-9

_ABOUT DO RELIARILITY.: A DECENDANT MUST BE
 AFFCROED THE OPFORTONITY TO CHAWLENGE THE

EVIDENCE OF A DOGS REMARWNTY AND CREES EXAMIN.
THE DOG HANDLER AND INTRODXCE HIS OWN_FACTS AND

EXPERT WATTNESRES, FLODIDA Vs HARRIS B 10 33,133,590

IOFO, 8% LED L L], (8012) LEXIS QL LED DIGEST.

EVIDENCE 8320 TRIALS TRIAL 5\, KELLER NEVER

RECIEVED THAT OPPORTUNITY, TS 1S AN ORNIQUS
MISTAKE. THAT SHCOOWD ALLOW FOR OVERTURN OF

AP RESIICON,

INL KELL ERS CASE THERE WAS NO TESTEMONY

OF A DO HANDLER , NO RECORD OE K HISIORY QR

RELIARILATY_AND ORVICOSLY NO CHANCETO CROSS
EXAMINE  AWHEN COVERNMENT FAILS IO TURN

L OVER EOL. COMPLIMENT CF D06 HISTRY ,ERRCR.

1S NOT HARPMLESS | e o THOMAS T2 F. 3d 1080,
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LEXIS A8 THE STATE AT LEAST ESTARL\SHED THAT
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WAS NOT ENODSH REGUIRED Y THE HTH AMENOMENT.

1 PE SUEE LCLENTLY. RELIARLE TO PROVE PRCBABLE
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ARDMOANT PRORARLE CALSE. THE SEARCH N KLl Erg CASE

b

VIO ATED His FORTH AMENDMENT RIGHTS.

NEVADA | AW HOLDS THERE MUART ALSD RE ATEPERE

et

e

EINDINGOF EXIGENCY NALHWCEH PRECLULCES THE ROXUCE GISTANING

A WARRENT PRI T, SEARON (NG, [N KELEDS, CASE, THEY

VOIS

HAD AMPLE TIME, TO ORBTAIN A WARPENT. BECAUSE. HOUe®s AETER.

CEAPOLUNG THEY APPLIED FORONE, KELLER CONTENDS [FHAT AT

THE YERY LEAST, ANWH(N@ FCL)ND pPRioR. TO ORTAINING T

\WARRANT

ﬂmb_ﬁﬁ EXCLUDED N\WHICH WOOLD NOT GIVE THE MASIS

TRATE

_ENOOGH TO S9OE A SEARCH INARIANT.

BASED ONTHE FACT THERE WASNT ANY TESTIMONY

A DO

NT ORYANIEE OR ANY RECORD THAT ESTARIISHED The

B

RELIARITY OF THE K. (N KE1ERS CASE PRICR CAS

= ) Aw/

A ER

SUHOWS THAT 1T CANNAT RE ADDED INTO C\/IDbNQb AT A
DATE_FOR_A SDPPRESSICN NEARING. ,

ADPEAL. AND ERROR 8 EVIDENCE. (8| ONCONSITIICNALSEARCH:
A JUNCEMENT OF COMNVICOTION MUST (3, REMERSED WHERE

EVIDENCE. OBTAINED IN THE CouRal OF AN ONCONST TTUITIONAY

 SEARCH WAS ADMITTED AT THE ACCOHSED TRIAL, Us va 3L

DADSHAW

OO ELA OGN, 0.5, AP0 L EXIS 10, THE CouPT HELD THAT BECASE

CTWO OF THE AGENTD_COULD QE&A&QDED THE TRLCK. SME

NG COF

 MCONSHHNE, WHISKRY \WHILE ANCTHER CBTAINED A WARRENIT WITHODT

Sz05 &

A SIGNIFICANT LOSS OF EVIDENCE , THE SEARCH AND

THE, DEFENDANTS AT AMENDMIENT RIGHTS OF THE 0%, CONS

ardndioN

AS IS

~ ANDP_THE FINDINGS SHOOLD HAYE BEEN SOPPRESSED .
_TRUE IN THE KELLER CASE.

T BARRICE L OMIEL v NV, 113 NEYGEa, - £ad 701 (19A7 ) Sk

8




T ALTHODGH PROBARUE CAUSE EXISTED TO SUPRORT

§A SEARCH WARRENT, NO FMERGENCY _EXISTED 1O

| J USTIEY A WARRENT LESDS SEARCH, BECAE KELLERS CAR

WAS [OXED IN BY THE | /CDL&CE - CARWITH KELLER 1IN

| CUFFS INTHE BACK OF 1T,

THE ONE_HODR. STAT J,TGE}LB@RLQDQELLE&[A%-W

REV STAT 8171193 (1) SHOULD GF PROVIDED POLICE

OPRCRTONITY TO PROCIURE. A TELEPHONIC. WARRENT.

PRIOE T ANY SEARCH . (NOT AETERD

FOSTHERMOPE THE SEARCHINCIDENT TO. AERE,I_-__*_

1S LIMTED AND_RERINES FROM THE NEEDTO DISARN

_AND PREVENT THE DISTRICTIONCF EVIDENCE, ) ,Jw:a@—_;

COOLD_NOT HAVE REEN %)@&Mw ITE RELERS cap
BORED N, KELL ER WAS | MME DIATLY BOT N HANDCUFES

AND DLACED INTHE RACK AT OF ACCR CAR.. KEILER %

IO BAVE A LEGITIMATE EXPECTATICN OF PRIVALY, BEING

(ON_PRIVATE. ProesrTY N WHICH HE PR AN HOA. FEE

AND WAS PARKED DIRECTLY [INFRONT OF ATOWNHORE.

WHICH KELVER GWNED.

CROUMD FOUR « NO BRORARLE RME.EOQIED

(o) |

NERWENESS ALONE DOES NOT SUBT\FY PROZARLE

CALSE, US v SPINNER. NZ5 F 34 380, D7 US APPC
AN (200D U8 APP LEXIS U5, IN KEWERS CASE

TITIONER CONTENES BE DIONT FEEL HE \WAS NERVOLD

| NOR KAFAHE HADANYTHING TO T35 NERVOUS ABOCT . KELERHAD

2EEN P ED OVER SAVERAL TIMES [N THE IVENTH PRICRTO HB_

ARREST (PERRT HE GO THETALLIGHT RERAED) FOR A
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PROYEN TAILLAGHT ANDANGTHER. HME YLP AM UﬂSAFE uwg

CHANGE TICKET AND NEVER LAD ANY PREBLEMS WITH THEE

OFEICERS.

TS v bl TNMINGHAM , 1OH. 34 1308 (0B LS A LEXS.

(152 (198 COLO T « CAQLLQQB_DEEFNDN\!T” , (AR WS STCPPED

AND T WAS REINEVED IO CoNTAN T EGAL ALIENS. TN

KBRS (gl (OFFICER CLAIMEDTO RELIEVE T CoNTAINED

N\AQkTUANALEMAQ_LLLAN&%EA&HiNAUA N WINNINGEAV

AETER A viEag. SEpech (WWHICHE PIVEALED NOTHING) THEY -~
O RECQWED A S SNIFE. THE ConesT HELD TRE SPRESHICN OF

EVICENCE FCOND RAS, ORCPERLY SORRETTED, Uzcgo%p_ o

REASANARL T, SUEPICION WAS EXHPUSTED FOLOWING THE

VISUAL SEACH, CWIHICR [N KELLEER, CASE, TOCK Neagh( AN HAOR

OF SEARPCHING PRIOR ATHE K9 SN £ AND KELLER NEVER.

AR CONSENT T ANY SPARCH O {06 SNIEE

LN NEVADA VA STECHEN GREFNWALD IS NY ER B P34 26

(1002 NE. THERE. ARE, SIMOLARITIES TO KRIERS CAL

RECALEE THE DEFENTANT WAS PAL LED OVER BY AN

AEEICER. AND ADWISED HE WS BEINGAREATED FOR

WEOECKLESS Doy iNG, THE CHEICER WANDCIFFED AND

SEARCRED HIM BERRE, LOCRING HIM AN THE (N ACE. CAR

SAVE. AS THE CRFEICER DID\WITH KELER, ( EXCEPT KELLER

WAS SOMEHON SUERrSEDLY A ELIGHT T\hV’ PARKED WITY

e CAR BED N BY THE CETICER  anmn SRt

10




(FoFam)

1IN ERONT OF A HOME OWNED. BY KEVLER faHicy
\WAS CILICKLY ESTABSHED. ) THEN THE CEE LCER BID.

AN UNWARRENTED SEASCH OF KELWERS CAR

THE COURT IIN.CREENWALD ESTABLISHED TS
WAS A CGUISE AND ROSE, THAT VIOLATED £0TH HIR

05 CONSTUTIONAL NTAMENDMENT AND NEY CONST
ART 1 818, KEL) ER CONTENDS. THE SAME, IN_HIS CASE .

KELLER JTUST LADTHERRAKEN TAL LIGHT REPLACED.

EVIDENE PROTOS

CWBICR CAN BE SEE N EVIDENC E Bheto (BXIRITEDN
(B LOCKING AT THE GOOBLE MAR, AT THE PREVMINAR

HEARING |T_DCESNT EVEN APPEAR, (THE TOTAL

DISTANCE \WAS AS LONG AR AFCOTRALLFIEID)
RETWIEEN \WRERE THE CEFICER. CaMED KEUER

TORNED ONTO LAME , GOT INTG THE TORMING LANE

! TREN. TORMER INTA_HIS HODSING COMPLEX, TRAT
| EXCLURES TRAVELING 300 FEET IN A TURNING LANE

(T WCOWD NCT RE_ COSIIRLE. TO_CO FROM STTRPPED,
1O TURN, THEN GO ONER HD MPH_SPEED LIMLT ON LAMS_

CERRE. HAVING T SL0w TO TORN AGAIN. CALLIN.

THE SEaN COF ABUITEES FEET ) IN U5 VS SOWERS
(A0, F 34 503 (B0IQ). HS APR LEXIS 13855

SOPPRESSION IWAS \WARRENTED ANDTRECKSE

OVERTHRNED WHERE. THE CEFICER ESTIMATED

SPEED TO.CLAIM _PROBARLE. CALRE.

LS 5. VASEY._ 853 FAd T30 CIA8T) US, SHOWS How

THE DNWARRENTED &caRcH CF KELLERSVEHICLE

VIOUATES. HIR UTHAMER D MENT RIGHTS , AS 1S TRUE
11

&N ) 1= t’2::7
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(o)

N ROTH CASES, THE SEARCH OF THE VELHCLE [NCIDENT[TO
ARREST WAS NOT [IMITED TO TRE DEFENDANTDS AREA OF
IMMEDIATE ConTROL, (N KELLERS CASE CRE(CERS (BT g
TESTIEIED THEY HADTO OPEN THE PASSANGER TR [T MAKE
T BOEAIRLE. TO REACH A CANEL ON TREVERICLE. WHICH THEY
LAD TO REMOVE. To ACCES. PREPORTED RAC OF NARCHTICS)
THE EXTENDED. LENGTH OF ARREST ALLOWING FORLA I
aN1eE (55 MINUTES ) AND THE SEARCH WABRANT GASED PN
_EVIDENCE. SIEZED SHOOLD IRE [NVALD . CHIMEL N5 CALIF
A5 1S 78 .cQ“\") @%ﬁﬁb ;EQE? CL&Y%L)» ‘ /Ex:BJT"F 3
T 5 szovu\l THERE. 1S NO PROBARLE CALSE INKELERS
CASE , BECAUSE EVIDENCE Dmrtcﬁmm@ AND RO
CAMERA ECOTAGE SHOWS THERE \WWAS. NO MAR [ AN CROMBS
o 2EsIROE “ (NCTRING. INTHE VERICLE TO.CREATE SMOKE )

- NEXT TRERE WASNT ANY _EXICGENT CIRCIMSTANIES WITH
KELER HANDCUREED, HIS CAR BOKEMN [RY THE pouczggg@
CTHEN. PUT IN_THE BACK SEAT OETRhE QTP CAR . SO IN
KELLERS CASE. THERE WAS NO RLAINVIEW EXCEPTION
 BECALSE CF THE ARCNEIVENTICNED CASE, ALE0 TRERE SHOXD

HAVE REEN NO SEARCH [NCLDENT 7O ARREST ECALE
Ao AND_OFFEICER CﬁlMtDEL@&WA@B@EUN&_K_
ARREST FOR SUPRCEED. TRAFFIC \/ML},QNSLBLL_EQEf
 DRUCS THAT WeRE FooND(3 HInes AND 5] MINUTEE)
AFTED THE ARPEST., WHICH SHOWS KA ER WAS LIECALY
_ PETAINED, \WHICH (5 AN DNREASONABLE. S6ITORE, AND
19 A VAT ION OF KELLERS NTH ETHy [N CONSTITURT IONR-

RIGHTS. AL@Q_D;ME:D _D_QE,_ERQ_QES%_EE_C&%E THERE

iV
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A WWASNT ANY. AUTOMORILE. EXCERTION APP 0 ARLE.

TN NEV AR JACOR HaRNISCH 13 NEY. QH,93| pbd,

132, (997D NEY. THERE ABE. TWWO ARGUMENTS THAT

O AN BE MADE. Foyr. IREL ER.FROM THE CNE CASE.

(CENTHER W CHAROOLD T3E VIOLAT IONS UNDER. -

CORPTILASE FROTECTICN FS NTHAMENDMENT RI1GHT,

[BECAUSE. EITHER THE VELHQLE IN KELL ERS CASE,

WAS ONDER THE. CORT 1L AGE OF THE HOOSE AND

THEDE SHOLD HAVE REEN AWARRENT PRIOR TO Tite
SEARCH INSTEADQF ASTER THE SEARCH WHICH HAFPENED

IN RELLERS CASE, FTHE CAR WASNT UNDER THE

CILRTLACE OF THE HoOSE. AND ThE PICGY [2ACK

\WARRENT, SHOOLR NOT BANE, REEN EXTENDED 1O

|
|

THE WCCEE.

LN KELLERS CASE THE ENVIOENCE CLEARLY SHOWS

EMHB
TS THE CAR. OIPECTLY. 1% FEET FROM THE

| ‘fff%om DOOR_COF THE Town HOOTE. OWNED (3Y

KELLER (ON PRIWRATE. PROPERTY OF A COMPE X

O\NHERE BE CAM A HOME OWNERS ASSOCIATION.

(EXRLBITFIEVIDENCE PHOTOS CLEARIN. SHOW

TRE CAR PARKED WITH THE KEYS ALREAQY

CINCTHE TRUNKE. OF THE CAR BY THE TIME COS

| (‘C)MFR@MTED KEVILER.,

THE DAAIN KELL ERD CASE Al 80) ARGOEDTHI]

KFL)_FR WAR TRYING TO GET INTO THE HOD3E , AS AN

ARGHOMENT FORAHY THE, P1GGEY BACK \/\/AIZE): NT

SHLD R ALOWED . (exisiT=¥)

i

13
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(1o OFE%B)

I

KEVLERS CASE 1T \WAS PROMEN THERE WAS NG

D

VIARITUANA SMOKE CR MARISOANA, Y THE EACT THAT

'l

NONE

WAS FoonD N THE CAR (NOR WAS ANY PARAPHE NALIA O

inN\éf

THING ELaE T CREATE. THE SMELD WAS IN ANY CF THE

E\/&DLNTE

PSS CR INY ENTORY, CWHICH SHOWS THERE. w;se) NOTHY N@m, 7

THE NP OEFICER ON THE SCENE (HENRY % e

t:><\ DJF:I-S

ES(ISMC

ESTIELED THAT HE DIDNT 82 ANY AND HE WAS ONT
N COORLE MINUTES ASTER | OFEZS EIRST CONTAAT W [TH

CELLED,

THERE (S NOWAY THAT |E MARISANA WAD SMORED

L;N KELLERS

A0 PRIOR TO THE LAST TRAVE] FTHAT THE SMELL WO

HAVE.

 INCERED. LONG EACGH FOP. THE. FIRST CEEICER T0 HAYE

I .
SMELLED IT _SIRONGLY . ARND COOLD MAGICALLY DS PATE. (N

THE NEXT < MINOTES \WHEN THE SECOND QEEICER A

|
RIVED.

( KEILER CONTENDS NO-ONE HAS EVER SJMQKI:D MAR KT

AR N

KIS CAR)

FACT 1S TS AM ORVIGUS LB ON C:r E lcléi—l LCPE?_‘:”

PAST.

MARK ROBEET HOWE. VS NEVADA & nev Lsa Qllo PI

1153

( (990D SVCLESSFOLLY ARSLES UNDER VICLATION OF Tk

& LFH

N SET

AMENDMENT AS DOER KELLFR |, BECAGE APRETLATE. C
HELD THE ORCR OF MARISUANA 1S INSUPELCENT

CIRCOMSTANCES TC AUTTHORIZE A DEARCH ‘W LTHOUT Ala

ARRANT

AND THAT EVIDENCE. SENZERD SHOOUD RE ACPRRESED.

AND HIM

ORICOSLY N RELLERS CasE \MITH (IS CAR RrwWED )

CUEEED IN THE RACK. OF THE EOL\CE, CAP. TRERE Yo NOCH,

PMNCE O

EXIGENCY, LIKE EVIDENCE REING DESROYED, EOAT THE

1 \VERY

| EAST ANY THING SUSPECT ORCF ANY EVIDENCE VALLE,

SUPRCSEDLY. FOOND ON KEI ER CR IN THE \VVERICLE [RERCH

c.THE

14
T




LINARRBNT, SHAID BF SOPRESSED UNIFR THE WP AMENOMENT

TIECAL SEAY AND SERUDE CLALRE,

KEILER NEVER CAVE CECICERS RPERMISHICN TOE

THROOAH HiS WALLETT EITHER KENER onilyY PEUESTED T

COEAYTD) HHS ( AWNER ,Q\z@i HE FEIT HE WAS REING
HARRASED BECALEE. C}E"THE IMMEDIATE, PAT WIN,

NON BT INE QUESTTION QJ&AMMMMDMM

, \ WEILERR -"'CﬁﬁdDJA&LLETTJLﬂHQ} 2 POES
OF AN THING DRED T EET THE WARRENT. (BECAURE, \T s

CRTAWED WITH [IES) 1T SHAD BE INVALIDATED AMD

EVIDENCE SOPRCSEDLY FOEnD AS A BT &0 &8

SUPRESSED.

%‘\G‘:‘Tﬁ"(p

M

) KE) ER CONTENDS TRAT THE CEFICERS ClaiM OF

PORNT MARISOANA DD NOT G\E Rm% CARETD
CEARCH YO TRE ROUINT OF REEAKING OFF WS &aERNY.IN US

va NEILSEN 9. F3d 1187 (lag) U8 AFPLEXIS 303 ANDOS

VS \NALG A0S F 2 GO0, NO BRORANR E CACHE, BEXISTEDR EVEN TO

SEARCH THE TRONK WEERE 0 (06 SMELLED BURNT NARC-

~OT1C0% NARGHTICS WERE CLA MEDTO RE FCOND RIGHT

AROUT E25-58 IMINUTES 13807 WASNT EXECUTED UNTIL (16

(1R #8) (AlMosT 3 houes)
KELLER. ALSO SHOWS CEFICERS, OID NOTHAVE A

REASONARIE S 2P \CN T BERFCRIML A BAT DOWN

[RECABE OFEICERS O AN WEL ER WIAEE RACCIE. CLOTHING.

(THE 15 ANOTHER AWE O OEEICER LOBES L NG LISTOE LIES.)

THE LhocE SHIPT AND 306X 20 PANTIN\AERE ACTUMN LY TIEH)

FT]T NG AATHE ARPEST PHETO SHOWS AND THE OFF)(‘EE

dIE

IJ

OVER



_ | 1A
WOLLD NOT BAVE ConNE IN_KEL ERS BCCRET AND FAUND MOMEY

HE D350 AS EACTIAL FENDATION FRTHE [SYEANCE OF THE
EVENTUAL SEARCH WARRANT , [E HE (HADNGT (ONE Thk
AT 0w ON KEN BB \HICH KELLER NEVER CGAVETHE
CFE\CER PERMISEION TO GO INTD RIS RCRET T RETRIEVE
| S LoD, KL 22 TUST SEATED ORNeCT PELTWAS HEWALET

CAND YES 1S LD WWAS IN [T 1S v GLENN 18 F2d 104

(1oed> 1S, APP LEXIS QOSER BEVEN T

PDOBARLE. CASE TR THE ARREST y KELLERS HTH

AMENDMENT RIGHTS WIERE VICHATED [AECHIE THECTEIAER

FALLED TO CRTAIN A WARRANT PR ICER TCTHE SEARCH oY

WATEANAE3 (8 A1 M L ED &d AR, ST 850

(EDICROUND FINE? EXTENDED STCE VL) AN CF MNes 12113 @

1S THE THE SOEMARIO ATESTARLE.  \WHERETHE WH s Bt

MAY ALLOWED DETAINMENT TUME (D (CHED WITHOIT AN

ppEsT 2 KEILLER ASRERTS THERE WASNO FRORARI E CAIS

T6) SUSITLEY ARAMDINING CPFI0EES CLA) MED TRAFFAC. SToR

AD CREATE. A NEW 8521 RE, BECASE THERE WAS NO

EELL R IMARITUANA AR MARITOANA RESIDUE FV (DENCE

PHETOS Spruf THERE 1S NO (CFFICER CLAMED ERFER SIZE.)

MARAIT UANA CRUMEES AND BVIDENCE L0 OF KeIERS

Degeon)  SHOWS THERE 15 NoTHinG TO CRERTE Fr

MARITUANG SMELl OB Srioke TR Ahe \/E_hi\g\_é__._,,_%

i A_?EYE-&GRH?\A,.@&@NU




(3cF ?B)

KELL ER \wiAg, DETA) MED AT 0985 AND IS VEMCLE \WAS

| SEARCHED UNTIL A MARRANT \WAS APPLIED FOR AT

CERlp, THREE Hoea AND 3 MINUTES LATER.(MIND

YO KELL ER HAD ASKED 10 SEEARTOA | AWNYEER.

| MOMENTS, INTO THE ENCOONTER) L

(NS Ve STEPHEN DIGIGYANNL PO F.2d Had

(A0 DS APP 1 EXIS 15220 THE. CASE SRowS HoW

I KELLERS CAeE THERE \§ A U™ AMENDMENT

VIOLATION ! THE OFEICER FAILED Tt DIV AEERTLY

PERLDE THE PORPCRE OF THIE TRAEELC. S TOR AND

EMBLRKED ONA SOSTANED COUReE OF

INVESTLEATION INTOTHE PRESENCE OF TRUEGS

N THE CAR N\A/HCH CONSUTURED THE, RO CE

TIE ENCOUNTER. | BETWEEN THE OFFLCER T1E

hl—Fj NOANT AND THE DELAY \WWAS DEEFINATLY.

\CT DE M NLMIUS .,

1N Kt:L ERS cpai THE OWIQEQ NENER

ATTEMPTED THE PROSECOTION OF THE CLAINED

Xt ]

)N TRAFF L svee” (N ODOOSLE 5 AW YOMING S

(WY 8351 P d Hal, (900 WHO LEXIS 7. THE

= DEEENDANT WAS \DFTA\N\:"D AND SORC

PEPGUNRG v’x‘\fl\\D@ f

T PERSSTANT QUESTI0N mc AWA NG K

SNIFE ALTHOOT EVER ATTEMPTING Toxﬁsor;
A TVCKET A 1R IN KELLERS CASE. USVaRIAIR

A E 34 RO (acos) OFFICER. D NOT HAVE.

REAZTCM ARLE. SOSPICION, LIKE IN KEUFRS

CASE., ( BECALAE THEPE WA NG MARIDUANA SMELL

17
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Q! oF 23)

LikE 1IN NEVADA Vs ZECKMAN 1899 NEV HR) | 3005

/

2 3d

19 (2013) NEV LEXIS (0 A \KEL AS LEWISNS £

SPERRS

(26 FED APR &G (ﬁon? USAPP LEXIS Jom%

VIS VS

COMMONWEALTH (01l k) HBY. SW. 2d J98,

e ER WAS COREED RIGHT AWAY RUT OFFEIC

R SALD

HE \WAS NOT LNDER ARREST FOR TRAEFIC\ACLAT)

NS RUST

R, THE NARCOTICS \WHICH THE DIDNT FID Lf

2 HACURS AND 5)

MINOTES LATER . TIHS (8 DEF

L
TINATLY

NGT A DE MINIMUOS TELAY . AND 15 AN 1L EGAL
S ZORE, Vol ATch OF NBS 171193 ) ~

IN 59 Ve DeRTe 199 E234.193,199 08 AP (EDXD
SEENO AND ApIZONA s JOUNSON K59 (5393, 330 1509
CT 781,179 FED &d (a4 STOES TOLERARIE DURAT ON
AN 217 URES MISSION . THAT 150 ADDRESS THE
R ARELC \MOLATION THAT WARRANTED THE STeg

N KEL ERS CASE NGO TRAEEIC VIGLATIONS i oC
| SSOED, WHLCH SHRCOD [NVALIVDATE THEMIIRALE
=n AN ER. CAGTHORITY FOR THE SEITORE BNDS
\WHEN TASKS TIED TO THE TRAFEIC. INEEACT NS
ADE OR REASONABRLY SHOOLD HAVE REEN COMPLETEN )

THE UTHAMENSMENT ] \/\A\( TOLERATE C‘ERTAW\I
UONRELATED |NVESTIGATIONS " THAL DO Mot | ENETiEN
THE DETENTIOMN. CAREVTESR S U8 Ay U HOS13S
QCT.e3) 1O\ ED SHA ATRAFEIC STOP BEOﬁMF%

PN L AWELL LFE T 1D PROY ONGED REMCND THE TiME

REASONARLY REQOIPED TOCCMPUETE THE MISDION ;

ISSUEING A TIorKET. AT 807,120 HCT §H, 1O LED O SN
18




(oors8)

L THE 8CoPE OF ACTIVITIES DURING AN
u INMESTIGATCRY. DETENTION MULST REASONABLY
f RE RELATED IO THE_CIRCUMSTANCES THAT.
il IN [T LALLY _JDSTIED THE STOR AND RE._RRIEE,

Cr:j EREUND 81 DESTROY EP.OR | 0T EVIDENCE .

L CALCOMST.ART. 1 & 289 " TRISHIN ENIDENCE”

— JRoytssoN.AmmDMENT NTH LA REIEVANT BEVIDENCE

L BBALNOT BE EXCLUDED 1IN ANY. CRIMINAL PRCEDORE.

| EVIDENCE_ERRCR SUCH ASTHE LOST BODY CAMERR

L EoeTAGE, |IN KENLERS CASE, CREATES A FEDERAL

| CONSTITOTICNAL CLAIM, TN ETTHER THE (0 AMnDMT

- _._.*;4,.CDMEULS>OQ\LF)EC1?3:5%:(: CONFRENTATION CLAUZES OR.
TRE W AMENDIVMENT _DLE PROCEED CLAaE . {DUE

Pm&a@na&gxawu NE: ENIDENCE.)

[ N

KB ) KELER MAINTAINS HE COOlD NOT RECIEVE A
F’HR, TRIAL WITHCOT THE BODY CAMERA FOOTAGE
o mm YPOWS THERE \WAS NG IMARISOANA, THE

FEMALE. COMING AND ASKING FOR HER. PURSE CLTT
oF TRe eap (BExipr®D) (TMPLICATES HER NOT
WELL ERDAND OLTIMAT LY. PROVES A COMPUETE
I DIFFERENT SENARIO THEN OFFICER \OPEZ
. EsTiEEDTeO, FRANLIN vs HENRY (qHaiR 1997)
18R P3N0, 1A | RBODY CAMIERA FOOTAGE 1S

O AVAILARLE (T WOULD SHOW SOPPRESION & WASRENTED

_AND TRE FACT THAT A FEMALE ASRED FOR WER PUBSE

| OUT CFTHE AR, AND THE ONIY_PUBSE WAS THE ONE
, I.A_ 19

H T T eNED




(10F X )
WATH ALL TRE NARCATICS FOOND INAT, PROVES REASCNABLE
DOORT AT WADS NGT KELLERS, ONCE SHEASKED TOGETY HeR

PUPSE T OF THE OAR, AND THE CFEICER SiA D_HE_\&LLLQD_...
GET |7 T HER  EHE WA%T HEN ONWILL NG TO TELL e

OFFICER N\NRAY COLNR HER PORSE \WAZ,, [T | T\

AATHE

ONLY PORSE INTHE VERCLE (ASMAL CLUTCH TYE

>E>PUEf;E

TEAT _CONTAINED ALl CfF THE NARCOTICD.

THE FACT THAT RELLEFRS ATTORNEY FANES

EMPHASIZE THE 188DE OF SCMEANE BV SE CLAWM|

THE

Pupal Q1 EAR) Y SHOWS COONCELR INEFFECT IV

.

THE BORY CAMER A FECOTAGE. WU NOT OMY BN

A

\ESS,

AL OFFICER L OFEZ2AAES T WO D BANE CLE

ALY @

0y Ok

EXYPOSED ALLTHE OTHER PROCEDURE VIOLATIONS .

FERALANT TO RRANY A STATE MUST PROVIDE. Al

)

Z\IDENCE, FAVCRARLE TO THE DEFENSE WHEN I 1

C

—

EVIDENCE. 18 MATERIAL _ CR 1T PROVIDES GRONN

DEREG =

THE DEEENSE TO IMPEACH OR DISCRENT THE CRENE

OF A STATE WITANESS . OR RO STER THE DEFENSE]C

LN KEL £ CASE TRE, IZODY CAMERA FOOCTAGE

HATY
ASE. .

IS AL

OF THE ARWE., EVTHER (INTENTIONANY R NAT (QWHIC!
UNLWVELY WITH KENERS RECEATED REQUEST FRO

AT MY HEARINGS PRICR TONRDAYS AND AFTERTHE 1
CAMERA ECGTAGE, OF CPFICES WENRY PP EXHIRIT|

SROWS PAD FATH AND THAT VIDED EVIDENCE 161

(B GROOND SEVEN: EALSE TESTIMONY o
N KELLERS CASE THE OFFICER. DECLARED ONE 81(

20




T

SEE ﬁlﬂ%‘l’%{’d’-‘r

(m@ﬂ*ﬂz) THAT WATH THE DA S HELP EVCL/ED TuRy el

T THE S0RESSION HEARING AND DLTIMATEY TO TR

| FIRMEST STATE W[TH FETARLISH | ANS AT THE TRIAL iF

YOO LOOK FROMTRE (UL RERET TOTHE T8 1AL TEST -

| -AMONY, Yoo CANORVICOSEY SEETHE(NT S0 20mm£)

| CHANCESTE REST FIT CRRE LAW T AL (el FOR THE

OFPICERS TLLECEAL SEARCH ANDSEIZURE, ThE CHANGS WA ey

120 CRVICHS, IN THE L SE0 TICNS EANCE. THAT 458 15

NOWAYTHE PERSORY WOID NI RENSTICED XY

THEDAL T CHANC;E TO IPECTIN MEEY THE SSTATES,

CRITERIA, LT LEADS ANY PECeoN] A TH NCRIVAL REACONING

L TORELIENE ANITHOUT A L)R“‘ THEAFICERS TEXT] -

L MONY HAD REEN AARRED [ M: (CREOLTING

1T ENSIBE HIS EVIDENCE WD NOT BE SOPRESSE
| AND THE CASE. REING DISMISSED.

TRE.CRVICDONESS OF OFF(cR LOPEZS LIES AND

| KELEPS ATERNG FALURE TORSECT OR FUSH R

IMPEACRIMENT SHOWS (2 ATENT INAFFECTNE CCONSEL

INE2ROWN o WAINARIGHT, DUGGER AND SMITR OF

FLORIDA MRB EAd, INST (L %q) s APP 1 BXIQ QRICS

 THECCOPT PRVERZED TRE DENIAL OFTHE, DEFFI\IDANI%

| FEYITION. FOR WRIT OF HAREAS CORELS. AND DIPECIED

THE WRIT PE. CRANTED [PECAUSE THE STATE KANOWINGLY

_ALOWD MATERIAL FALZE, TESTIMONY AND EX P OVTER

FALSE TETTIMONY THAT \AAS THE KEYSTONE. OF THE

_ OIAEDS QA‘QE«,\TW LIKE N KELERRCASE NOT ONLY

wpﬁ AHE O CERS TESTINONY. CHANGEDT 1(3 Ce\ENT

21 ONED =
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SOPRESSION OF FRIMTR o THE SEARCH [T MO TIAE

DAL TESUFED THAT INCONCLUISNE DA RES(1LTS ONL A,

GUN_ E2OND WITR THE NARCOTICA HAD DINA FROM A IMAN,

AND T HAD T BE REWERS FCAA HE WASYTHE ONLY

MIAN THERE C LIE 1T WAS O 1@3‘1@ IRAKE v LA BCRTINO

E21 E20330 (300 S APPLEXIS |5 BECATE THE

STATE WNCOWIMGLY CAED FALSE. TERTIMONY THECCIRT

CRANTED PETITICNERS \WRIT OF HARBELSCCPR S AND

ORDERED TiHE INMATE RELEASE D ONCESS THE

STATE PROVIDED HIM ANEW TRIAL WITHNADDAYS

KELLER T Hhe ConNEEl AND ACNERNTED THE DA

AROUT THE GFFEICERS STeRY CHANCES  DE BRocesi 1S

VIoLATED L F THERPE 15 LIt eYRaoD FALSETESTIMCeNY QoD

MAVE AFTECTED THE SUNEEMENT OF THE SURY SUCH

PURDERY WHEATHER ENCC RACED @Y THE PR TOE CF

| e cURING SWTHCOOT FHS KNOWLEDES YNE PRCCESD |9 [N-

- EVITARLEY OERNVED THE ACC OSED. QU,\LY \& SVRE 9B NEV.

%l—ﬁm DO W (194770 NEY, LEXIS 8A3

€2Y;

CROND EY Gm LNAFT?CY VE ASSESTANCE CF CONREL,

ALY KEN eSS PREVIOUE CIRONED SROWS QoS ELL.

FRAZEL® INAFEECTINNESS FOR NST RABING THE \S80ES

WHICH KElLER AD RELAYED 70O i, PRICR TQ THE SOPRESAION

HEARING: THEN HE WAS EXTREMELY INAFCECTINIZ FOR. NOT

APPEAL (NG [T WHEN “THAT We AL THAT KELLER RAD ASKED

HIM TO DO, 1S SAIDLING OF THE SU P‘RL% N HepeiNg UsiNG

LOCDING GasE LAWS . AND TELLING KEULER MF e TesTieled AT

THE SUpResaieN HEARING IS PRICE FELONIES WONLD PE LD ACAINST

22
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HIM AT TRIAL THE, CAUEED AN I 16 GETWEEN KELLER AND.
FRIZEN ON T0R OF THE FACT. ARIZEN MCOUNNT_USE ANGTHER

'_U\X\LLfiF (CATOR L THE INVESTIGATOR TOLD KENLER HE KNEW RIS
STEPEATHER AND TCLDKEI ER.BIS LWWAJ

' MOTHER AND'S
MAREN Pises OF wWork” STAPTING A RIG CONFLCT CE

_INTEREST AFTER EINDINGCUT THE (INVESTIGATR (LSE T
OWORE SWITH KELERS PARENTS AND THERE WASCIENINUELY

SOME BHESEN THE INVESTICATRS PART.

KELLER ALSOBAS Ammusmj—:umccev‘ﬁ@@__,_

%PQAQTJCLC&C)N (HS, ACONSELS ORT, EPYz 21 NEVER VISITED
(eaa D ExcreT Frp ASTER KELLER EAD Ko A DIEEERENT

L awER, (AND THEN ONLY TO COMBLAN ABQT AT HE
I NEVER SURROEMAED AN OE KELERS WITTNESSES, NEVER
| AERED TR THE TESTIMONY. OF THE D6 HANDLER O K9G
L RECORS, NOGUESTION NG AS CEHGN I ITSMELED CF
I MARISUANA WOLID THERS fE ARETOSMEN CTHER

; JSUANA A
| NARCCTCS NOT_ DETECTIELE. [ACTHE LA _NCEE, OVER
SMELLCE MARISCANA THE FIRST .

___ COFPICER CralNMED (BMELLOF MARISOANA DCES NCT

o I__CS)UJQV&L\(_DbA@A)b) FACT 19 KEWER HAD NgamekiINg
* PARABHENALIA (N THE CAR. AND IFTHE CAR OO SMEILELD

_ 'sFEOM SOMETTIME BRICR, I T WO SN BAVE SMELLED TWO.
MINUTES I aee WHEN THE NeXT QR ELCER ARRINED, AND HiE

+
1 TESTIRIED HE NEVER SEEN CR SMELLED ANYTHING (Bxigir#5)
T RIZELL NEVER REAVED KELLERS MENTAL. REALTH BISTORY

e QEJHEL}YM KELL E2 MRS ON ANDCFE DIFFERENT
. LMEDICATIONS. QJEMELI&EEEEJE%PEQEE&‘:‘»L_“_,_,_W_
}L e -23— -




e e 80
)< LLLLJ% HAD l~u PED A PRINVATE ATTCRNSY  UNDER IS

_L_l PRESSION. THE CONSTITUTION - GAVE M. THE RIGHT 0

AN ATTORMEY CF HISOWN CHOSAING FeR HIS TRIAL, - XOT

| 419 EAMUILY. DIDNT. NAVE. THE (S n0e 10 BAY FOR CNE
| ONTIL APPROOMATLY AMONTH [REFORE Tht TRIALIATE .

QUT TRE. PRocecOTION CLAIMEDIT- WAS A SIAL TACTIC,,
AND THE JUDES DEMNIEDME THE ASSIETANCE OF ATTGRNEY.

Ay FELICIANG. (exiair™ 1S) IRECAUSE SHE HAD TUST COT

My FLLE THAT DAY Fren FRIZEN L AND THE SUDGE SAMD

HE WQJLW_QEDEEA_QQ\ TINOANCE T@ Ht:p LT DR

A T]QL&LJNQ DA}&S,TH o \z\ZPr.“ /A Fol N%Y ANDTHE TP_AL

COMMENCED DN MOMEAY.

KEL L ER IS ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENMTOARY HEARING

TO SHOW INAFEECTIVE COONSEY .« AT TEIAL COONSEL

DIDMNT ORIECT 10 THE FACT KELL SRS BN ICUS FEL;\M VES

WERE NCT_ T D 10 THE OB AND THAT THEY WERE

O TORE DEED T ADSUNCATE KELLER ASA HABIUML

AT SENTENCING , NCR Wi Kell rRR ALYOWED A HEARINGS

10 ARGUE MIT LAT NGy FACTORS By DIENCE OR WITTNESS

STATEMENTS J&DFTFEMINING WHEATIHEE OR NOT 1O

DIeMISS KELLESS, OASE,

T WAS PANEOLLY CRVICLE THAT FRIZELL DID NST
HAVE KELFRS REST INTEREST AT HEART AND DIDTHE

| BADE. MINIMUM AN KELL SRS, GEHALE, FRIZELL L1ED TO

KELLER Y TE) L ING HIMTHAT (£ HE TOCK A PLEARARGAIN

ME SADUD IBE CAVING UP HIS RIGHT TO ARPEAL HIS

| SLPRESSION HEARINGY,

24
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ExleiT™Ib)  COUNSEL FALLED T SUBRCENA OR EVEN RETLEN CALLE,

OF WITNESSES, HE EVEN TOD ONE WITNESS TUAT WAS
AT THE TRIALTO COQUTHINE AND NEVER TOLD HRER SHE
A0UD, HAE T SIT QUTHIDE. THE CORTROM FeR.
_SEVERAL HOUES AND SHE HADTO LEAVE TOEOTA WoRY,
%CI“OEQE__SHE ENER CfT THE CHHN£ O TESNEY,

, SB:HS_CN,_&AA_QL.EE\AA\F AT 'w; SENALTY PHAZE
L THEIR. TESTEMONIES WCOLD HAVE SHONN THAT KELLER.
l HAD_STRCNG FAMIN. AND COMIMIONATY EOPROST T
WD RAVE. BROVED THAT KELLER 1S N THE MENACE.
| THE STATE WANTED THE CCOET O BELIENE, 180T ORERY
L LovED BY B FANMINY, COMPMONITY. AND FRIENTS, Dis -
| PELLING THE PRCEECUTORS LIES AND BAOTHE CHAWCE
|10 CHANGE THE QISTCOME. OF KELLERS SENTENSE NEVVS
o RITRICH POWELL 188 NEY_ 115, 138 P 3d N3, caoﬂgl__ﬁ,
L NEV LIS P NEY, ADV, RED. (£ NO NEs(sd. REASCNARLE.
| CROBABILITY. THAT THE SURY WoLLD HAVE REACHER A
| DIEFERENT RESUT HADTHE WITNESES TESTIFED 1o
NAFFECTIVE COUNSEL, WHEN FRIZELL FANED T AERLETIY
INVESTIGATE. AND ECCROENA TESTIMONY. FRM WITNERES,
THAI WOCLD HAVE SCPRUETED KELLFRS INNCCENSE 1S A
. (Y AMENDMENT \ VIOLATION, WHIEN INAFFECTIVE COMEEL .
fA\\,%_D A0 MAKE PRETRIAL INVESTIGATON. -
_KEL Eps \WITNESSES WoOLD OF TESTIFIED TRAT

._W-_-._&mczx:-xbg_taxﬂm READED INTHE Teowhl h@b%é @V\ZMED
¢BY~HELL£R AND THAT PRIGE T2 WY L AST TRAVE

,;; . S T S ——




0o

JDTT_ SWITCHAED VERICLES WITH HIM. ANCTHER. \WTvess Wb

[|OF TESTIFIED KELLER WAS LIVING WITH HER AT ThE
I TIME_CF THE  ARRESY, THID SHOWS HOW INAFFECTIVE

CoOUNSEL. WAS FOPR NOT EMPERSIZ ING THAT A FEMALE

CAME. (P TI0 THE OFF ) CERS, AND ASKING FORTHE PURSE.

THE NAPCCTICS WERE FOOND [N A1ed CQUNEEL ot
AN E QUESTIONED THE CER | CER USING A BCRING PHROIOCE THE FEMALE

TO BSTARLISH THAT THIS IWAS THE WOMAN THAT ASVEDTO CET HER PURSE.

CUT OF THE, CAR NCTE SHE. [WASCHARCED WITH TRAFFE IING METHAMPHETIMN
AND_BERION 1568 THAN A WEBK AFTER [E11 EPS ARRIEST WISICH SHONS

TOE STRONG PROBARINTY THE LRUGS [N THE POREE IN KELERSCAR

| \NA&MLKELLE@S_, %LH@JDIH@MINE&&E%MLUM%I_AI@‘J@M

FACT

COLNEE] A&MDWM&M@EAN&

[T DORING THE Seaett AND LEFT T QP@MMM@_GL&@

TOTHE INTE “P(0P OF THE \iERICLE , WHIH A EPTED T &E{E!CU&‘TQ CHECI,

THE, GLOVE X Soereseny

THE K9 ENTERING TRE INTERICR OF THE CAR ISA CONSTITUTIONAY,,

ViCt ATION ESTARUGHED [N MANY CASE | AWS A0 QINSEL CONCEDED THAT

[RUGS WERE FOOND N ONE IR, BEAEE THE KT WAS SUMMONED AT

Ve Cap

BYACTLY ONE HOR W CH THE CREICEPS CLAIM KELLER WAS UNDER NREST

AT THAT POINTT OMDERTHE. HoiR ALLOWED PER NRS 7,123 BT
NOTHIN WAS FCEIND (ONTTS S H 0 WHEN Ths OFFI1060S

ACD)LED T0 THE. SEARCH WARBENT, 3 HOOES AND 3L MINITES
AFTER KELLER \WAS FIRST PETAINED (EXIBIT#S) THE

OFEICERS TESTHFED 10 THS, fATT WEM_QLJALLELCD_

1ESTIVIONY AS TOTTHE 9
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VERIFICATION

Under penalty of perjury, the undersigned declares that he
is the petitioner named in the foregoing petition and knows the
contents thereof; that the pleading is true of his own
knowledge, except as to those matters stated on information and
belief, and as to such matters he believes them to be true.

L / m 5
(Nesstovbae K. Kelltn 8 C/690
Lovelock Correctional Center

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

CZ/CZ’S/Q?%%¢£ /2'4%225? hereby certify,pursuant to

N.R. C P. 5(b), that on this day of the month of

mG@é%- of the year 20/7, I mailed a true and correct
copy of the foregoing PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS
addressed to:

Warden Bﬂ KE{L

Lovelock Correctional Center ‘i\\\

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada

AN
C ﬁﬁ@bk>§%£5) R
Nevada Attorney General W”?MED pﬂ '”wlz
100 No. Carson Street L wetks piok Doe

Carson City, Nevada 89701-4717 hTO Cowkt 'NoT | 5lg

" AS REecipirn Gl
Bavid-Reser Sreyen &, VWO o] / Hegenrs (J;ﬂ/wt{
Clark County District Attorney
P.O. Box 552211
Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2211

Steved Ceceen (o e Mw\

200 Leawns Ave.3™ Houwr 77 sl Tl
(,/‘}6 I/ECM”?/ N/ 8? 165166 Tovelock Correctlonal Center

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, Nevada 89419

Petitioner In Pro Se
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Corrections (NDC); as to COUNT 2 - LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a
MINIMUM parole eligibility AFTER TEN (10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections
(NDC); COUNT 2 CONCURRENT with COUNT 1 ; as to COUNT 3 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE
(12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC); COUNT 3 CONCURRENT with COUNT 2; as to COUNT 4 - to a MINIMUM of
TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the Nevada
Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 3 CONCURRENT with COUNT 3; as to COUNT 5 -to a
MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 5 CONCURRENT with COUNT 4; as to COUNT
6 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48) MONTHS in
the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 6 CONCURRENT with COUNT 5; as to
COUNT 7 - to a MINIMUM of TWELVE (12) MONTHS and a MAXIMUM of FORTY-EIGHT (48)
MONTHS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 7 CONCURRENT with ——__

.45 to COUNT 8 - Defendant SENTENCED UNDER THE [WA\_E\
STATUTE to LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a MINIMUM parole
eligibility AFTER TEN (10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC); COUNT 8 )
ON TIVE to COUNTS 1, 2,3,4,5, 6, and 7, COUNT 9 - Defendant SENTENCED UNDER THE
ARGE HABITUAL CRIMINAL STATUTE to LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC)
with a MINIMUM parole eligibility AFTER TEN (10) YEARS in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC); COUNT 9 CONCURRENT with COUNT 8; for a TOTAL AGGREGATE
SENTENCE of LIFE in the Nevada Department of Corrections with a MINIMUM parole eligibility of
TWENTY (20) YEARS in the Nevada Department of Corrections; with FIVE HUNDRED FIFTY-NINE
(559) DAYS credit for time served. FURTHER ORDERED, $150.00 DNA Analysis fee including
testing to determine genetic markers, WAIVED as previously ordered.

C-16-312717-1

NDC
CLERK'S NOTE: minutes corrected to reflect the correct credit for time served. te 8/16/2017

CLERK S NOTE: minutes corrected to reflect the correct concurrent counts. te §/21/2017

PRINT DATE: (03/28/2019 Page 53 of 59 Minutes Date:  February 18, 2016
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19

the house when it does not say what it was in the house or
excuse me, in the car or any statement maybe, possibly made
by Mr. Keller after he was Mirandized, which that didn't
happen --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. FRIZZELL: -- that leads the officers to say,
oh, wow, we found this here so there must be something in the
house because we found this.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. FRIZZELL: There's --

THE COURT: Mr. Frizzell, I understand your
argument.

MR. FRIZZELL: Okay, all right.

THE COURT: Notwithstanding the timing of when
you've made this basically oral motion, I'm going to hear
from the State on that.

MR. DICKERSON: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: What, if anything, was provided to
Judge Sciscento for additional information or probable cause
in order to allow the officers to search his apartment?

MR. DICKERSON: The additional information or
probable cause was that they identified the apartment as

being belonging to Mr. Keller that he had pull in front

and was in the officer's affidavit

of this apartmen

attempting to enter that apartment,

N~
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preceding and after this point they find the large quantities
of drugs indicative of drug dealing inside his vehicle that
is also his vehicle.

So his vehicle, his apartment, same location, and
it is based on the probable cause that a drug dealer is
likely to have his supply inside his home. and so when they
established there was that large quantity of drugs there in
his vehicle, it established that he is a drug dealer. Those
are without a doubt not drugs of personal use.

With that, Judge Sciscento found probable cause and
that creates a presumption of validity. The officers relied
on that and relied on that in good faith. So regardless of
anything, the good faith exception that applies going back
even to the probable cause in this case.

THE COURT: Okay. So the bottom line is, is that
he gets stopped. Based on the stop, a search warrant was
issued. They were able to search his vehicle. They found a
large number of narcotics, multiple types of narcotics and
the stop was, if not adjacent to, but in front of the
apartment, and they were -~ the apartment complex, they were
able to identify him as living in one of those apartments,
and based on the training and experience of the officer, they
felt that as drug dealers, based on what they found in the
vehicle, that he would have firearms, narcotics, money from

drug proceeds in his residence.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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A Affirmative. One of my squadmates, Officer Lopez,
had done a vehicle stop, and based on the circumstances of
the stop, he nmm:mwmma additional units.

Q And roughly, how long after that call would you say
you responded to the scene?

et TN T
ﬁx I would say approximately, within five minutes

— R
was not too far away when he requested help.

Q Okay. And when you arrived, what did you see?

A I saw Officer Lopez had a vehicle stopped as well
as he had a subject out of the vehicle in front of his -- his
vehicle in handcuffs.

Q Okay. And so at that point, what did you do? ‘Were
you assigned something te do or what did you do?

A I was just there Lo assist him with anything that
he needed. I wasn't necessarily assigned anything.

Q Okay. So did he ask you to perform any particular
tasks on that evening?

A The only thing that he specifically asked me to do
was to read Miranda to the individual he had stopped.

Q Okay. Did you do that?

A I did.

Q Did you have occasion to do anything with the car
that Officer Lopez had stopped?

A Throughout the course of the investigation, I did

assist in searching. I wasn't assigned that duty. I just

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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helped out.

Q Okay. And when you say searched, can you be a
little bit more specific? What was it that you did or what
job did you perform on the vehicle?

A We were searching the vehicle for -- there was my
understanding probable cause to believe that there was
illegal narcotics inside the vehicle.

Q Okay. And what led you to believe that?

B N
—
A I can't remember T

as specifically Officer
Lopez that saw or smelled, but I believe there was a hint of

marijuana that he smelled inside the vehicle.

Q Okay. So what part of the vehicle do you recall
searching?

A I specifically remember searching the driver
compartment, so the driver's seat and the passenger seat so
the front of the vehicle.

Q 0wmw. And did you have occasion to look into the
glove box?

A I did.

Q Can you describe with a you -- what, if anything,
you did to the glove box?

A I opened the glove box.

Q Okay. Did it open naturally? Did you have to pry
it open? How-did you have to open it?

A Initially, it just opened naturally, from what I

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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A I guess I'll circle it.

Q And zmm.n:mhm a door on this glove box?

A Yes. It's the -- the door and the sides -- there's
actual sides of the door when you pull it out, so it comes out
with it, and so that was actually in there and it was
obstructing the majority of the hole. You could only see
about the top -- about -- just the top little portion of the
hole that you could actually see.

Q You're indicating with your fingers about an inch,

maybe an inch-and~a-quarter?

A High, and then a couple inches long.

Q Okay. But you couldn't see that full hole?

A No, you couldn't see this full hole.

Q And so some steps were taken Lo remove the actual

door to the glove box?

A Yes. Officer Henry had removed the glove box.

Q Okay. Did that come off easily or did tools have to
be used?

A No, it oram off easy enough. He didn't have to have

any special tools that I'm aware of.

Q So, now looking at State's Exhibit 20, is that the
hole as it appeared?

A Yes, it's just -~ this is a closer up view of the
same hole.

Q So, once you have this door of the glove box open

'ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

10
11
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54

and you can now see this hole, what do you guys do?

A Well, we tried to get the bag out. And we could
tell that there was a black bag inside the hole, the same bag
that I suspected had a firearm in it, and we -- you can't pull
the bag out Lhrough this hole.

And so while Officer Henry was trying to get the bag

| out through this hole, I actually walked up, and\if the

passenger door is open on the car, the side of the dash panel
that's closest to the ‘door is basically just a simple little
plastic cover. I walked over to the plastic cover, and I
popped it off, and it just simply popped right off, and you

could get Lo thg bag that way as well.
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Q I'm going to show you what's been marked and
admitted here as State's Exhibit 17. Is that area that you're
talking about located in this exhibit?

A Yes. Basically, it's this whole plastic piece right
here. That all pops off, and I basically touched it right
about here, and just kind of got a little hold on it, and
popped it off.

Q And when you're indicating that you got a little
hold on it, you're just indicating with <oann:c3Uw

A Yeah. Basically, it was just -- you can grab it
with your finger, and just kind of grab onto it, and it pops
off, so.

Q Okay. So you didn't have to use any tools to take

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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LAS VEGAS METROPOLIVAN POLICE DEPARTMENT
CONTINUATION

Event#  LLV160128000259

SECTION 2.
CUSTODY PHASE:

KELLER, CHRISTOPHER ID# 1804258 was taken into_custody during the Initial vehicle stop and was later
booked at CCDC on the firearm and narcotic related charges. o o

SECTION 3

SEARCH PHASE:
The search.wag.gxecuted by Officer J. Henry P# 14753, CSI S. Thi P#14373 and me, Officer D. Lopez

P#9808, Officer Heﬁ_’f! removed the glove box door. | removed a side panel on the right passenger side\m
dashboard which Tevealed af altérnate acgess point into the hidden compartiment, which v!‘aflﬁm'b_WQQA;i_ifjlj:_ql,t/
. 'to access via the box.{Thside the hidden compartment ack-bag—CSI ThI photographed the
ack bag in place then removed the bag while donning latex gloves. CSI Thi carefully opened the black bag
which had two large golden colored reseal able plastic bags inside. CSI Thi took digital photographs as she
removed the contents of each reseal able bag. The recovered items are listed as follows:

1) ODV+METH 351.4GG W/CHECKLIST

2) ODV+HEROIN 36.4 GG W/ CHECKLIST
3) ODV+COCAINE .8 GG W/ CHECKLIST
4) SMALL BLUE PILLS 25,3 GG

5) BLUE DUST 1.1GG .

6) OXYCODONE 30 MG

7) SILDENAFIL 100MG

8) MULTI COL PILLS ‘

9) SMALL OVAL PILLS '

10) SEMI AUTO HANDGUN USA BERETTA 22 SERIAL #C35418
11) BERETTA MAGAZINE

12) 22 SHORT AMMUNITION (7 ROUNDS)
13) US CURRENCY $2187.00

14) NICE MENS WRIST WATCH

15) CRYSTAL SUBSTANGE .3GG

16) BAGGIES W/ BLACK POUCH

Officer J. Henry located in the glove box a Nevada DMV registration certificate for the 2002 DODGE STRATUS
(SILVER) VIN 4B3AG42HX2E 162394 BEARNING NV PLATE 09B-ASW bearing the suspect's name Keller
Christopher and his address 265 N, Lamb Apt F, Las Vegas NV 89110.

I also located approximately 75 small clear baggies commonly used to sell illegal narcotics beneath the front
driver's seat, where Keller had previously been seated. . :

Page 4
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EXOTT O r

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

CONTINUATION
Event #: 160128-0259

PCS with Intent to Sell-Marijuana

PCS with Intent to Sell-Schedule1-4
Possession of Dangerous Drugs W/O RX-
Sildenfail

Destruction.of Evidence

SECTION 1 CANT OF .
IDETAILS; _SERRCH \IARRANT L CAg -

executed a search warrant signed by Judge M. Andress-Tobiasson on 1/28/2016 at 0610 hoursdduring the
exgeulion © warrant additional evidence was located an ause was developed to search the
suspect's residence. At 0331 Officer J. Vance P#9004 contacted RMIN and logged the address with Liz, there
were no conflicts, | drafted the second (piggy back) telephonic search warrant and contacted Sgt. Haas who
approved the warrant. The warrant was also approved by Lt. G, Warner. Next | contacted DDA Liz Mercer
who approved the search warrant. Finally | at 0935 hours on 1/28/2016 | contacted Judge Sciento and made
application for my telephonic search warrant via a recorded conversation. Judge Sciento approved and signed
the warrant.

SECTION 2
CUSTODY PHASE:

Keller, Christopher was already in custody for multiple felony charges which arose from the first search
warrant.

SECTION 3
SEARCH PHASE;

The search warrant was executed by Officer LOPEZ 9806, SGT. HAAS 7420, DET EMBRY 6223, DET
BELMONT 8240, DET MANCAQ 6844 and Officer HOUGH 7814. During the warrant's service, Det Embry
located @ Ruger Smm P89 serial number 804-86548 seml auto handgun with a magazine and live ammunition
in from Keller's bedroom closet. Det Embry was wearing latex gloves during the search and recovered the
firearm. No one else handled the firearm., Det Embry located 3 boxes of 22 short ammunition in the storage
shed. [located 5 glass smoking pipes, 4 scales, and 1 box of Smm ammunition containing 15 rounds in the
bedroom. Det Belmont P#8240 located a glass Jar In the freezer with 188.4 grams net weight of marijuana.
Det Embry located a pay stub in the bedroom indicating Keller resides at the residence, Det Embry conducted
a buccal swab kit according to the warrant, | located two bags In the bedroom containing 4.4 and 3.1 grams
net weight of meth. | located a third clear plastic bag containing 1.1 grams net weight of heroin. All evidence
was digitally photographed by Officer Hough prior to recovery and later impounding. There was no other
personal items such as clothing, or bathroom supplies that suggested anyone else resided at residence other
than Keller.

Page 2
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CLERK OF THE COURT

CASE NO, C-16-312717-1

DEPT. NO. 5

IN THE JUSTICE COURT OF LAS VEGAS TOWNSHIP

COUNTY OF CLARK, STATE OF NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,

vs. Case No.
16F01430X

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT
KELLER,

Defendant.

REPORTER'S TRANSCRIPT OF PROCEEDINGS
BEFORE THE HONORABLE CYNTHIA CRUZ
JUSTICE OF THE PEACE

TAKEN ON TUESDAY, FEBRUARY 16, 2016
AT 9:00 A.H.
APPEARANCES:

For the State: Sarah Killer, Esq.
Deputy District Attorney

For the Defendant: Michael Sanft, Esq.
Las Vegas, Nevada

REPORTED BY: ROBERT A. CANGEMI, CCR No, 888

PRELIMINARY HEARING
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Q. The charges that are filed in a case are
determined by my office, the District Attorneys
officé, correct? | |

A. Correct.

MR. KILLER: No further gquestions

MR. SANFT: One more question.
FURTHER RE-CROSS-EXAMINATION

BY MR. SANFT:

Q. Just to make sure we are clear, did you ever

recommend at any point ever recommend any of these
traffic citations as charges to the DA's office for
prosecution?

A. I did not recommend charges to the DA's
office.

Q. Did you ever f£ill out any paperwork
indicating you thought that there were potentially
good charges for a broken tail light, or traveling
at a high rate of speed, or travelling down the
center lane of North Lamb; d4id you ever put that in
any type of documentation here?

A. No. That was my decision out in the field.

Q. It was your decision to ignore everything

leading up to the actual finding of drugs and a gun

36
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39
vehicle was because my client smoked it?
A, I did not.
Q. Did you ever cite my client for any of these

other traffic violations that you had mentioned, the
ceoentinuing through a through lane, or the traveling
at a h%gh rate of speed, you didn't know how fast

he was going?

A, I did not cite him on the traffic
violations. I c¢ite him for the felonies.

Q. Did you cite him for anything other than the
fact that he possessed these drugs or so forth
inside his vehicle?

A, I didn't cite him, I placed him under arrest
for the narcotics.

Q. So in terms of anything leading up to the
actual narcotics, your testimony here is that
because o0f the fact that you are able to smell
marijuana, you can't tell us how you smelled the
marijuana, or where the marijuana was coming from,
and based upon that is the reasons why you at that
point arrested my client, and then had enough
probable cause to go into the vehicle?

MS. KILLER: Obijection, misstates the
testimony as to the order of events.

THE COURT: Not really, but go on.

37
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A Yes.

Q Okay, both of those addresses being 265 North --

3| North Lamb Boulevard, Unit F?

A\\ 6 mo: scene?
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lNy Yes. AT - /l\/l\
e = e
Q zosﬁ:KDE:mmwA\nrmnm was some contact with a female

A Yes.

I -- I don't recall her name.
You said that Officer Vance had spoken to her?
Yes.

When did she come up to you?

AR el A o 2 ©)

During -- during the stop, she had come up, and she
had told us she wanted to get her purse out of the car.
Officer Vance had asked :mm what color the purse was, and she
said she didn't know, and we said, well, how do you know if
your purse is in the car if you don't even know what color the
purse is?
/!{ilmIEDI\\\\MHIIIIIIQIllll(l\\\lll\\
MR. FRIZZELL: I'm going to object, hearsay.
That --
MR. DICKERSON: And Your Honor, defense counsel
opened the door on this one.
THE oocwe“ Well, the -- it's still hearsay. The --

MR. DICKERSON: It's still hearsay, but it's just

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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170
clarifying what he's already brought out.
THE COURT: Well, he said purse. 1'm going to
sustain the objection as to her describing what the -- what
the purse was and not saying -- or not being able to describe

the purse.

MR. DICKERSON: Okay.

THE COURT: So, ladies and gentlemen, I'm going to
instruct you you must disregard the statements regarding her
stating that she couldn't give a description of the purse,
okay? All right.

BY MR. DICKERSON:

Q You did -- or Officer Vance did request more
information about the purse? .

A Yes.

Q And did an officer on scene conduct a search of the

vehicle for a purse?

A Yes.

Q Was a purse located?

A No.

Q Was that odd to you?

A Yes.

Q Now, just real quickly, we've gone over what was

marked and admitted as part of State's Exhibit 85 the pipes in
this case. Just for the jury's edification, you were

describing a methamphetamine pipe earlier?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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Ce stophen kelko # 81840 |
Lovelock Correctional Center F"_ED
1200 Prison Road //
Lovelock, Nevada 89419 JUN 12 24

e 1iomep, In Pro Se .
— EAT

DISTRICT COURT

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

* % k * *

M\Q;.sjroghen Keleg ,

case No. C- ”0'3"2-7‘7'\

)
)
I?F‘}*;'}")ON@\ ' ;

-vsg- ) Dept. No. X (X
)

State of NEVADA ) DATE OF HEARING:

. ) TIME OF HEARING: July 8, 2019
Respoupent” . ) 8:30 AM

MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF

IRANSCRIPTS AT STATE EXPENSE
COMES NOW Dekepant 0)\&’:@&’@ RKE\\E@ , in pro se,

and moves the Court for an order directing the Clerk of the

Court to prepare or cause to be prepared, transcripts of the
(list the hearing(s)/date(s) for which you request transcripts) :
oz,/m/zotb 02/18/20\&, os/oz/ 201k, ogloq /zofL oj/b/zow
03/14/20w /l D0 NGT NEED _my {)@_ﬁmeﬁﬂ'/ Herivg +ﬂﬁ~scm9

and to serve same upon him at his place of confinement.

This motion is made and based upon the requirements of NRS
34.370(4); NRS 34.760(2); all papers, pleadings and documents on
file herein; the instant (chegck applicable pending action to
which this motion relates)/ petition for writ of habeas

corpus motion to/for

/1l 7/
RECEIVED

JUN 12 2019
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and the following points and authorities.

POINTS AND AUTHORITIED
P
Petitioner/Defendant has filed a _.  petition for writ of

habeas corpus motion to/for

, presenting ground(s) /claim(s) for relief. NRS

34.730(4) and NRS 34.760(2) require that the presentation of
habeas petitions be supported by affidavits, records,
transcripts or other relevant evidence. Id. Petitions and
motions which are not supported by such evidence render the
claims therein to be bare and naked allegations, unsupported by
the record and meriting dismissal. Hargrove v, State, 100 Nev.
498, 686 P.2d 222 (1984). See also Griffin v, State, 122 Nev.
737, 137 P.3d 1165, 1170 (2006) (defendant must support his
claims with "specific facts" demonstrating entitlement to relief
sought) ; Berjarano v. Warden, 112 Nev. 1466, 929 P.2d 922 (1996)
(defendant bears burden of establishing factual allegations in
support of his claims).

In order to obtain this Court's order to produce the
requested transcripts, Petitioner/Defendant need show that they
would serve a useful purpose and that he would be prejudiced
without them. pPeterson v, Warden, 87 Nev. 134, 483 P.2d 204,
205 (1971). Petitioner/Defendant requires the transcripts at
bar in order to support his ground(s)/claim(s), which have
merit,(iivgggyn on the separate page(s) annexed hereto as page
(s).&gg]gg?ﬁf§ﬂ?335ﬁ3§§’describe your grounds/claims and
demonstrate how the requested transcripts are necessary to avoid
a dismissal/denial of same), and as are incorporated as if set

forth herein. Prejudice is demonstrated inasmuch as due to the

-2-
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CERTIFICATE QF SERVICE
I do certify that I mailed a true and correct copy of the
foregoing MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF TRANSCRIPTS to the below
address on this il:_ day of Il’"/uf , 20/40 , by

placing same in the U.S. Mail via prison law library staff:

Attorney For Respondent

7
/%A /(/\_/
T2 s Had tere ZElIA H_BI670
LovelocK Correctional Center
1200 Prison Road

Lovelock, Nevada 89419

I/c:/r//lxutﬂ In Pro Se

The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding
MOTION FOR PRODUCTION OF TWSCRIPTS AT STATE EXPENSE does not

contain the social security number of any person.

Dated this }//‘l day of 70‘/‘/(" ,, 20 /7 .
X i

L %4(/3/7/41‘21 LR
Jﬂc"‘/ﬂz/’”&e In Pro Se
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No.( ~/¢~-3/271 7~/ Dept. No. XX

Q
IN THE 8/ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE
STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR -
THE COUNTY OF _ C ZAn & FILED

' JUN12 21

ﬁ/was%%a fellex ) fo. XY o
Petitioner/Plaintiff, }
' }
v. }
STATE oR }
NEVADA }

Respondent/Defendant.

REQUEST FOR SUBMISSION OF MOTION
It s requested that the Motion emtitled ___ /7] 97/ /o (0//1/?6“ /

/ To QEoeuf EwbEch P ZwTos) , which was submitted/filed on the

L &
/ hday of_JLwE , 20# {4, in the above-entitled matter, be submitted to the Court for
it's consideration.

mundasignedPetitioner/Plainﬁﬂ’,celﬁﬁesﬂlataoopyofthemoﬁmnotedaboveandthis
pleading, have been served upon the Respondent/Defendant.
Dated this_7 " dayof ) LenE 2077

Lovelodke. CC Petitioner/Plaintiff

L2 PRismie o m

A U\ e
“Ely=Novme-58ei=3439

RECEIVED
N 12 2018
CLERK OF THE COURT
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FILED

JUN 12 209
INTHE__9'" _ JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE %éﬁéﬁﬁ

STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF _C /ARKk_

Lpshee Welleg camno_C-1b-312117 -

}
Petitioner, i Dept. No__ X | X
Vvs. ; Docket No.
SUTE o5 NEVAD R ;
Respondent.

REQUEST FOR RECORDS/COURT CASE DOCUMENTS

Spcchialy_ciDeice phItos
COMES NOW, Petitioner, _ (L AR:5To0hckt AE/oe ., oo per, ana

respectfully moves this Honorable Court for an Order granting Petitioner a copy of any and all @

OrothmmbovisiomisiondoitiossamtPrammripwatums, £\/[)ENCE PhoTos -
POINTS AND AUTHORITIES .

In Griffin v, Hilinois, 351 U.S. 12, 76 :S. Ct, 585, 100 L.Ed. 891, the United States Supreme Court
heldthatitviolatumednepmwssandequalpmtecﬁonchusuoftheFoumemhAmendmemwhenam
deniesanhrdigcmdefcndamthemmmnemyforhisappeal The Court held: A

“Ihmmbemequaljmﬁcewhemthckindofauialamangetsdependsuponthe
amoumdmneyheha&Duﬁnnedefendanumuabeaﬂomeduadequmcappeummviewas
defendamswhohavemoneyenoughtobuytmnscripts."*‘Plainlythcabililytopaycostsin
advanocbeatsnomﬁonalrelaﬁonshipmthcdekndam’sguiltorinnocenceandemﬂdnotbcused
as an excuse to deprive a defendant of a fair trial.”

This Griffin principle has been applied in other U.S. Supreme cases as well. See Burns

y. Ohig, 360 U.S. 252, 79 :S. Ct. 1164, 3 LEd. 1209(Applicable to state collateral proceedings).

Also, Smith v. Benett, 365 U.S. 708, 81 :S. C1. 895, 6 LEEd. 39(No requirement of paying
RECE:‘VED
JUN 12 29

CLERK OF Ty, Coury
43



statutory filing fees). TthevadaSuptemcCourthasalsoadoptedtheGriﬂinprincipleto

Nevada. See State v, Eighth Judicial District Court, 396 P. 2d 630.

CONCLUSION
Based upon the above stated points and authoritics and arguments, Petitioner respectfully requests

this Court to Grant this Request.

DATED this_{™~ dayof ) WNE L2043,

AN /N

Petittoner C)'\:K/\"*OM el

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

IhetebycethfypumanttoNR.C.P S(b)thatlamthePetnmnermthcﬁ)regomgNouceof

MononandReqthorRecordsICothaseDocmnexmonthu $ ayor _ Jine .
ZMQ,IddmamMWwpydmeabovemmhomddommmbymnmapnm

oﬁiqalatthemySchnsonmdepostintth.S.MmLsealedmanenvelope,postagepm-pmd,and

addressed as follows:

290 w5 P«vr: 5 er
e vErb MY B UL

(/ 1> U
(/Mlﬁffm /Ct‘//

Petitioner

DATED this £Ldayoff T wE ,2014.
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AFFIRMATION PURSUANT TO NRS 239B.030

L ( %ﬁ/ﬂf/éfﬂ. (/e voos_8/840
CERTIFY THAT I AM THE UNDERSIGNED INDIVIDUAL AND THAT THE
ATTACHED DOCUMENT ENTITLED CEquest Ave.

T 0BIE Yoo ! gt 2o Comnpe|

DOES NOT CONTAIN THE SOCIAL SECURITY NUMBER OF ANY

PERSONS, UNDER THE PAINS AND PENALTIES OF PERJURY.
DATED THIS % DAY OF WWNE .20 12

SIGNATURE: §// \%\/ M

INMATE PRINTED NAME: ﬁﬁ/gé/éﬁ( {6/4%
INVATENDOCE  O/E 80

INMATE ADDRESS: RESSTAE ON  _ove) o CDK@E(}.ONP‘\ QW ,
PO 8ot 1200 Qr.sor> RL.

BEphienf38  Lovclocc NV BMY
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*N/m:ﬂﬂ tlee Eumox,,gif T omokions yust
O mﬁog%(m the %mz%ﬁm@ Coomn the Q&,m ellere
pokzo ‘ol e wooy CAMERA- ﬂoQﬂJﬁJm ON QECORD |
Mm Emo 15 mjm+ _m« kug o€ He EBvipemce ,m_vé.-,\ow
Al Lo N0 AVALL
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“EXie T S p—=

LAS VEGAS METROPOLITAN POLICE DEPARTMENT

DECLARATION OF ARREST Event#:  160128-0259
"Click here to add/edit Event# and ID# on all pages” 1.D. #: 1804258
"PRINT"
True Name: " KELLER, CHRISTOPHER Date of Arrest:  01-28-16 Time of Arrest: 0244

OTHER CHARGES RECOMMENDED FOR CONSIDERATION;
Other Charges

THE UNDERSIGNED MAKES THE FOLLOWING DECLARATIONS SUBJECT TO THE PENALTY FOR PERJURY AND SAYS: That | am a
peace officer with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department, Clark County, Nevada, being so employed for a period
of 9 yeats.

That | leamed the following facts and circumstances which fead me to believe that the above named subject commitled
{or was committing) the offense(s) of POSS FIREARM BY PROHIBITED PERSON, TRAFF METH, PCS WITS, PCS
HEROIN, PCS MJ MORE THAN 10Z, at the location of 265 N LAMB, LV NV 89110, and tha! the offense(s) occurred at
approximately 0225 hours on the 28th day of Jan, 2016, in the:

[x]County of Clark [city of Las Vegas
DETAILS FOR PROBABLE CAUSE: .
On 01-28-16, at 02286, | Officer Lopez, P#9806, while operating as marked patrol 1G24, observed a silver 2002 Dodge
Stratus with NV plate 088ASW traveling northbound at 132 N Lamb In the center turn lane. The Dodge stratus had made
an abrupt left turn from Sunrise Ave and had continued the entire time in the center turn lane while never entering the #1
northbound travel lane. The Dodge stratus was traveling at high rate of speed. | made a U-{urn to conduct a records
check on the vehicle and noticed the passénger tail lamp was broken. The driver continued to accelerate and madé an
abrupt left tum into the “Crossroads |II” apartment complex. [t was apparent the driver, who would later identify himself
with a NV DL as Keller, Christopher 3llllB-84, was trying t me. Keller had traveled well over 300ft while he was in

/Lh&cggw@euer pulled his Dodge Stratus into space #58 and jumped out of the driver's side doom

conducted a traffic sto mﬁ' Jumpecmmw instructions )

Keller who was stil mwﬁ‘\—m ApwHEN—TEEE ND’A—I\GTW/
—— ——

Keller had the strong odor of cannabis on his person and coming from inside the vehicle. Keller was very nervous and

was upset about being stopped. Keller was wearing lose jeans and a baggy shirt that could easily conceal weapons so |

informed Keller | was going to conduct a pat down for weapons. As | began my pat down, Keller tensed up and his talking
became more nervous. | feared Keller was a flight risk so | placed Keller in handcuffs.

| asked Keller if he had a driver's license and he said “yes", | asked Kelier if his license was in his wallet and if | could

Wherefore, Declarant prays that a finding be made by a magistrate that probable cause exists to hold sald person for
preliminary hearing (if charges are a felony or gross misdemeanor) or. for trial (if charges are misdemeanor),

D. LOPEZ P#9806

Declarant must sign all page(s) - Print Degfarant's Name
with an original signature. /»/ - 7@
Pit

Declarant’s Slgnatura

WLVMPD 22A (Rov, 7112) WORD 2010 (1) ORIGINAL - COURT
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137
-~ in the actual light that went into the socket area?
A There was an opening in the lens cover that allowed
the light to come out as clear white.
Q Okay, but so -- but the light was working?
A The light was working.
Q And it was illuminated?
A Yes.
Q Okay. -Could you notice, was there even a brake
light on when he stopped?
A wmm.
Q All right. So then he -- you say at that point, he
exits the vehicle?
A Yes.
Q And you say you immediately exit your vehicle?
A Yes.
Q But he didn't -- but he didn’'t run away?
A He didn't get away.
Q You say he walked to the front of his vehicle, was
your lestimony? _
A No. He Qmmm.n walk --
Q Where did he --
A He got out of his car and ran towards the back of
Q Okay, so he went Lo the trunk?
A Towards the trunk.
AlSes thees

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

& My ofhcal PGS

138
o] Towards the trunk of his vehicle?
A Yes.
Q Okay. Okay, but it appeared to you that he was just

going into his trunk, correct?
A No. It appeared to me that he was trying to get

away from me. .

Q But you -- but the keys were -- his keys were in his
trunk -~ in the -- in the trunk lock, correct?
A No.

Q All right. So after you secure Mr. Keller and
you're standing outside the vehicle -- outside of his vehicle,
okay, did you place him in -- did you place him in handcuffs,
and then put rwa in your cruiser, and then go to the car, or
how did -- what was the chronology there?

A I walked him over to the front of 3< patrol vehicle,
I placed him in handcuffs, and that was about the time Officer

Henry was arriving. Then the gunshots took place. I secured
him in the back of my patrol vehicle, I took cover by the side
of the car, and then I walked over towards his door, which was

still open.

Q Okay. Now, at that point, the door was open. Was
there -- there was no interior light illuminated in the
vehicle, was there?

A I don't recall.

Okay. And this is at roughly 2:20 or so A.M. in the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

88
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{\;RE [,

coming from inside of the vehicle and what is coming
off of my client?

A. While he was standing next to his door, and
I was up there next to him, while he was near the
driver's side door, and I was giving him
instructions, standing there, I could smell it
coming off of his clothes and from inside the
vehicle, coming from -- it was coming from 2
different directions.

Q. So you are able to differentiate between the
smell coming off of a person versus what was coming
from the vehicle, even though the 2 of them are in

He is not leaving the vicinity of the car

door? 4’////////////

A, Correct.,

Q. Then at that point you said that you for
whatever reason decided to detain my client based
upon the fact that you believed that he may have had

a weapon on him?

——
A. I conducted a pat down, because he may have

ad weapons on him.

Q. And you based that upon the fact that he was
driving at a high rate of speed?

A. No. I based --

51
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41

A Yes.

Q And State's 16, what is this a photo of?

A That's a photo of the interior as I'm standing at
the open passenger side door.

Q Now, was there a certain area of the vehicle that
the search warrant that was about to proceed was focusing on?

A Yes.

Q And what area was that?

A I was directed by the officers on scene that the
area of concern was the glove compartment area.

Q Okay. And do you see that area here in this photo
of this State's Exhibit 16?

A Yes.

Q If you could please just point to that on the screen
that there's there on your left. And what was the state of
that area in particular when you WMMWMMMNIIII)IIIII!!

The glove compartment had been removed and HMIIQIII///
sitting on the floor board, and the glove compartment area is
now exposed.

I
o 55 th 5 OF the search warrant that was about to
proceed you said was in this area?

A Yes.

Q And was there any particular thing about that area
that caused it to be the focus?

A I was directed to a -- an area within the glove

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

10
11
12
13

14

42
compartment that appeared to have access to a space behind
the plastic paneling.

Q Okay. First, showing you State's Exhibit 18. 1Is
this that same general area just a frontal view of it?

A Yes.

Q And now showing you State's 19, do you recognize
what's depicted here in this image?

A Yes.

Q And what is that?

A This is a view of the glove compartment from around
the area of the center console.

Q And State's 20, just a closer of that?

A Yes.

Q 50 were you, as part of this search warrant, able to
recover the items through that hole there?

A No, I was not.

Q What ZmW\mmmmwlllllllll\\liilvll!lini;zllllir

\\\\\\Mﬂ!‘lw!wm@mmmnm piece of paneling was removed to gain
access to that area.
——
A The paneling was on the passenger side, the portion

of the vehicle that is in contact with the door when it

o e
CloSeS, e

e Q Okay. I'm going to show you here State's Exhibit
17. Do you recognize that area that you just spoke of in

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

St
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Visits.htm . + Page 1 of 1
| ' T e
el &)
Vists With Visitor Attorney
(Contact Only after May 2010, Non-Contact in Renovo)
ID Number : '0001804258’ , Start Date : '28-JAN-2017', End Date : '02-MAR-2017"
Inmate |Inmate First Offender ID :BookingiBookingiStart End Visit [RelationjVisitor Last [Visitor Visitor
Last Name Begin |End Date/Time|Date/Time/TypeType  |name First name|Middle
| IName Date :Date name
KELLERICHRISTOPHER|000180425828- - 27-Feb-1727-Feb- ILEG ATT FELICIANOAMY -
n A JAN- 19:30:00 (17
2016 ‘ 20:00:00
KELLER/CHRISTOPHER{000180425828- - 01-Mar-1701-Mar- LEG ATT FRIZZELL {KENNETH|G
2 JAN- 13:00:00 (17
2016 13:30:00

file:///C:/Users/s10182m/AppData/Local/Temp/Temgl Visits.zip/Visits.htm 3/2/2017 Sy



Exie TS A E

FELICIANO LAW OFFICE, LLC

AMY A FELICIANO

ATTORNEYATLAW

2421 Tech Center Ct., #100
Las Vegas, NV 89128
Phone: P | (702) 848-4869
Fax: F [ (702) 977-8262
Email: amy@felicianolawoffice.com
www.felicianolawoffice.com

Invoice # 1 Date:

03/06/2017
Mr. Christopher Keller
¢/0 Mrs. Nancy Graham
244 Molly Court
Las Vegas, NV 89183
06034-Keller
Type - Date IS PP " . Notes - - 7. . Quantity  Rate Total
Service 02/27/2017 Flat Fee for legal representation 1.00 $15,000.00 $15,000.00
Expense  02/27/2017 Reimbursable expense: Fee expense for Investigator Al 1.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00
Fuentes
Total $16,000.00
Payment (02/27/2017) -$6,000.00
Credit Note -$10,000.00
Balance Owing 50.00
Detailed Statement of Account
Current Invoice
r, © " DueOi .- AmountDue " . = PaymentsReceived = ' BalanceDuc
1 02/27/2017 $16,000.00 $16,000.00 $0.00

03/06/2017: Judge refused substitution of attorney. Full refund of partial Flat Fee payment of $6000.
Remaining $10,000.00 written off.

Page 1 of 1
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retention. However, right after that I -- my husband and I
had, unfortunately, involuntary commit our l16-year-old son to
Spring Mountain Behavicoral Center for mental illness.

At the same time, I started having seizures. I had
two grand mal seizures in February and was hospitalized in
Valley Hospital for over a week. I'm up to ten seizures now.
It came out of nowhere. After the grand mals and when I left
Valley, I suffered extreme aphasia, which I stutter, et
cetera. Long story short, by the time T was able to work
again and get back to normal, I contacted Mr. Keller's mother
again, as I was catching up with my contacts, my telephone
calls, et cetera, and his mother had graciously been waiting

for me to contact her.

And this was on about the -- sorry, Judge.

THE COURT: No, that's okay. Just relax. We're
fine.

MS. FELICIANO: This is part of it. 26th of
February --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. FELICIANO: =~- and was retained at that time and

prepared the documents to enter into with Mr. Keller and his
mother. And that, Your Honor, is -- and Mr. Keller's mother
when we had -- when we spoke, informed me that she and her

husband had always been going to let him on his own, not hire

counsel for him, but at this time, they wish to.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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—— S\R\\\\\llfllllllt(l
4
1 And so she used -- and we listened to jail calls,
2| her savings account to retain me and so that's -- it's ny
3| fault that I was not retained at the beginning of February
4| when Mr. Keller's mother first contacted me. Just to let you
5| know, Your Honor, kind of where my position is at and why
6| everything was so last minute and, you know, let the parties

know as best I could, you know, once the payment clears and

things are firm. So thank you, Judge.

. THE ooax??mno\
and it would play part in every case, is that when we have
certain dates that we put out there, everyone knows about
them, and I know that you probably researched this to find out
when a trial date was scheduled. You know nrmn in the
beginning prior to actually having an evidentiary hearing your
client was invoking -- well, Mr. Xeller was invoking his right
to a speedy trial.

It's been -- I've dealt with a number of changes
Full Frizzell has come in.

here. He's not the first attorney

to handle this matter. And so the concern that I have is that

you would even do this, even probably as late as -- I mean as

early as February knowing when we have a trial date coming up.
And I appreciate you're trying to step in here to

assist Mr. -- I mean, Mr. Keller, but I set trial dates

I have an

because I'm trying to move these cases.

availability to do this case now, and I think when you accept

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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EXBT T

FELICIANO LAW OFFICE, LLC

AMY A FELICIANO

ATTORNKY AT LAW

March 6, 2017
VIA US MAIL

Christopher Keller, #0184258
Clark County Detention Center
330 South Casino Center

Las Vegas, Nevada 89101

Re:  State v. Keller
Legal representation documents

Dear Mr. Keller:

It was a pleasure speaking with you on the phone over the past week and meeting you in
person this morning. I am incredibly saddened that Judge Kephart would not allow me to
substitute in as your attorney and grant our request for a short continuance to allow me to
effectively represent you. I hope that you receive effective assistance of counsel, due
process, and a fundamentally fair trial this week. I will be thinking of you and hoping for
the best outcome.

The legal system is broken. That is why I fight. But regardless of how long I have been
practicing and how many cases I have handled, it is always incredibly hard to watch legal
injustices happen to a person accused of a crime. An accused’s loss of constitutional rights
is beyond tragic. I can only hope that this week our system redeems itself and you receive
the constitutional rights you are entitled to.

I called your Mom after court and let her know what happened. I then refunded her
payment. Enclosed, please find a copy of the legal representation documents that I prepared
for your case.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any questions or need additional
information. I wish you all the very best. Thank you.

iy

Amy Al[FeliCiano, Esq.
FELICFANO LAW OFFICE, LLC

/aaf

Enclosure(s)
cc: Mrs. Nancy Graham with enclosure(s)

2421 Tech Center Ct., #100, Las Vegas, Nevada 89128 T| (70@?48-4869 F(702) 977-8262 E | amy@felicianolawoffice.com
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ExiegiT 7S D
C-16-312717-1
COUNSEL:
Upon Court's inquiry, Defendant advised he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint against
the investigator. Further, Defendant advised he does not believe Mr. Frizzell is representing him the
way he wants. Further discussion regarding Defendant's issues with counsel and investigator.
COURT FURTHER ORDERED, Motion DENIED.
CALENDAR CALL:
State announced ready with 3 - 4 days for trial. Mr. Frizzell requested trial be continued as he has
been preparing for the motion to suppress and has not been able to prepare for trial. Colloquy
regarding scheduling. COURT ORDERED, request to continue GRANTED; trial date VACATED and
RESET.
8/17/2016 8:30 AM PRE TRIAL CONFERENCE
9/14/2016 8:30 AM CALENDAR CALL

9/19/2016 10:00 AM JURY TRIAL

PRINT DATE: 04/17/2019 Page 26 of 59 Minutes Date:  February 18, 2016
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STATE BAR OF NEVADA

June 16, 2016

Christopher Keller, #1804285
Clark County Detention Center
330 S. Casino Center Boulevard
Las Vegas, NV 89101

RE:  Grievance / Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., and Michael Sanft, Esq.
Reference No. OBC16-0711

Dear Mr. Keller:

Please allow this letter to acknowledge receipt of your correspondence to
the State Bar of Nevada regarding attorneys Kenneth Frizzell and Michael Sanft
in connection with your ongoing criminal case.

Court records show that State of Nevada vs. Christopher Keller, Case No.
C287724, remains pending in the Eighth Judicial District Court. A review of
court records and the information provided indicates that your grievance involves
issues best addressed in the appropriate court settings.

The Office of Bar Counsel and the disciplinary boards of the State Bar are
not substitutes for the court system. Accordingly, your allegations are, at this
time, more appropriately handled in the proper judicial forums. Therefore, no
further action shall be taken in this matter.

If a court makes any findings regarding this matter, please re-submit that
information for our reconsideration.

Phillip J. Pattee
Assistant Bar Counsel

59

3100 W. Charlesron Blvd.
Suite 100

Las Vegas, NV 89102
phore 702.382.2200

woll frec 800.254.2797

fax 702.385.2878

9456 Double R Blvd., Ste. B
Reno, NV 89521-5977
phone 775.329.4100

fax 775.329.0522

www.nvbar.org
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believe the defense had any witnesses besides maybe the
defendant himself.

THE nOcm&n Okay. So how -- I guess, it's the young
lady that's seated right there?

MR. FRIZZELL: Yes, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. How long -- was she
throughout the whole day of first day.

MR. DICKERSON: I believe she was here for two days,
Your Honor.

THE COURT: Was she here for the opening statements?
Here for any testimony? .

MR. FRIZZELL: She fmm here for the -- no, she was
here for the first day of jury selection.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. FRIZZELL: She was not here yesterday.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. FRIZZELL: My client's mother was here.

Obviocusly, she's not going to be a witness.

_..THECOWRT: _ Okay. All right. Who is the witness?
MR, FRIZZELL: Mary mﬁ</mv
F}/{\I’l\.\l\\

THE COURT: All right.

MR. FRIZZELL: Mary Silva.

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the
State was not put on notice of these witnesses, I'm going to

allow you to call her if you choose to. But you need to make
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her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's going to be
offering. .

MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I
actually just learned of her potential as a witness yesterday
evening from an e-mail, which I received.

THE COURT: Okay. So --

MR. FRIZZELL: And --

THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that
defendant was telling you previously that we discussed before
we started the trial?

MR. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.

THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. H.n50cmvﬁlhhm1

witness -- ‘ BN

THE COURT: Well, let me ask you this, I'm going to

.:m<m her exit the courtroom, okay? All right. Ma'am, go

[|\\\\\\|\|,}/ll.|‘|\\\\

(Witness exits the courtroom)

ahead and go out.

THE COURT: What's your proffer?
e MR. FRIZZELL: That she can testify that there was a
woman that was living there because she cleaned -- it was --
cleaned the condominium unit. Cleaned -- had been cleaning --
like a cleaning lady for Unit F. And so that she was going to

be able to say that yes, a woman was living there, and she was

de/ﬁh/M@wm was the woman who hired me to come clean the house

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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THE COURT: Okay. Well, I mean, I'm going to leave
it to Mr. Frizzell at this point in time to determine --
because we still have a trial going. We're still in the
middle of trial. There's still time. We're not done with it.
You've made your record. You've made your record, Mr. Keller.
Mr. Frizzell, you and he need to discuss that and determine
whether or not you're going to be in a position where you want
those witnesses to testify or not. So -- and then, Mr.
Frizzell, I'd do what you can to see what you can get -- get
~- see what you can find out.

MR. FRIZZELL: And just so that you understand, he
did just tell me all this; gave me this written down
yesterday.

THE DEFENDANT: This I gave you on Monday.

MR. FRIZZELL: And Your Honor, I just --

THE DEFENDANT: I gave him this on Monday, but I
told him that I want --

MR. FRIZZELL: Well, what he wanted from -- what he
wanted from this men he gave me was some documentation that
there wasn't going to be any way to get it in, and the
documents at least themselves. All he wanted was like
printouts of Registers of Actions on some other -- some other
people and their case. And not only is that -- not only
during our discussion did I say -- did I tell him that I

thought that was -- that was irrelevant and there was other --

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

10
11
12
13
14
15
lé
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

a better strategic way to handle that issue, I'm -- I'm
hearing actually -- like I said, just yesterday afternoon,
about I want to call all these people, some of which I have
absolutely no contact information for. Yes, my investigator,
Mr. Maston, I have certainly ways to contact- him.

THE-CQURT: Okay.

JHE DEFENDANT:

I have numbers for the zwnJWMWMMVLV
MR. FRIZZELL: Okay. But if -- I mean, if he wants
witnesses to be called, I'm just letting Your Honor know that
I'm just -- I just learned of who -- that he wanted to call
somebody yesterday, so there has been no notification to the
-~ Lo the State about that --
THE COURT: Okay.
MR. FRIZZELL: -- ak all.
THE COURT: All right, that's fine. Aall right, get
the jury in.
THE MARSHAL: All rise for the presence of the jury.
(Within the presence of the jury)
THE COURT: OQOkay. We're back on the record in the
case of State of Nevada vs. Christopher Keller in C-312717.
Let the record reflect the presence of the defendant and his
counsel, as well as State and their counsel.
(COURT CALLS ROLL OF THE JURY)
THE COURT: All members of the jury have answered

the call. Do the parties stipulate to the presence of the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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1| community that --
2 THE COURT:
3 THE DEFENDANT: Well, they're character witnesses,
4| and then I --
5 THE COURT: So you want -- you want to put your

N

character into evidence?

Yes. I'm going to go on the -- I'm

L

mm going to go -- I was going to go on the stand anyway.

URT: Oh, okay.

pted

10 THE DEFENDANT: And then I had also wanted to —- a

11} witness -- I wanted to call Mark Maston (phonetic), because he

13} -- the other person that was living there al the residence was

14| there, and still had access to the vehicle and all this sctuff,

ﬂ#. 12| -- when he went to my house to investigate, I mean, the other

- 15( and he -- I mean, he's aware of that stuff, but I have no way
NHMHV 16} of like putting that -- I have no way of presenting that to
L — 17| the Court without -- you know, I have no way of really
VXAHU 18 | presenting w:m ~- this evidence to the Court.
/ ,u ' 19 THE Oocwen Okay, well that's something you need to

20| discuss with your attorney. Your attorney's indicating that

21| -- I mean, you got the information, Mr. Frizzell.

22 MR. FRIZZELL: I -~ I --

23 THE COURT: And if in fact there's witnesses you

24| believe will assist you in your trial, then I'd suggest that .

25| you probably try to do what you can to call them. But have
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you provided a witness list to the -- I mean, to the State?

MR. BUNNETT: Your Henor, we have not --

MR. FRIZZELL: No, I just --

MR. BUNNETT: -- received a witness list. That -- I
mean, just based on what we're hearing today, my thoughts are
that, if these witnesses were to be presented, they sound
mostly like -- I mean, he mentioned upstanding members of the
community. If he puts on character evidence, Your Honor, I
feel like it's going to be our position that we're going to be
able to ask them about his character. And I think the
procedure how that's done is asking them, you know, have you
heard that the defendant has been convicted of a felony, or
that he's been --

THE COQURT: Well, that's why I was asking whether or
not -- that was his question, was he n:nnH:o.:ww character
into issue.

MR. BUNNETT: So, I mean, I don't at this point
think -- if character witnesses are being presented, I don't
think we've been noticed, but I don't think our requested
remedy would be that he not be allowed to call those
witnesses.

THE COURT: Um-hum.

MR. BUNNETT: I mean, it would also sort of depend
on what evidence is proposed to be presented, but I mean, if

it's merely character evidence --
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(In the presence of the jury.)

THE COURT: Okay. This is continuation of jury
trial in case the State of Nevada versus Christopher Keller
in €-312717. 1I'd like the record to reflect the presence of
the defendant, his counsel, district attorney and their
counsel and all members of the jury. Will the parties
stipulate to the presence of the jury?

MR. DICKERSON: State will stipulate, Your Honor.

MR. FRIZZELL: Defense stipulates.

THE Oocww” Okay. As we took a break, State had
rested their case. Mr. Frizzell, did you wish to present any
evidence on be behalf of the defendant?

MR, FRIZZELL: Yes, Your Honor. Defense wishes to
call Officer Jacob Henry to the stand.

THE_COURT; . .Okay-— \/}ll\li/\&d

PANWWHOHW JACOB HENRY, DEFENDANT'S WIINESS,-SWORN---—

e .fil.flv'l‘l\l\\ —
THE CLERK: Thank you. Please be seated. Please

state your full name, spelling your first and last name for

Lhe record. = e e

THE WITNESS: Jacob flenry, J-a-c-o-b, H-e-n-r-y.

THE COURT: Your witmess. T
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. FRIZZELL:
Q Are you officer, detective? What is your title?

A Officer.
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Q Officer Henry, what do you do for w living?

A I'm a police officer with Las Vegas Metropolitan
Police Department.

Q And how long have you been so employed?

A Today's date, approximately three years.

Q And where were you -- were you -- where are you
stationed now?

A Northeast Area Command.

Q Okay. And were you stationed that command on

January 28th, 20162

A I was.

Q On that date, were you called out for any reason?
A I was.

Q Okay. And what was that reason?

THE COURT: Why don't you be a little bit more
specific.
THE WITNESS: Yeah, I was on multiple calls that
night.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. FRIZZELL:
Q In the evening, were you called to 265 North Lamb
Boulevard for any reason?
A I was.
Q And do you recall why you were called to that

address?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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1| looking inside the glove box on the right side, there was a
2| -- a little compartment that was right there.
3 Q Okay. So can you describe what you -- you're
4| calling a compartment?
5 A Yeah. So there was a little bit of a space between
6| the glove box and the actual like door and the frame of the
7] car.
8 Q Did you have to punch through something to get to
91 wherever it was you were ultimately attempting to go to?
10 A No.
11 MR. FRIZZELL: Court's indulgence.
12 BY MR. FRIZZELL:
13 Q At what point was there a search warrant request
14| made?
15 A I wvas able Lo reach my hand in the =-- the little
16| compartment from inside the glove box, and I was able to feel
17| a pouch inside that =-- that glove box compartment. Based on
18| my training and experience from manipulating the pouch, I
19| could feel something hard inside that felt like a Ffirearm.
20 Q Okay.
21 A So we -- we stopped at Chat point and obtained a
22 | search warrant.. _ _ — n T
23 \\\\\\O All right. ©Now, were <o:v@MMNWﬂWMﬂMHMMWMMﬂWMM(
mhhlwuwm‘ucsnMWme‘xl
25 A I was.
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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Q And was it operational?

A It was.

Was it operational during the time that you're

/ Q
describing to the jury?
A From my recollection, it was turned on, yes.
Q And was that body camera footage a recording, to

the best of your knowledge?

A To the best of my knowledge, it was.

Q After this incident was concluded, what, if
anything, did you do with the body camera?

A I just did what we normally at the end of a shift
which is take it off and plug it into the docking system at

our area command and so it can upload the videos on to the

database.

Q And did you -- prior to the end of the
investigation, did you inform the suspect that you had the
body cam on and it was running?

A T do not recall specifically advising him that he
was —- he was being recorded by the body camera.

Q And so when you Wo back to the area command and you
put it in n:m.aonxwzo station, what is the purpose of that?

A It uploads all the videos that were obtained
throughout the night into the ~- the massive database that we
have that -- that saves and stores video.

llI\IIIIlIIIllI||\\\IIlIlllll\\llll\lll!ll!ll\\

Q Okay. Where actually on your body do you recall

/l\\\“rm:\ux\i TRANSCRIPT
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BY MR. FRIZZELL:

- Q Did you transfer the footage to the District

>nn0Hdm<_m Office?

a Physically, no. By me plugging it into the
database that they have access to as well, it would have
transferred to them being able to obtain it. So I did not

physically walk it over here and hand the CD, no.

[P -

~—

Q Okay.
MR. FRIZZELL: Court's indulgence. 1I'll pass the
witness, Your Honor.
THE COURT: Cross.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. BUNNETT:
Q So on direct examination, you kept referring to a

suspect. Is that suspect here this court today?

A He is.

Q Could you please point to him and identify an
article of clothing that he or she -- he's wearing?

A It looks like he's sitting right beside the

attorney who was just questing me, and he's wearing a light
blue shirc.
MR. BUNNETT: And Your Honor, I'd ask that the
record reflect that the witness has identified the defendant.
THE COURT: It shall.

BY MR. BUNNETT:
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Q Okay. So you responded to help Officer Lopez?

A Correct.

Q And showing you --

(Pause in the proceedings)
BY MR. BUNNETT:

Q So I'm going to show you State's 6. That's what
the car Hoowmn like in the parking spot, right?

A Yes.

Q Okay. And I'm going to show you mmmnm.m 8. That's
that license plate that was on the car, right?

A From what I could recall, yes.

Q Okay. I'm going to show you State's 20. That's
that hole that you were talking about, right?

A Correct. There's actually a little like piece that
was blocking that, so it wasn't as obvious when you first
open it. But as I explained to the other attorney, once you
kind of touched it or tapped it, then it just it give away.

Q I mean, but you didn't punch a hole in the side of
the glove box, did you?

a No.

Q So that was -- safe to assume that there was there
before you guys started searching the vehicle?

A Yes.

Q And you found a lot of stuff in that car, didn't

you?
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FILED
SEP 05 2019

DISTRICT COURT %m
CLARK COI{NTY, NEVADA

Christopher R Keller,

Petitioner, Case No: A-19-800950-W

Department 19
VS, >
State of Nevada,
ORDER FOR PETITION FOR
Respondent, WRIT OF HABEAS CORPUS

/

Petitioner filed a Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction Relief) on

August 26, 2019. The Court has reviewed the Petition and has determined that a response would assist

the Court in determining whether Petitioner is illegally imprisoned and restrained of his‘her liberty, and

good cause appearing therefore,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that Respondent shall, within 45 days after the date of this Order,

answer or otherwise respond to the Petition and file a return in accordance with the provisions of NRS

34.360 to 34.830, inclusive.

IT IS HEREBY FURTHER ORDERED that this matter shall be placed on this Court’s

Calendar on the Ci day of BM“'b{’/

, 20}7 , at the hour of

g4/

o’clock for further proceedings.

WML KA

District Court Judge %

67
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney

Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT

Chief Deputy District Attorney

Nevada Bar #005734
200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212

(702) 671-2500
Attorney for Plaintiff

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,

#1804258

Petitioner,

-V§-

THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Respondent.

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CASE NO:
DEPT NO:

Electronically Filed
1/17/2020 9:29 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

A-19-800950-W
XIX

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S PRO PER PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: Apri] 16, 2018
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 am.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through TALEEN R. PANDUKHT, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and

hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition

for Writ of Habeas Corpus

(Post-Conviction).

|
This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the

attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if

deemed necessary By this Honorable Court.

H
1
/
/!
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hercinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlied Substance
(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453,336 - NOC 5 1127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 5016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michae! Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s contlict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance™). ‘

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner. On May 4, 2016, Mr.
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuancei”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
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State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27,2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson \? Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (“Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and
Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also
denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied
Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance”). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Célendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance”). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017,

Both Petitioner and the State annoﬁnced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On Maych 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms. Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to

bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information

i3
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was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlied Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the jury returned a verdict of puilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information wa: subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June §, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioncr requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count I- LIFL in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole cligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in thle NDC with a minimum parole eligibility alter ten
(10) years in the NDC; Count 2 10 run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-cight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5: as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)

months in the NDC; Count 7 1o run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole :;ligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total,aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Cogtrolled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appeint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018.

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State’s Response now follows. ’

STATEMENT OF FACTS
On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las

Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a

4
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2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential arca, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.
Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification, Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating diréctions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.
During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionaily, Officer Lopez believed
that Petitioner would be a flight risk bas;d upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s

it
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side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the evehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
undemeath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size o.f the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a

concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel

a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and

obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items

" of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched

the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gc;;d bags cc;ntained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for

Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
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parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methamplfetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar‘ containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams. Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

ARGUMENT
L. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBS‘TANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

&
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(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relicf; or

(3) Raised in any other procceding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstralc

(a) Good cause for the pctitioner’s fallure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner,

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and gppellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claimsklhat are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court nast dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an carlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059, Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them in post-conviction p'{oceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975). |
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“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably

available at the time of default.” Clem v. Sta:.ste, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)

{emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good

causé[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State

' officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

~Nev. 192,275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.’” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 {1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248,252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual

allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.
Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied’ when it
is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the claim was made.”
Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive claims that could and
should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal sentence; 2) Ground Two:

Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s relixébility; 3) Ground Three: No exigency to search

10
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Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed to search Petitioner’s vehicle;
5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6) Ground Six: Destroyed or lost
body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony of Officer D. Lopez. Each of
these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal. Therefore, pursuant
to Evans, these issues were substantively waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them
earlier. Furthermore, Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS
34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and information needed to
raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal, and Petitioner
does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of these issues at that
time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether the District Court
abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on the day trial was set
to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s pretrial
motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence pursuant 1o a search
warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls introduced by the State;
and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to
ignore his procedural defaults because all ofgthe necessary facts and law were available for a
timely appeal and he has not alleged an impediment external to the defense prevented raising
these claims at the appropriate time. Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

II.  PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL DO NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove

he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counse! by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865

P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for

counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have

11
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been different. 466 U.S. at 68788, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[TThere is no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address ‘both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 8. Ct. at 2069,

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine

whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was

ineffective, Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Ennis v, State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P:3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if

any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon thg merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” 1d. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the éharge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”
United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n¥19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

//
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“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible option% are almost unchallengeable,” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S.%Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S, Ct. at 2064-65, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his infffectivq-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v, State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland
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does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt
about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 8. Ct. 770, 791, 578
F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992). ®

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-
prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 930, 998,923 P.2d 1102, 1114
(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted

issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. 1d. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313, “For judges to second-guess
reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not apl?ealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not
using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;

4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
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or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalt; phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppresgion hearing. Because Petitioner fails to identify
which issues Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing, or how those issues
were supported by the record, Petitioner’s argument is a bare and naked allegation pursuant to
Hargrove and cannot entitled Petitioner to relief. In this case, trial counsel not only filed a
Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he conducted an evidentiary
hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Dariiel Lopez testified. Exhibits were presented as
well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to Suppress. Therefore, trial
counsel appropriately raised the suppression issues and properly conducted the evidentiary
hearing, rendering Petitioner’s claim without merit.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counselowas ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. However, Appellate counsel did raise several meritorious issues on appeal,
including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence from Petitioner’s residence.
The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did not abuse its discretion by
denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his conde through a search

warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides no evidence and only

makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and naked allegations are
not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225, Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on
appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114. There is a strong presumption that
appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable

professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560 (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and naked allegations, he cannot overcome
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the strong presumption of appellate counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not
warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 Pi2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel is expected%to conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,
91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In r¢ Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,
472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations

or to make a reasonable decision that makes, particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.
Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,
104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and*investigation is both encouraged and common
practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators are
“subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S..Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonablene&ss in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.”” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective agsistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate

investigations led to that conclusion.
i
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In this case, trial counsel was not ineffective for not using another investigator because
Petitioner was apparently dissatisfied with thjs one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular

“relationship” with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617

(1983). There is no requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel
is reasonably effective in his representation. See Id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is
not entitled to a particular relationship with his attorney’s investigator, who is either also court
appointed or who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. This

was a reasonable decision to make and does not amount to deficient representation under

Strickland.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. There is no requirement for a specific number of
visits every case necessitates, nor is that ;a basis for ineffective assistance of counsel.
Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this ¢laim. Counsel also communicates
with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars. “There are countless
ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys
would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct.
at 689. Thus, this claim is without merit and should be denied.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle, Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, anq what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;

see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
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these alleged witnesses. It is unknown if trial counsel even had sufficient information to locate
these unnamed witnesses. A review of the record demonstrates that trial counsel was in fact
not given timely information about the witness Petitioner describes as having to wait so long
she left the trial. This witness, a woman named Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence

a few times, was discussed on the record on the fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what happened here. While you were probably walkin
down the hallway to come in, I was on the phone with the witness that you sai
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silvd, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- I said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4. p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court graciously allowed her

to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available fo the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's l§o:>ing to be offering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actually just learned of her
otential as a witness yesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

E COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COQURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
R}l%\/iousl that we discussed before we started the trial?

. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in
the defense case-in-chief, See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who
stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has
the “immediate and ultimate responsibilify of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,
Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient perfo;mance and Petitioner’s claim therefore fails.
Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call

18

-

85




WO s~ T W Rk W N

e T O TR 0 TR o T . TN % RER 5 TR 0 N % B i T e e e e e e
P"- T Y~ U O W . SO P R W R O o D - - I =~ U | I - N VA B o

witnesses during sentencing hearings unless ghey are convicted of First Degree Murder. The
applicable statutes are provided below.

NRS 176.015 is the applicable statute for sentencing hearings, which provides:

1. Sentence must be imposed without unreasonable delay. Pending sentence, the
court may commit the defendant or continue or alter the bail.

2. Before imposing sentence, the courf shall:

a) Afford counsel an opportunity to speak on behalf of the defendant; and

b) Address the defendant personally and ask the defendant if:

1) The defendant wishes to make a statement in his or her own behalf and to
present any information in mitigation of punishment; and
(2) The defendant is a veteran or a member of the military. If the defendant meets
the qualifications of subsection 1 of NRS 176A.280, the court may, if
afjpropnate, assign the defendant to:
E } A program of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280; or

II) If a program of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280 is not
available for the defendant, a program®of treatment established pursuant to NRS
176A.250 or section 20 of this act.

3. After hearing any statements Hresented pursuant to subsection 2 and before
imposing sentence, the court shall afford the victim an opportunity to:

Eag Appear personally, by counsel or by personal representative; and

b) Reasonably express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible,
the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution.

NRS 175.552 is the applicable statute for First Degree Murder Penalty Hearings:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, in every case in which there is
a finding that a defendant is guilty or guilty but mentally ill of murder of the first
degree, whether or not the death penalty is sought, the court shall conduct a
separate penalty hearing. The separate penalty hearing must be conducted as
follows:

(a) If the finding is made by a jury, the separate penalty hearing must be
conducted in the trial court before the trial jury, as soon as practicable.

(b) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is sought, the separate penalty hearing must
be conducted before a jury impaneled for that purpose, as soon as practicable.
(c) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is not sought, the separate penalty hearing
must be conducted as soon as practicable before the judge who conducted the
trial or who accepted the plea. )

2. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has made
a finding that the defendant is intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice
of intent to seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the parties may by
stipulation waive the separate penalty hearing required in subsection 1. When
stipulating to such a waiver, the parties may also include an agreement to have
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the sentence, if any, imposed by the trial judge. Any stipulation pursuant to this
subsection must be in writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant's
attorney, if any, and the prosecuting attorney.

3. During the hearing, evidence may be presented concerning aggravating and
mitigating circumstances relative to the offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relevant to the sentence, whether or not the
evidence is ordinarily admissible. Evidence may be offered to refute hearsay
matters. No evidence which was secured in violation of the Constitution of the
United States or the Constitution of the State of Nevada may be introduced. The
State may introduce evidence of additional aggravating circumstances as set
forth in NRS 200.033, ather than the aggravated nature of the offense itself, only
if it has been disclosed to the defendant before the commencement of the penalty
hearing.

4. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has found
the defendant to be intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice of intent to
seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the jury or the trial judge shall
determine whether the defendant should be sentenced to life with the possibility
of parole or life without the possibility of parole.

Therefore, counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to call family and witnesses to
speak on his behalf at his sentencing as Petitioner was not entitled to this under Nevada law.
Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial ¢ounsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden
of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and Will not be questioned unless it was a plainly
unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When def.{anse counsel does not have a solid case, the best
strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.
Harrington v. Richter, 131 8. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Neither the State nor trial

counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was fully covered during the

£
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direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p.
44-147. Consequently, Petitioner’s claim fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
Petitioner does not allege that trial counsel was aware of any mental health or medication
issues. He does not even specify exactly vihat mental health history or medications he is
referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue. As such, his argument amounts to a
bare and naked allegation under Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the
record that demonstrate evidence of insanity or incompetence. Further, Petitioner fails to argue
how any mental health or medication issues,would have ultimately changed the outcome of
the instant case. Therefore, Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.

III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE
CLAIM FOR HABEAS RELIEF
The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

The State respectfully submits that cumulative error should not apply on post-conviction

review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134,

1275 S. Ct. 980 (2007) (“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of

errors, none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”). However, even if they could
[ =4

be, it would be of no moment as there was no single instance of ineffective assistance in

Petitioner’s case. See United States v. Rivera, 900 F.2d 1462, 1471 (10th Cir. 1990) (“[A]

cumulative-error analysis should evaluate only the cffect of matters determined to be error,
not the cumulative effect of non-errors.”).

Moreover, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in
evaluating a claim of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity
and character of the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev.
1, 17,992 P.2d 845, 855 (2000).

i
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As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports_finding probable cause to search
Kellers home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 344.29 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaine, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of 1-inch by 1-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Purther, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape, Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.

Order of Affirmance at page J.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error
Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming, See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the avit%r of the crime charged"” in determining
?F%?%Derror). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, Petitioner has failed to
establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable likelihood of a better
outcome at trial. Even if Petitioner had made such a showing, he has certainly failed to show
that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors was so prejudicial as to undermine this

Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Because the issue of guilt was not

3]

close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine confidence in the outcome of his
case, the State submits that Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error is without merit and that this
Court should deny the same.

1V.

PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34.770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. It reads:

22
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I. The judge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all
supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A ¥etitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearinﬁ is held.

2. 'If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he
shall dismiss the petition without a hearing.

3. If the judge or justice determines that an evidentiary hearing
is required, he shall grant the jwrit and shall set a date for the
hearing,.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.
1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002). A
defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
503, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding that “[a] defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled

to an evidentiary hearing on factual allegations belied or repelled by the record”). “A claim is
‘belied’ when it is contradicted or proven to l:;e false by the record as it existed at the time the
claim was made.” Mann, 118 Nev. at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper to hold an
evidentiary hearing simply to make a complete record. See State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court,
121 Nev. 225, 234, 112 P.3d 1070, 1076 (2005) (“The district court considered itself the
‘equivalent of . . . the trial judge’ and consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as
possible.” This is an-incorrect basis for an evidentiary hearing.”).

Further, the United States Supreme Court has held that an evidentiary hearing is not
required simply because counsel’s actions are challenged as being unreasonable strategic
decisions. Harrington, 562 U.S. at 88, 131 S. Ct. at 788. Although courts may not indulge post
hoc rationalization for counsel’s decision making that contradicts the available evidence of
counsel’s actions, neither may they insist counsel confirm every aspect of the strategic basis
for his or her actions. Id. There is a “strong presumption” that counsel’s attention to certain
issues to the exclusion of others reflects trial tactics rather than “sheer neglect.” Id. (citing

Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 124 S. Ct. 1 (2003)). Strickland calls for an inquiry in the
€
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objective reasonableness of counsel’s perfonr;ance, not counsel’s subjective state of mind. 466
U.S. 668, 688, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2065 (1994) (emphasis added).

Here, there is no reason to expand the record because Petitioner fails to present specific
factual allegations that would entitle him to relief. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 8385 P.2d at
605. Petitioner’s claims are either waived as not having been properly raised on direct appeal,
bare and naked allegations, or belied by the record. There is nothing else for an evidentiary
hearing to determine, and Petitioner gives no specific reasons for why an evidentiary hearing
would be needed. There is no need to expand the record because Petitioner’s claims are
meritless and car be disposed of on the existing record. Therefore, an evidentiary hearing is

not warranted in this matter.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this Court order Defendant’s
Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) be denied.

DATED this I lﬂ% day of January, 2020.

Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #09] 56

TAFEENTR. PANL
Chief Deputy Dist
Nevada Bar #005

L
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING
I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this l day of

January, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

CHRISTQPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER

1200 Prison Rd.

Lovelock, Nv;g:;
BY C@U/Vllu . 7

C. Garcia o

Secretary for the District Attorney's Office

]

TRP/cg/L2
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Electronically Filed
1/21/2020 11:54 AM
Steven D. Grierson

: CLERK OF THE CO
RSPN : Cﬁ;ﬂ_ﬁ L

STEVEN B. WOLFSON

Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHYT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenuc

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 6712500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
71804258
Petitioner,
v CASENO:  A-19-800950-W
THE STATE OF NEVADA, DEPTNO:  XIX
Respondent.

STATE’S RESPONSE TO DEFENDANT’S PRO PER PETITION FOR WRIT OF
HABEAS CORPUS (POST-CONVICTION)

DATE OF HEARING: December 9, 2019
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

COMES NOW, the State of Nevada, by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County
District Attorney, through TALEEN R. PANDUKHT, Chief Deputy District Attorney, and
hereby submits the attached Points and Authorities in Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction).

This Response is made and based upon all the papers and pleadings on file herein, the
attached points and authorities in support hereof, and oral argument at the time of hearing, if
deemed necessary by this Honorable Court.

1/
/
//
/
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES
STATEMENT OF THE CASE
On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Count{ 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Of Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453,336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seck Punishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Fircarm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitval treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance™).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. -On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner, On May 4, 2016, Mr.
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuance™).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress, The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
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State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson V. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (*Third

Continuance”). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and
Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner. '

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Noti_ce of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court tli;lt it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also

denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress afier the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied

Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance™). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance”). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017.

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attemp:.cd to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms. Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to

bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
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was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the’jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano sul_astituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that sentencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, IPetitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count [- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with & minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
(10) years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 — a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-cight (48) months in the NDC;
Count § to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)

months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner

-
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole e-ligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 10 run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Depariment of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility afier ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count 8; for a total:aggregate sentence of LIFE in the NDC with a
minimum parolc eligibility of TWENTY (20) years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a MOtiO;l for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7. |

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court,

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018.

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas

.

Corpus. The State’s Response now follows.
STATEMENT OF FACTS
On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las

Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD™) conducted a vehicle stop on a
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2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Officer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow lefi-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Officer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights, Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avoid him, Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.
Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s identification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, amorig which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in whicﬁ the cash was sitvated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the fact that $20
bills were folded in increments of $100, the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, $5 and $10 bills.
During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcuffs and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Officer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the ;hots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed
that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
nervousness, the fact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Defendant’s behavior while
Officer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the

driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
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side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leafy residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, b:sed on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gdid bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althn-ether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0,537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the
substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight of 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for

Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
v-
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parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance v;zas methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon,testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams, Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petiltlioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command..While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

ARGUMENT
I.  PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:
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(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s convietion and sentence, -

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections I and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(2) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and }

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims.that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if it presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,

117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS

34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523; Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
' la

877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars
if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for failure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not

obliged to consider them in post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).
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“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably

available at the time of default.” Clem v. Stqfte, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)

(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128
Nev. 192, 275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of

[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.””” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952, 960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S. 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that affor&s a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248,252, 71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003) (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual

allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just
conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P:2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the claim was made.”

Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive claims that could and
should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal sentence; 2) Ground Two:

Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliﬁbility; 3) Ground Three: No exigency to search
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Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed to search Petitioner’s vehicle;
5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6) Ground Six: Destroyed or lost
body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony of Officer D. Lopez. Each of
these claims were available at the time Petit?oner filed his direct appeal. Therefore, pursuant
to Evans, these issues were substantively waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them
earlier. Furthermore, Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS
34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause gr prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and information needed to
raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct appeal, and Petitioner
does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of these issues at that
time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether the District Court
abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on the day trial was set
to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s pretrial
motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence pursuant to a search
warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls introduced by the State;
and 4) Whether there was cumulative error, Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to
ignore his procedural defaults because all of the necessary facts and law were available for a
timely appeal and he has not alleged an impediment external to the defense prevented raising
these claims at the appropriate time. Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF
COUNSEL DO NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF

To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove
he was denied “reasonably effective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of
Strickland, 466 U.S, at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063--64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865
P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s

representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for

counsel'’s errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have

11
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been different. 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430, 432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984) (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[T]here is no reason for a court deciding gn ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant

makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counse] was

ineffective. Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 235, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance is ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.”” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See
3.

Ennis v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P’.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Trial counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, if
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of g court in considering allegations of ineffective

assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits of the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

reasonably effective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himself against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what is impossible or unethical. If there is no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interefts of his client by attempting a useless charade.”
United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

/i
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“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the

best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
&

thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S.;Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, 115 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P.2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064), “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068). |

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his ingffective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”

allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses is within the discretion of trial counsel and will not
be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland
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does nol enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.” Harrington v. Richter, 131 8. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellatc counsel’s performance was

rcasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United
States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104
S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counscl must satisfy the two-

prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114

(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Bames, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or buryiné good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess
reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raisc cvery
‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” 1d. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argu;:s that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineffective for the following reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3) for not

using another investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;

4} for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
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or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
wilnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the supprcssmn hearing. Because Pctitioner fails to identify
which issues Petitioner relayed to him prior lo the suppression hearing, or how those issues
were supported by the record, Petitioner’s argument is a bare and naked allegation pursuant to
Hargrove and cannot entitled Petitioner to relief. In this case, trial counsel not only filed a
Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he conducted an evidentiary
hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified. Exhibits were presented as
well as arguments by counscl. The Court denied the Motion to Suppress. Therefore, trial
counse! appropriately raised the suppression issues and properly conducted the evidentiary
hearing, rendering Petitioner’s claim without merit.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues, However, Appellate counsel did raise several meritorious issues on appeal,
including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress cvidence from Petitioner’s residence.
The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did not abuse its discretion by

denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his condo through a search

warrant, Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides no evidence and only
makes bare and naked allegations that he wase prejudiced. Such bare and naked allegations are
not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at 225, Petitioner cannot
demonstrate that the omitted issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on
appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev, at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114, There is a strong presumption that
appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable

professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560 (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S. Ct. at 2065). As Pctitioner has only made bare and naked allegations, he cannot overcome
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the strong presumption of appellate counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief is not
warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P:2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator' knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel is expcctcclgto conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,
91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,
472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations

or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.

Love, 109 Nev, 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,

104 S, Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more

favorable outcome, Molina, 120 Nev, at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and-investigation is both encouraged and common

practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators are

“subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied, 493 U.S. 968, 110 8.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not 10 investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.”” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

1
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In this case, trial counsel was not ineffective for not using another investigator because
Petitioner was apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular

“relationship” with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617

(1983). There is no requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel
is reasonably effective in his representation. See Id. It necessarily foilows that Petitioner is
not entitled to a particular relationship with hiﬁs attorney’s investigator, who is either also court ‘
appointed or who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. This
was a reasonable decision to make and does not amount to deficient representation under
Strickland.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. There is no requirement for a specific number of
visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance of counsel.
Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel also communicates
with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars. “There are countless
ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best criminal defense attorneys
would not defend a particular client in the sa;_;le way.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct.
at 689. Thus, this claim is without merit and should be denied.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testify that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female, He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;

see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
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these alleged witnesses. It is unknown if trtal counsel even had sufficient information to locate
these unnamed witnesses. A review of the record demonstrates that trial counsel was in fact
not given timely information about the witness Petitioner describes as having to wait so long
she left the trial. This witness, a woman named Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence

a few times, was discussed on the record on the fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what happened here. While you were probably walkin
down the ha]lway to come in, I ' was on the phone with the witness that you sai
ﬁou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- I said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court graciously allowed her

to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's }_g[oing to be offering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that is fine, Your Honor. I actually just learned of her
otential as a witness yesterday evening from an e-mail, which I received.

E COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And -- ‘
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
WIOUSI that we discussed before we started the trial?

. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —~

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4. p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic

decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable. As such,

Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s claim therefore fails.
Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and

witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
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witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. The

applicable statutes are provided below.
NRS 176.015 is the applicable statute for sentencing hearings, which provides:

1. Sentence must be imposed without unreasonable delay. Pending sentence, the
court may commit the defendant or continue or alter the bail.

2. Before imposing sentence, the coury, shall:

a) Afford counsel an opportunity to speak on behalf of the defendant; and

b) Address the defendant personally and ask the defendant if:

1) The defendant wishes to make a statement in his or her own behalf and to

resent any information in mitigation of punishment; and
FZ) The defendant is a veteran or a member of the military. If the defendant meets
the qualifications of subsection 1 of NRS 176A.280, the court may, if
appropriate, assign the defendant to:
g YA Prograrn of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280; or

IT) If a program of treatment established pursuant to NRS 176A.280 is not
available for the defendant, a program™of treatment established pursuant to NRS
176A.250 or section 20 of this act.

3. After hearing any statements presented pursuant to subsection 2 and before
imposing sentence, the court shall afford the victim an opportunity to:
ga3 Appear personally, by counsel or by personal representative; and

b) Reasonably express any views concerning the crime, the person responsible,
the impact of the crime on the victim and the need for restitution.

NRS 175.552 is the applicable statute for First Degree Murder Penalty Hearings:

1. Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, in every case in which there is
a finding that a defendant is guilty or guilty but mentally ill of murder of the first
degree, whether or not the death penalty is sought, the court shall conduct a
separate penalty hearing. The separate penalty hearing must be conducted as
follows:

(a) If the finding is made by a jury, the separate penalty hearing must be
conducted in the trial court before the trial jury, as soon as practicable.

(b) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is sought, the separate penalty hearing must
be conducted before a jury impaneled for that purpose, as soon as practicable.
(c) If the finding is made upon a plea of guilty or guilty but mentally ill or a trial
without a jury and the death penalty is not sought, the separate penalty hearing
must be conducted as soon as practicable before the judge who conducted the
trial or who accepted the plea.

2. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has made
a finding that the defendant is intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice
of intent to seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the parties may by
stipulation waive the separate penalty hearing required in subsection 1. When
stipulating to such a waiver, the parties may also include an agreement to have
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the sentence, if any, imposed by the trial judge. Any stipulation pursuant to this
subsection must be in writing and signed by the defendant, the defendant's
attorney, if any, and the prosecuting atlorney.

3. During the hearing, evidence may be presented concerning aggravating and
mitigating circumstances relative to the offense, defendant or victim and on any
other matter which the court deems relevant to the sentence, whether or not the
evidence is ordinarily admissible. Evidence may be offered to refute hearsay
matters. No evidence which was secuted in violation of the Constitution of the
United States or the Constitution of the State of Nevada may be introduced. The
State may introduce evidence of additional aggravating circumstances as set
forth in NRS 200.033, other than the aggravated nature of the offense itself, only
if it has been disclosed to the defendant before the commencement of the penalty
hearing.

4. In a case in which the death penalty is not sought or in which a court has found
the defendant to be intellectually disabled and has stricken the notice of intent to
seek the death penalty pursuant to NRS 174.098, the jury or the trial judge shall
determine whether the defendant should be sentenced to life with the possibility
of parole or life without the possibility of parole.

Therefore, counsel cannot be deemed ineffective for failing to call family and witnesses to
speak on his behalf at his seniencing as Pctitioner was not cntitled to this under Nevada law.
Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet thal burden
of proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
Conviction was affirmed on appeal. As previ.ously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly
unreascnable decision. Sce Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson
v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for

the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the defense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to exposc
defects in an expert's presentation. When defense counsel does not have a solid case, the best
sirategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Neither the State nor trial

counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was fully covered during the
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direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p.
44-147. Consequently, Petitioner’s claim fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process. However,
Petitioner does not allege that trial counsel .was aware of any mental health or medication
issues. He does not even specify exactly what mental health history or medications he is
referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue. As such, his argument amounts to a
bare and naked allegation under Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the
record that demonstrate evidence of insanity or incompetence. Further, Petitioner fails to argue
how any mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of
the instant case. Therefore, Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.

III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE
CLAIM FOR HABEAS RELIEF
The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

The State respectfully submits that cumulative error should not apply on post-conviction
review. Middleton v. Roper, 455 F.3d 838, 851 (8th Cir. 2006), cert. denied, 549 U.S. 1134,
1275 8. Ct. 980 (2007) (“a habeas petitioner cannot build a showing of prejudice on series of

errors, none of which would by itself meet the prejudice test.”). However, even if they could
be, it would be of no moment as there was no single instance of ineffective assistance in

Petitioner’s case. See United States v. Rivera, 900 F.2d 1462, 1471 (10th Cir. 1990) (*[A]

cumulative-error analysis should evaluate only the effect of matters determined to be error,
not the cumnulative effect of non-errors.”).

Moreover, Petitioner’s claim is wit:ilout merit. “Relevant factors to consider in
evaluating a claim of cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity
and character of the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v, State, 116 Nev.
1, 17,992 P.2d 845, 855 (2000).

i
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As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totality of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 34429 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of heroin, .537 grams of cocaine, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The quantity of methamphetamine
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the discovery of 1-inch by 1l-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front of his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding of probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.

Qrder of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error i
Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guilt is close, the quantity
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged" in determining
cumulative error), We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED.

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, Petitioner has failed to
establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable likelihood of a better
outcome at trial. Even if Petitioner had made such a showing, he has certainly failed to show
that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors was so prejudicial as to undermine this
Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Because the issue of guilt was not
close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine confidence in the outcome of his
case, the State submits that Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error is without merit and that this
Court should deny the same.

IV.

PETITIONER IS NOT ENTITLED TO AN EVIDENTIARY HEARING

NRS 34.770 determines when a defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing. It reads:
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1. The judge or justice, upon review of the return, answer and all
supporting documents which are filed, shall determine whether
an evidentiary hearing is required. A getitioner must not be
discharged or committed to the custody of a person other than the
respondent unless an evidentiary hearing is held.

2. If the judge or justice determines that the petitioner is not
entitled to relief and an evidentiary hearing is not required, he
shall dismiss the petition without a hearing.

3. If the judge or justice determines that an evidentiary hearing
is required, Ee shall grant the writ and shall set a date for the
hearing.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that if a petition can be resolved without
expanding the record, then no evidentiary hearing is necessary. Marshall v. State, 110 Nev.

1328, 885 P.2d 603 (1994); Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 356, 46 P.3d 1228, 1231 (2002). A

defendant is entitled to an evidentiary hearing if his petition is supported by specific factual
allegations, which, if true, would entitle him to relief unless the factual allegations are repelled
by the record. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at 605; see also Hargrove, 100 Nev. at
503, 686 P.2d at 225 (holding that “[a] defendant seeking post-conviction relief is not entitled

to an evidentiary hearing on factual allegatioﬁs belied or repelled by the record”). “A claim is
‘belied” when it is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as it existed at the time the
claim was made.” Mann, 118 Nev. at 354, 46 P.3d at 1230 (2002). It is improper to hold an
evidentiary hearing simply to make a comﬁlete record. See State v. Eighth Judicial Dist. Court,

121 Nev. 225, 234, 112 P.3d 1070, 1076 (%005) (“The district court considered itself the

‘equivalent of . . . the trial judge’ and consequently wanted ‘to make as complete a record as
possible.” This is an incorrect basis for an evidentiary hearing.”).

Further, the United States Supreme Court has held that an evidentiary hearing is not
required simply because counsel’s actions are challenged as being unreasonable strategic
decisions. Harrington, 562 U.S. at 88, 131 S. Ct. at 788. Although courts may not indulge post
hoc rationalization for counsel’s decision making that contradicts the available evidence of
counsel’s actions, neither may they insist counsel confirm every aspect of the strategic basis
for his or her actions. Id. There is a “strong presumption” that counsel’s attention to certain
issues to the exclusion of others reflects trial tactics rather than “sheer neglect.” Id. (citing

Y
Yarborough v. Gentry, 540 U.S. 1, 124 S. Ct. 1 (2003)). Strickland calls for an inquiry in the
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objective reasonableness of counsel’s performance, not counsel’s subjective state of mind. 466
U.S. 668, 688, 104 S. Ct. 2052, 2065 (1994) (emphasis added).

Here, there is no reason to expand the record because Petitioner fails to present specific
factual allegations that would entitle him to relief. Marshall, 110 Nev. at 1331, 885 P.2d at
605. Petitioner’s claims are either waived as fiot having been properly raised on direct appeal,
bare and naked allegations, or belied by the record. There is nothing else for an evidentiary
hearing to determine, and Petitioner gives no specific reasons for why an evidentiary hearing
would be needed. There is no need to expand the record because Petitioner’s claims are
meritless and can be disposed of on the existing record. Therefore, an evidentiary hearing is

not warranted in this matter.

CONCLUSION

Based on the foregoing, the State respectfully requests that this Court order Defendant’s
Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) be denied.
DATED this 3 l&*’ day of January, 2020.
Respectfully submitted,

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #00 1565

BY v%f

Chlef De uty Distf
Nevada Bar #005734
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CERTIFICATE OF MAILING v
I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this 2 !S day of

January, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER

1200 Prison Rd.

Lovelock, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary tj"or the District Attorney's Office

TRP/cg/L2
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. STATE BAR OF NEVADA

December 19, 2017

Christopher Keller, #81840
Ely State Prison

PO Box 1989

Ely, NV 89301

3100 W. Charleston Blvd.

Suite 100
Las Vegas, NV 89102

Nancy Graham phone 702,382.2200

’ coll frec 800.254.2797

244 Mo”y Court fax 702.385.2878

Las Vegas, NV 89183

Sent via email only: mrsnancygraham@cox.net 9456 Double R Blvd, Stc. B

- Reno, NV 89521-5977

phone 775.329.4100

RE: Fee Dispute No. FD17-117: Keller/Graham v. Feliciano fax 775.329.0522

Dear Petitioners Keller/Graham: wiww.nvbarorg

This letter acknowledges receipt of your completed Petitioner's Agreement for Arbitration of Fee

Dispute. We have opened a file in this matter and assigned a case number (please refer to it in
by the future). Additionally, a copy of your Petition has been forwarded to the Respondent for a
reply.

Pursuant to the Rules of Procedure for the Fee Dispute Arbitration Committee, the matter will
automatically proceed to mediation. Once we are in receipt of the Respondent’s reply, a copy will
be provided to you and the matter will be assigned to a mediator to assist in resolving your claim.
The process for obtaining a response and assigning a mediator can take up to a month to
complete.

The Respondent will be provided with a Respondent’s Agreement for Arbitration of Fee Dispute;
however submission of this agreement is voluntary. If the Respondent’s Agreement is received
and the mediation attempt is unsuccessful, the matter will proceed onto binding arbitration. If
, the Respondent’s Agreement is not submitted and mediation is not successful, the claim will then
& be closed.

PR

The entire fee dispute procedure can take approximately 6 to 8 months to complete. For more
information about the fee dispute process, please review the Rules of Procedure for Fee Dispute
Arbitration and/or the Fee Dispute Committee webpage on www.nvbar.org/feedispute.

Sincerely,

i Britz
Client Protection Coordinato

- | 126



E1GHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

. CASE SUMMARY
CASE NoO. C-16-312717-1

EVENTS
02/16/2016 ‘@ Criminal Bindover Packet Las Vegas Justice Court

02/17/2016] &) Information
Information

03/02/2016 ) Reporters Transcript
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings Preliminary Hearing - 2/16/2016

03/04/2016] Q) Reporters Transcript
Reporter's Transcript of Proceedings Preliminary Hearing 2/16/16

03/24/2016| &) Notice
Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual Criminal

03/24/2016| &) Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses
Notice of Witnesses

03/29/2016] 1] Notice of Witnesses and/or Expert Witnesses
Notice of Expert Witnesses

04/29/2016 ‘-@ Amended Information
Amended Information

06/01/2016] ] Motion
Motion to Reduce Bail

-l

N

06/10/2016/ & Motion to Suppress ™~
Defendant's Motion to Siupress

T — T
~

06/13/2016 1@ Motion to Dismiss Counsel \
Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel

e

06/16/2016 '& Receipt of Copy
Receipt of Copv

06/172016] & Opposition
State’s Opposition to Defendant's Motion to Suppress

07/18/2016] &) Notice
Notice of Intent to Seek Punishment as a Habitual Criminal

08/10/2016 €] Motion
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel

—

08/12/2016 @ Certificate of Mailing
Certificate of Mailing

08/18/2016| &) Order

Order Denying Defendant's Motion to Suppress and Defendant's Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint
Alternative Counsel

P1‘?? OF 16 Printed on 05/23/2019 at 11:24 AM



EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

i CASE SUMMARY
CASE NO. C-16-312717-1

08/24/2017 @ Notice of Appeal (criminal)
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robett
Notice of Appeal

08/25/2017 Case Appeal Statement

Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Case Appeal Statement

10/05/2017, Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Proceeding Sentencing

11/13/2017 Recorders Transcript of Hearing

Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Hearing Re: 3/6/17 - Jury Trial - Day I - Partial Transcript (Excludes Jury Voir
Dire)

11/13/2017 ‘E Recorders Transcript of Hearing

Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Hearing Re: 3/7/17 - Jury Trial - Day 2 - Partial Transcript (Excludes Jury Voir
Dire)

1171372017 Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Party: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert .
Recorders Rough Draft Transcript of Hearing Re: 3/10/17 - Jury Trial - Day 5

11/13/2017 Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Transcript of Proceedings Rough Draft Transcript of Jury Trial- Day 4, 3/9/17

1171322017 &) Recorders Transcript of Hearing
Transcript of Proceedings Rough Drafi Transcript of Jury Trial- Day 3, 3/8/17

———
.,

/ =0 S
11142017 ] Notice of Motion \>
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

11/14/2017 Motion for Appointment of Attorney
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert,
Motion for Appointment of Counsel

1171472017 Motion to Withdraw As Counsel
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record or in the Alternative, Requeest for Records/ Court Case Documents

11/29/2017 Notice of Change of Hearing
Notice of Change of Hearing

12/12/2017 Amended Judgment of Conviction
AMENDED JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION (JURY TRIAL)

o —

03/22/2018 Motion for Appointment
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

P, OF 16 Printed on 05/23/2019 at 11:24 AM
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E1GHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT

. CASE SUMMARY
CASE No. C-16-312717-1

Motion for the Appointment of Counssel and Motion 1o Dismiss Attorney on Record

04/11/2018 Order

Filed By: Plaintiff State of Nevada

Order Granting Defendant's Motion for the Appointment of Counsel: Order Denying Defendant's Request for
Evidentiary Hearing

04/13/2018 @ Opposition
Filed By: Plaintiff State of Nevada
State's Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record

05/10/2018 Order Denying
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record

1171422018 QINv Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment - Affirmed
Nevada Supreme Court Clerk's Certificate/Remittitur Judgment - Affirmed

12/31/2018] Q") Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel of Record or in the Alternative Request for Records/Court Case Document

12/31/2018 ‘&] Notice of Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

02/01/2019 @ Order Granting

Filed By: Plaintiff State of Nevada

Order Granting Petittioner's Pro Per Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel of Record. Or In the Alternative, Request for
Records/Court Case Document

04/03/2019| &Y Motion

Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert
Request for Records/Court Case Documents

04/03/2019) 3] Notice of Motion
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

04/03/2019 ‘@ Motion to Compel
Filed By: Defendant Keller, Christopher Robert

DISPOSITIONS
02/18/2016] Plea (Judicial Officer: Kephart, William D.)
1. TRAFFICKING IN CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
Not Guilty
PCN: 0025604569 Sequence:

2. TRAFFICKING IN CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE
Not Guilty
PCN: Sequence:

3. POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE, MARIJUANA
Not Guilty
PCN: Sequence:

4. POSSESSION OF CONTROLLED SUBSTANCE WITH INTENT TO SELL
Not Guilty

P1Q?9' OF 16 Printed on 05/23/2019 at 11:24 AM
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STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
PARKER BROOKS

Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #011927

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
THE STATE OF NEVADA,
Plaintiff,
CASE NO.
~YS-
DEPT NO.

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Defendant.

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION OF INMATE
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840

DATE OF HEARING: April 23; 2020

TIME OF HEARING: 08:30 AM

TO: NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS; and

TO: JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada:
Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by STEVEN

B. WOLFSON, District Aﬁomey, through PARKER BROOKS, Deputy District Attorney, and

good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
shall be, and is, hereby directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, Defendant
in Case Number A-19-800950-W, wherein THE STATE OF NEV@A is the Plaintiff,
inasmuch as the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER is currently incarcerated in the
NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS located in Clark County, Nevada, and his

presence will be required in Las Vegas, Nevada, commencing on April 23, 2020, at the hour

131 .

Case Number: A-19-800850-W

Electronically Filed
3/20/2020 10:37 AM

Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

A-19-800950-W
XIX
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of 08:30 o'clock AM and continuing until completion of the prosecution's case against the said
Defendant.

IT 1S FURTHER ORDERED that JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County,
Nevada, shall accept and retain custody of the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER‘ in
the Clark County Detention Center, Las Vegas, Nevada, pending completion of said matter in
Clark County, or until the further Order of this Court; or in the alternative shall make all
arrangements for the transportation of the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER to and
from the Nevada Department of Corrections facility which are necessary to insure the
CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER's appearance in Clark County pending completion of
said matter, or until further Oljder of this Court.

DATED this /& day of March, 2020.

félfg EL%QCI ]Uﬁég’ |

V)

STEVEN B, WOLFSON
Clark County District
Nevada Bar#00T25

W20161201 8RO AI0MEFO 1 410-OPT{KELLER _ CHRISTOPHER}-00). DOCX
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CLERK OF THE COURT

NAME, ii_LV\ mk’ﬁﬂ\'vcf‘ I’ﬂ(l ((J)Lm
ﬁm{s)?&’. EPRTY-"A

-V5-

CASE NO,

o 5 F- - 20090 v
NAME, <STRIE oF NEVADPT TELT rora

> |
Responsent  Defendaat(s).

COMES NOW, \_J‘x‘ O pheR, ¢ g“ * in PRO PER and herein above respectfully

Moves this Honorable Court for a“ Hire Iy S ot a T o

B T P .
.PIT'J-J‘-..”'(' S anu

= 0 Ll

Pple DUlE Vg B tept T den v mfess o0 2 € gn, els

The above is made and based on the following Memorandum of Points and Authorities.

RECEIVED
WY 5
CLERK OF THE GUUR!
1
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE BY MAIL

Pursuant to NRCP Rule 5 (b), I hereby certify that [ am the Petitioner/Defendant named herein

and that on this /}}G'i “day of _I 0o, ,20. 1} ,1mailed a true and correct copy of this
. . .
foregoing __ roiu- Ty L@ flgos e to the following:

S “}.’F yle o D(:i;ﬂ‘ 5@{'%

ﬁ;.;'i,};

2 () {-E:bvw;' Ave Ea .

' I A
co1 s . . wily Y
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The undersigned does hereby affirm that the preceding document,

AFFIRMATION

Pursuant io NRS 239b.030

{f\.!‘('\.\ 1\} - t.- "_) Q\v}& PR{.‘J’E‘\J\T \‘Q(

Filed in case number:

(Title of Document)

m/ Document does not contain the social security number of any person

Or

0 Document contains the social security number of a person as required by:

O A Specific state or federal law, to wit

Or

0 For the administration of a public program

Or

a For an application for a federal or state grant

Or

o Confidential Family Court Information Sheet

(NRS 125.130, NRS 125.230, and NRS 125b.055)

-

DATE: Y 77-202
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Electronically Filed
09/16/2020 11:20 AM

s i

CLERK QF THE COURT

OPI

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
MICHAEL R. DICKERSON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013476

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada, 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintift

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintft,
CASE NO. A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO. XIX

_VS_

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Defendant.

ORDER FOR PRODUCTION VIA VIDEO CONFERENCE
OF INMATE CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, BAC #81840

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 AM

TO: NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS; and

TO: JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County, Nevada:
Upon the ex parte application of THE STATE OF NEVADA, Plaintiff, by STEVEN

B. WOLFSON, District Attorney, through MICHAEL R. DICKERSON, Chief Deputy
District Attorney, and good cause appearing therefor,

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS
shall be, and 1s, hereby directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER for purposes
of appearing via video conference, Defendant 1n Case Number A-19-800950-W, wherein THE
STATE OF NEVADA 1s the Plamtff, inasmuch as the said CHRISTOPHER ROBERT
KELLER is currently incarcerated in the NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS

located 1n Clark County, Nevada, and his presence via video conference will be required in
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Las Vegas, Nevada, commencing on October 1, 2020, at the hour of 08:30 o'clock AM and

continuing until completion of the prosecution's case against the said Defendant.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that JOSEPH LOMBARDO, Sheriff of Clark County,
Nevada, and the NEVADA DEPARTMENT OF CORRECTIONS shall be, and is, hereby
directed to produce CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER for purposes of appearing via video

conference on the above date and time, and until completion of said matter, or until further

Order of this Court.
DATED this day of September

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

BY /s/ MICHAEL R. DICKERSON

el

%ﬁi\this 16th day of September, 2020

0

DISTRICT JUDGE
1A9 0B5 9ED6 FECO
William D. Kephart
District Court Judge

MICHAEL R. DICKERSON
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #013476

Im/L-2

SULARKCOURTY 1A NET-CRMUASE 2016048 1 3: 201 6095 :«c‘-om-;fggmmm:

2

ROIBERT KELLER 0011300




20

21

22

23

24

26

27

28

CSERY

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Chnistopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
Vs, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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Electronically Filed
8/16/2020 12:05 PM
Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA W ’E,

oo ok

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) Case No.:  A-19-800950-W
Vs.
State of Nevada, Detendant(s) Department 19

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plainitff's Motion to Appoint Counsel in the above-entitled

matter is set for hearing as follows:

Date: October 22, 2020
Time: Chambers
Location:

Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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:/In Propria Persona . : _
Post Office Box 650 (HDSP) ; SEP 16 2020

Indian Springs, Nevada. 89018 .

DISTRICT COURT
_ClaRK. .COUNTY, NEVADA
[ygidphen 2. Kelleg )
Plantife ; A-19- 8000\50 w
: Case N
" State of Newepa ) Dasel:
DECE0ANT ; ept. No. X1 X enzing
)) Docket REQ&@T@

MOTION TO APPOINT NSE
DATE OF HEARING:
TIME OF HEARING:

COMES NOW the Defendant ahm‘a‘\'o{)\'\&ﬂ Kd\?@ , in proper persona and moves

this court for an Order granting him counsel in the proceeding action.
This motion is made and based upon all papers and pleadings on file herein and attached

points and authorities.

/\0/ - ) .
Dated this_Z~day of 5@7%4455{ 2020,

Respectfu mitted,
/92 : i

T & Kelle
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POINTS AND AUTHORITIES

NRS 34.750 Appointment of Counsel for indigents; pleading supplemental to petition;
response to dismiss.

“If the Court is satisfied that the allegation of indigency is true and the petition is not
dismissed summarily, the Court may appoint counsél to represent the petitioner.”

NRS 171.188 Procedure for appointment of attorney for indigent defendant.

“Any defendant charged with a public offense who is an indigent may, be oral statement to the
District Judge, justice of peace, municipal judge or master, request the appointment of an attorney to
represent him.”

NRS 178.397 Assignment of counsel.

“Every defendant accused of a gross misdemeanor or felony who is financially unable
to obtain counsel is entitled to have counsel assigned to represent him at every stage of the

proceedings from his initial appearance before a magistrate or the court through appeal, unless he

{l waives such appointment.”

WHEREFORE, petitioner prays the Court will grant his motion for appointment of counsel to
allow him the assistance that is needed to insure that justice is served, BecAwsE Kellee i¢

anABle do Represent Himself I ANY Hearing .

Dated this 20 day of QC?][G'MEZ‘G)”\ ,2020.

Res%%%iﬂftt%
Chesstophe £ el
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day of SF{\)\'@M\%L 2020, I mailed a true and correct copy of the foregoing “

CERTIFICATE ERVI

BY IL,

I, O)\r\@%’(()?\l\é@ R, W\\QL hereby certify, pursuant to NRCP 5(b) that on this [N

”

Mokion Y vt Counvee)

\

by depositing it in the High Desert State Prison , Legal Library, First-Class Postage, Fully prepaid,

addressed as follows:

Gleven D). Grieeson

200 Leusd e, 3™ o

i~

A5 VEGne NV @155 1)

d -
DATED: THIS_.Z ' day of 57%07’ emBEt 2020
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DISTRICT COURT

_(Clagl.  county, NEVADA

Distodhee €. Kelled )
| P e ) CASE NO. ﬁ-fol - 5009 S0-W
NS \& % DEPT'NO. XX

SAAYE of NEVADA §
e CeNOANT ;

)

)

)

ORDER

Upon reading the motion of the

requesting.appointment of counsel and good cause appearing;
IT IS HEREBY ORDERED that petitioner's motion for appointment
of counsel is granted.

The following named attorney has taken the appointment:

Attorney's Name

Dated this day of '

g ' : DISTRICT JUDGE

7

‘ ﬂ/i%{/&% felize

IN PROPER PERSON
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ASTA

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER,

VS,

STATE OF NEVADA,

Electronically Filed
10/21/2020 3:35 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THEC

IN THE EIGHTH JUDICIAL DISTRICT COURT OF THE

STATE OF NEVADA IN AND FOR
THE COUNTY OF CLARK

Plaintiff(s},

Dept No: XIX

Detendant(s},

l.

2.

3.

CASE APPEAL STATEMENT
Appellant(s): Christopher R. Keller
Judge: William D. Kephart

Appellant(s): Christopher R. Keller

Counsel:

4.

Christopher R. Keller #81840
P.O. Box 650
Indian Springs, NV 89070

Respondent (s): State of Nevada

Counsel;

A-19-B00950-W

Steven B. Wolfson, District Attorney
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89155-2212
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5. Appellantis}'s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: N/A
Permission Granted: N/A

Respondent{s}'s Attorney Licensed in Nevada: Yes
Permission Granted: N/A

6. Has Appellant Ever Been Represented by Appointed Counsel In District Court: No
7. Appellant Represented by Appointed Counsel On Appeal: N/A
8. Appellant Granted Leave to Proceed in Forma Pauperis™*: N/A

**Expires | vear from date filed

Appellant Filed Application to Proceed in Forma Pauperis: No

Date Application(s) filed: N/A

9. Date Commenced in District Court: August 26, 2019
0. Brief Description of the Nature of the Action: Civil Writ

Type of Judgment or Order Being Appealed: Civil Writ of Habeas Corpus
11, Previous Appeal: No

Supreme Court Docket Number(s): N/A
2. Child Custody or Visitation: N/A
13. Possibility of Settlement: Unknown

Dated This 21 day of October 2020.

Steven D. Grierson, Clerk of the Court

/s/ Heather Ungermann

Heather Ungermann, Deputy Clerk
200 Lewis Ave

PO Box 551601

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-1601
(702) 671-0512

cc: Christopher R. Keller

A-19-800950-W -2-
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CLERK QF THE COURT

FFCO

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Petitioner,
CASE NO:  A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO: XIX

-V5-
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW, AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable WILLIAM D. KEPHART, District
Court Judge, on the 1st day of October, 2020, Petitioner being present, not being represented
by counsel, Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County District
Attorney, through MICHAEL DICKERSON, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having
considered the matter, including the briefs, transcripts, testimony of Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. and
documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law:.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
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(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Ot Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Pumishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance”).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner, On May 4, 2016, Mr,
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuance”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson v. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (*Third

Continuance™). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and

/
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Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also

denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied

Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance™). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance™). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017,

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms, Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to
bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
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51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that senitencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count 1- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
{10) years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 —a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)
months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count &; for a total aggregate sentence of LIFE 1n the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20} years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018,

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 21, 2020. On February 12, 2020, Petitioner
filed a “Supplemental Response to State’s Response to Detendant’s Pro Per Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus.” Thereafter, on September 16, 2020, Petitioner filed a Motion to Appoint
Counsel.

Petitioner’s Motions came on for evidentiary hearing before this Court on October 1,
2020, with trial counsel Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. called to testify. After the hearing, this Court

made the following findings and conclusions:
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a
2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Otficer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Otficer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avold him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.

Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s 1dentification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the tact that $20
bills were folded in increments ot $100), the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, S5 and $10 bills.

During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcufts and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Otficer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed

that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
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nervousness, the tact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Detendant’s behavior while
Ofticer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leaty residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gold bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the

/
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substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight ot 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for
Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’'s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on 1it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams, Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

/
/
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ANALYSIS
I. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if 1t presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

/i
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Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523, Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for tailure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them 1n post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).

“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably

available at the time of default.” Clem v. State, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)

(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

Nev. 192,275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.’” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952,960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S, 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that atfords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248, 252,71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003} (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual
allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just

conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not
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sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as 1t existed at the time the claim was made.”

Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive
claims that could and should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal
sentence; 2) Ground Two: Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliability; 3) Ground
Three: No exigency to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed
to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6)
Ground Six: Destroyed or lost body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony
of Officer D. Lopez. Each of these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal. Therefore, this Court concludes, pursuant to Evans, these 1ssues were substantively
waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them earlier. This Court further concludes
Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS 34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, this Court finds that Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and
information needed to raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal, and Petitioner does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of
these issues at that time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether
the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on
the day trial was set to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying
Appellant’s pretrial motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence
pursuant to a search warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls
introduced by the State; and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. This Court concludes that
Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to ignore his procedural defaults because all of the
necessary facts and law were available for a timely appeal and he has not alleged an
impediment external to the defense prevented raising these claims at the appropriate time.

Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

11
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II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DO
NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF
To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove

he was denied “reasonably eftective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865

P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for
counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have
been different. 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430,432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984} (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[T]here 1s no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was

ineffective, Means v, State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance 1s ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Enms v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Tnal counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, 1f
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits ot the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

reasonably eftective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711

12
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(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himselt against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what 1s impossible or unethical. If there i1s no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, [15 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his inetfective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”
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allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner| must allege specitic facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses 1s within the discretion of trial counsel and will not

be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 (2002); see¢ also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-

prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114

(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess

reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every
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‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineftective for the tollowing reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3} for not
using another investigator because his mvestigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;
4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. This Court finds that Petitioner has
failed to demonstrate that trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard, as
trial counsel not only filed a Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he
conducted an evidentiary hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified.
Exhibits were presented as well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to
Suppress. Therefore, this Court finds that trial counsel appropriately raised the suppression
issues and properly conducted the evidentiary hearing. Further, Petitioner fails to show how,
but for counsel’s errors, the outcome of the suppression proceedings would have been
different. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s first claim of ineffective assistance
does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. This Court finds that this claim likewise fails to demonstrate how counsel’s
performance fell below a reasonable standard, as Appellate counsel did raise several
meritorious issues on appeal, including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence

from Petitioner’s residence. The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did
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not abuse its discretion by denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his

condo through a search warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides

no evidence and only makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and
naked allegations are not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225. This Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that the omitted 1ssue would have had
a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114.
There is a strong presumption that appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell
within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560
(citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and

naked allegations, this Court concludes he cannot overcome the strong presumption of
counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief 1s not warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502,
686 P.2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr, Frizzell is the same investigator Mr, Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel 1s expected to conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,

91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,

472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations
or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.

Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,

104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and investigation is both encouraged and

common practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators

are “subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
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case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.’” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot show trial counsel fell below a
reasonable standard for not using another investigator simply because Petitioner was
apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular “relationship”™

with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983). There is no

requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel i1s reasonably
effective in his representation. See id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is not entitled to a
particular relationship with his atterney’s investigator, who 1s either also court appointed or
who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. Therefore, this
Court concludes that the choice of investigator was a reasonable decision to make and does
not amount to deficient representation under Strickland. Further, this Court finds that
Petitioner fails to demonstrate how the employment of a different investigator would have
benefitted the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Theretore, this Court concludes that Petitioner 1s
not entitled to relief.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. This Court finds that there is no requirement for a
specific number of visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance
of counsel. Further, Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel
also communicates with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars.

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best
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criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland,
466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. Theretore, this Court concludes that Petitioner has failed
to demonstrate trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard. Further, this
Court finds that Petitioner fails to demonstrate how more jail visits would have changed the
outcome at trial. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner 1s not entitled to relief on this
claim.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was meffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testity that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “[s]trategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;
see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
these alleged witnesses. This Court finds that Petitioner fails to establish if trial counsel even
had sufficient information to locate these unnamed witnesses. Moreover, a review of the record
demonstrates that trial counsel was, in fact, not given timely information about the witness
Petitioner describes as having to wait so long she left the trial. This witness, a woman named
Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence a few times, was discussed on the record on the

fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what happened here. While you were probably walking
down the hallway to come in, [ was on the phone with the witness that you said
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- [ said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
p she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

I
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Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court indicated it would allow

her to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's I_giomg to be otfering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that 1s fine, Your Honor. | acruall?: _]llSt learned of her
otential as a witness yesterday evening trom an e-mail, which I received.
EI)'HE COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
reviously that we discussed before we started the trial?
R. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable, As such,
this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s
claim therefore fails.

Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. NRS
176.015; NRS 175.552. Therefore, this Court finds that counsel cannot be deemed ineffective
for failing to call family and witnesses to speak on his behalf at his sentencing, as Petitioner
was not entitled to this under Nevada law.

Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden

ot proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
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Conviction was atfirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly

unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson

v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for
the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the detense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When detense counsel does not have a solid case, the best

strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Thus, this Court finds that

neither the State nor trial counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was
fully covered during the direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript

of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 44-147. Consequently, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim

fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-tnal process. However,
this Court finds that Petitioner does not properly allege that trial counsel was aware of any
mental health or medication issues. Petitioner does not even specify exactly what mental
health history or medications he 1s referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue.
As such, this Court finds Petitioner’s argument amounts to a bare and naked allegation under
Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the record that demonstrate evidence
of insanity or incompetence. Further, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to argue how any
mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of the instant
case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.
III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE CLAIM

FOR HABEAS RELIEF

The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

Further, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in evaluating a claim
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ot cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of
the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17,992 P.2d
845, 855 (2000).

As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totallty of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 34429 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of herom, 537 grams of cocaine, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The gquantity of methamphetamme
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the ::ZILlscovery of l-inch by l-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front ot his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding ot probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.
Order of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guﬂt is close, the quantlty
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged” in determining
cumulative error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED.

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, this Court finds that Petitioner
has failed to establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable
likelihood of a better outcome at trial. This Court further finds that, even if Petitioner had
made such a showing, he has failed to show that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors
was so prejudicial as to undermine this Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case.
Because the issue of guilt was not close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine
confidence in the outcome of his case, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim of

cumulative error 1s without merit.

/
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Christopher Keller’s Pro Per

Petition tor Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) shall be, and 1s, DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and is,

DENIED as Defendant is not entitled to counsel at this point.

DATED this day of October, 2020.
Dated this 2nd day of November, 2020

DISTRICT JUDGE
12A EB1 1B70 A32A

STEVEN B. WOLFSON William D. Kephart
Clark County District Attorney District Court Jud
Nevada Bar #001565 e urt Juege

BY

RB N for

TALTEEN PANDUKH
Chief Deputy Dfstrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #00

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this day of

, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

cg/l.2

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER
1200 PRISON ROAD

LOVELOCK, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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CSERY

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Chnistopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
Vs, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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Electronically Filed
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Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

I || NEFF
2 DISTRICT COURT
3 CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
4
CHRISTOPHER KELLER,
5 Case No: A-19-800950-W
Petitioner,
6 Dept No: XIX
7 VS,

g || STATE OF NEVADA,

NOTICE OF ENTRY OF FINDINGS OF FACT,
9 Respondent, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW AND ORDER

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE that on November 2, 2020, the court entered a decision or order in this
matter, a true and correct copy of which is attached to this notice.

You may appeal to the Supreme Court from the decision or order of this court. If you wish to appeal, vou
13 || must file a notice of appeal with the clerk of this court within thirty-three {33) days after the date this notice is

mailed to you, This notice was mailed on November 5, 2020,

14

15 STEVEN D, GRIERSON, CLERK OF THE CQURT
/s/ Amanda Hampton

16 Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk

17

18

19 CERTIFICATE OF E-SERVICE / MAILING

50 I hereby certify that on this 5 day of November 2020, I served a copy of this Notice of Entry on the

following:
21 M By e-mail:
2 Clark County District Attorney’s Office
- Auorney General's Office — Appellate Division-
23
24 M The United States mail addressed as tollows:
Christopher Keller # 81840
3 P.O. Box 650
Indian Springs, NV §9070

260

27 /s/ Amanda Hampton

g Amanda Hampton, Deputy Clerk
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CLERK QF THE COURT

FFCO

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565
TALEEN R. PANDUKHT
Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #005734

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, Nevada 89155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER,
#1804258

Petitioner,
CASE NO:  A-19-800950-W

DEPT NO: XIX

-V5-
THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Respondent.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF
LAW, AND ORDER

DATE OF HEARING: October 1, 2020
TIME OF HEARING: 8:30 a.m.

THIS CAUSE having come before the Honorable WILLIAM D. KEPHART, District
Court Judge, on the 1st day of October, 2020, Petitioner being present, not being represented
by counsel, Respondent being represented by STEVEN B. WOLFSON, Clark County District
Attorney, through MICHAEL DICKERSON, Deputy District Attorney, and the Court having
considered the matter, including the briefs, transcripts, testimony of Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. and
documents on file herein, now therefore, the Court makes the following findings of fact and
conclusions of law:.

FINDINGS OF FACT, CONCLUSIONS OF LAW
STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On February 17, 2016, Christopher Robert Keller (hereinafter “Petitioner”) was

charged by way of Information with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking In Controlled Substance
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(Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 - Possession Ot Controlled
Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC 51127); Counts 4, 5, 6, and
7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category D Felony - NRS
453.337 - NOC 51141); and Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership Or Possession Of Firearm By
Prohibited Person (Category B Felony - NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). On February 18, 2016,
Petitioner entered a plea of not guilty and invoked his constitutional right to a speedy trial.

On March 24, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Pumishment as a Habitual
Criminal. At Calendar Call on April 13, 2016, Petitioner’s counsel, Michael Sanft, Esq.,
announced he had a conflict for the trial date due to the upcoming trial. Petitioner stated he
wanted to go to trial on the original date, and due to counsel’s conflict, the Court ordered the
trial date reset. On this date, the State also extended a plea offer to Petitioner for one count of
Low-Level Trafficking in a Controlled Substance and one count of Possession of a Firearm by
a Prohibited Person, with Petitioner stipulating to small habitual treatment and a stipulated
maximum sentence of twelve and a half (12.5) years. The trial date was reset to May 2, 2016
(“First Continuance”).

At Calendar Call on April 20, 2016, Petitioner stated he wanted to go to trial and was
willing to represent himself if need be. On April 29, 2016, the State filed an Amended
Information, charging Petitioner with the same charges as the original Information. On April
29, 2016, Mr. Sanft requested to withdraw due to a conflict of interest. The Court granted the
request and appointed Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. to represent Petitioner, On May 4, 2016, Mr,
Frizzell confirmed as counsel. Due to the change in counsel, the trial date was vacated and
reset to June 27, 2016 (“Second Continuance”).

On June 10, 2016, Petitioner filed a Motion to Suppress. The State filed an Opposition
on June 17, 2016. On June 20, 2016, Petitioner requested more time to file a Reply to the
State’s Opposition, and the Court vacated the trial date of June 27, 2016, and ordered Calendar
Call on July 20, 2016, and a Jackson v. Denno Hearing on July 21, 2016 (*Third

Continuance™). On June 13, 2016, Petitioner filed a Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and

/
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Appoint Alternate Counsel. The District Court denied the Motion on July 21, 2016, after
hearing from Petitioner.

On July 18, 2016, the State filed a Notice of Intent to Seek Habitual Treatment. On July
21, 2016, the State also informed the Court that it had extended a new plea offer for one count
of Mid-Level Trafficking and one count of Possession of a Firearm by a Prohibited Person,
with the State retaining the right to argue at sentencing but having no opposition to the counts
running concurrently. Petitioner rejected the State’s offer. On July 21, 2016, the Court also

denied Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress after the Jackson v. Denno hearing. The Court denied

Petitioner’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Counsel and Appoint Alternate Counsel. The Order
denying the motions was filed on August 18, 2016. On July 21, 2017, Defense counsel
requested another continuance, stating that due to the Motion to Suppress, he had not been
able to prepare for trial (“Fourth Continuance™). The Court granted the continuance and reset
the trial date for September 19, 2016. At Calendar Call on September 14, 2016, Petitioner
waived his speedy trial right and requested a continuance (“Fifth Continuance™). The Court
granted the continuance and reset the trial to March 6, 2017,

Both Petitioner and the State announced ready for the March 6, 2017 trial date, which
was the sixth trial setting in the case. On March 6, 2017, the day trial was due to begin, Amy
Feliciano, Esq., appeared in Court and attempted to substitute in as trial counsel. Ms, Feliciano
informed the Court that she had been retained by Petitioner’s mother sometime in early
February but had not moved to substitute in as counsel until March 6, 2017 due to multiple
medical and personal problems. As Ms. Feliciano was unprepared for trial without a sixth
continuance being granted, the Court denied Petitioner’s request for a continuance and ordered
trial to proceed with Mr. Frizzell as trial counsel.

On March 6, 2017, the State filed a Second Amended Information as the State chose to
bifurcate Counts 8 and 9 from the first seven (7) counts. The Second Amended Information
was filed in open court on March 6, 2017, charging Petitioner with Counts 1 and 2 - Trafficking
in Controlled Substance (Category A Felony - NRS 453.3385.3 - NOC 51160); Count 3 -
Possession of Controlled Substance, Marijuana (Category E Felony - NRS 453.336 - NOC
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51127); and Counts 4-7 - Possession Of Controlled Substance With Intent To Sell (Category
D Felony - NRS 453.337 - NOC 51141). Petitioner’s jury trial commenced on March 7, 2017,
and concluded on March 10, 2017, when the jury returned a verdict of guilty on all seven (7)
counts. A Third Amended Information was subsequently filed in open court which added
Counts 8 and 9 - Ownership or Possession of Firearm by Prohibited Person (Category B Felony
- NRS 202.360 - NOC 51460). The jury also returned verdicts of guilty on Counts 8 and 9.

On April 29, 2017, Ms. Feliciano substituted as counsel of record, and Mr. Frizzell
withdrew from his representation. Ms. Feliciano requested that senitencing be continued three
(3) times: on May 8, 2017, June 5, 2017, and June 19, 2017. On July 24, 2017, Ms. Feliciano
requested a fourth sentencing continuance, and Petitioner requested that she be dismissed as
counsel of record. The District Court granted Petitioner’s request, and re-appointed Mr.
Frizzell as Petitioner’s counsel. On July 31, 2017, the Court granted Mr. Frizzell a continuance
to allow him to retrieve Petitioner’s file from Ms. Feliciano.

On August 7, 2017, Petitioner was sentenced as follows: as to Count 1- LIFE in the
Nevada Department of Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10)
years in NDC; as to Count 2 — LIFE in the NDC with a minimum parole eligibility after ten
{10) years in the NDC; Count 2 to run concurrent with Count 1; as to Count 3 —a minimum of
twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48) months in the NDC; Count 3 to run
concurrent with Count 2; as to Count 4 — to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum
of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 4 to run concurrent with Count 3; as to Count 5
— a minimum of twelve (12) month and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC;
Count 5 to run concurrent with county 4; as to Count 6 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months
and a maximum of forty-eight (48) months in the NDC; Count 6 to run concurrent with Count
5; as to Count 7 - to a minimum of twelve (12) months and a maximum of forty-right (48)
months in the NDC; Count 7 to run concurrent with Count 6; as to Count 8 — Petitioner
sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
8 to run CONSECUTIVE to Counts 1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, and 7; and as to Count 9, Defendant
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sentenced under the large habitual criminal statute to LIFE in the Nevada Department of
Corrections (NDC) with a minimum parole eligibility after ten (10) years in the NDC; Count
9 to run concurrent with Count &; for a total aggregate sentence of LIFE 1n the NDC with a
minimum parole eligibility of TWENTY (20} years in the NDC, and five-hundred fifty-nine
(559) days credit for time served.

Petitioner’s Judgment of Conviction was filed on August 10, 2017. On August 24,
2017, Petitioner filed a Notice of Appeal. On November 14, 2017, Petitioner filed a Motion
for Appointment of Counsel and a Motion for Withdrawal of Attorney of Record. On
December 6, 2017, this Court granted Defendant’s Motion for Withdrawal of Counsel and
denied Defendant’s Motion for Appointment of Counsel.

An Amended Judgment of Conviction was filed on December 12, 2017, correcting the
statute to NRS 435.337 for Possession of Controlled Substance with Intent to Sell for Counts
4,5,6and 7.

On March 22, 2018, Petitioner filed another Motion for Appointment of Counsel and a
Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April 13, 2018, the State filed its Opposition to
Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel and Motion to Dismiss Attorney of Record. On April
16, 2018, the Court denied the motion as Petitioner’s appeal was still pending before the
Nevada Supreme Court.

On October 15, 2018, the Nevada Supreme Court affirmed Petitioner’s Judgment of
Conviction. Remittitur issued on November 9, 2018,

On August 26, 2019, Petitioner filed the instant Pro Per Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus. The State filed its Response on January 21, 2020. On February 12, 2020, Petitioner
filed a “Supplemental Response to State’s Response to Detendant’s Pro Per Petition for Writ
of Habeas Corpus.” Thereafter, on September 16, 2020, Petitioner filed a Motion to Appoint
Counsel.

Petitioner’s Motions came on for evidentiary hearing before this Court on October 1,
2020, with trial counsel Kenneth Frizzell, Esq. called to testify. After the hearing, this Court

made the following findings and conclusions:
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STATEMENT OF FACTS

On January 28, 2016 at approximately 2:25 a.m., Officer D. Lopez P#9806 with the Las
Vegas Metropolitan Police Department (hereinafter “LVMPD”) conducted a vehicle stop on a
2002 silver Dodge Stratus later found to be driven by Petitioner. Otficer Lopez observed the
vehicle travelling over 300 feet in a double-yellow left-hand turn lane, making a U-turn,
making an abrupt turn into a residential area, travelling at a high rate of speed, and having a
broken taillight. Otficer Lopez testified that it was obvious to him that the Dodge was trying
to put distance between them. Once the vehicle entered the residential area, it parked and
Petitioner quickly left the vehicle after Officer Lopez turned on his siren and lights. Officer
Lopez observed Petitioner quickly jump out of the vehicle, appearing as though he wanted to
avold him. Officer Lopez was able to smell the odor of marijuana coming from Petitioner’s
person as well as from the inside of the vehicle. Officer Lopez initiated a traffic stop.

Petitioner consented to allow Officer Lopez to remove his wallet from his pocket to see
Petitioner’s 1dentification. Upon removing the wallet, Officer Lopez noted that Petitioner was
carrying what appeared to be a large amount of cash. The cash was right outside of Petitioner’s
wallet, with multiple denominations, among which sixty-eight $20 bills separated in groups of
five (5) bills and folded in alternating directions. The amount of cash was determined to be
$2,187.00. Based upon the manner in which the cash was situated, and the amount of cash
that Petitioner carried, Officer Lopez determined that the cash was, in his training and
experience, consistent with the sale of narcotics. Officer Lopez based this conclusion, in part,
on the denominations of the cash, the way the cash was specifically folded, the tact that $20
bills were folded in increments ot $100), the direction the bills were facing, and the fact that a
“wad of cash” was made up of mostly smaller denominations, such as $20, S5 and $10 bills.

During the vehicle stop and pat down, there were approximately five (5) shots fired
within the apartment complex, so Officer Lopez placed Petitioner in handcufts and into the
patrol vehicle not only for Petitioner’s safety, but also so that Otficer Lopez would be able to
safely address any issues stemming from the shots fired. Additionally, Officer Lopez believed

that Petitioner would be a flight risk based upon his attempts to avoid the officer, his
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nervousness, the tact that he was so upset about being stopped, and Detendant’s behavior while
Ofticer Lopez conducted the pat down for weapons. Afterward, while standing outside the
driver’s door, Officer Lopez noticed a green leafy residue on the floorboard of the driver’s
side vehicle in plain view. Based upon the vehicle, the odor of marijuana emanating from
Petitioner and the vehicle, and the green leaty residue in plain view, Officer Lopez conducted
a probable cause search of Petitioner’s vehicle. During the probable cause search, Officer
Lopez located a clear sealable plastic bag containing multiple smaller clear plastic bags
underneath the driver’s seat, as well as another large sealable plastic bag between the driver’s
seat and the center console. At that point, based on the size of the bags found in Petitioner’s
car, as well as the amount of cash found on Petitioner’s person, Officer Lopez called for a K-
9 narcotics dog.

The K-9 narcotics dog alerted to the glove box, wherein Officer Lopez located a
concealed compartment. Officer Lopez testified he put his hand inside the hole and could feel
a bag with something solid inside. At that point in time, Officer Lopez stopped his search and
obtained a search warrant. Pursuant to the search warrant, Officer Lopez located several items
of evidence. Officer Lopez, Officer Henry, and Crime Scene Analyst Stephanie Thi searched
the vehicle. In the secret compartment, they found a black mesh bag, within which they found
two gold colored plastic bags. One of the gold bags contained a nylon drawstring bag within
which a loaded Beretta model 950, .22 caliber handgun was found. Moreover, Officer Lopez
also found several packages of a white crystal substance, plastic wrappers with a brown
substance, and a plastic bag with an off white powdery substance. Officer Lopez believed
these substances, based on his training and experience, to be various controlled substances,
respectively. Forensic Scientist Jason Althnether tested the substances and determined that
the white crystal substance was methamphetamine with a net weight of 344.29 grams, that the
brown substance was indeed heroin with a net weight of 33.92 grams, and that the white
powdery substance was indeed cocaine with a weight of 0.537 grams. Officer Lopez testified
he also found a blue powdery substance in the secret compartment. Mr. Althnether tested the

/
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substance and determined it was a combination of methamphetamine, amphetamine, and
cocaine with a weight ot 0.795 grams.

Based on what was discovered in the car, Officer Lopez obtained a search warrant for
Petitioner’s house located at 265 North Lamb, Unit F, the unit in front of which Petitioner had
parked the car. Officer Lopez, Officer Steven Hough, Detective Chad Embry and Detective
Michael Belmont searched Petitioner’'s residence. While searching the bedroom, Officer
Lopez found used smoking pipes, four (4) scales, a box of 9mm ammunition, and two (2) bags
containing a white crystalline substance. This substance was later tested by Mr. Althnether,
who determined the substance was methamphetamine. The first bag weighed 3.818 grams and
the second bag weighed 2.357 grams. Officer Lopez also found in the bedroom a brown
substance he also believed was heroin. Upon testing, Mr. Althnether confirmed the substance
was heroin, weighing .895 grams. In the storage closet, Detective Embry found .22 short
ammunition. In the bedroom, police also discovered a Ruger 9mm handgun and a pay stub
with Petitioner’s name on 1it, which was impounded by Officer Lopez. Upon searching the
kitchen, Detective Belmont also found a glass jar containing a green leafy substance believed
to be marijuana, which was confirmed as such by Mr. Althnether, finding the marijuana to
weigh 175 grams, Officers also found balloons, clean pipes, syringes and elastic bands in
Petitioner’s residence. Moreover, Crime Scene Analyst Thi testified that the Nevada DMV
registration found in the car listed Petitioner as the owner of the Dodge.

During trial, the State introduced a jail call wherein Petitioner told a woman to move
into his house and make it her home. Petitioner was placed under arrest and brought to
Northeast Area Command. While there, Officer Hough, who was watching Petitioner in an
interview room on a monitor, observed Petitioner pull out a small baggie from inside his pants,
and by the time he and another officer arrived in the room, Petitioner had a white powdery
substance on his nose and mouth. Upon searching Petitioner, Officer Hough found another
small bag of white powder attached to the left side of Petitioner’s scrotum.

/
/
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ANALYSIS
I. PETITIONER WAIVED HIS SUBSTANTIVE GROUNDS ONE (1) THROUGH
SEVEN (7) BY FAILING TO RAISE THEM ON DIRECT APPEAL
Pursuant to NRS 34.810:

1. The court shall dismiss a petition if the court determines that:

(b) The petitioner’s conviction was the result of a trial and the grounds for the
petition could have been:

(1) Presented to the trial court;

(2) Raised in a direct appeal or a prior petition for a writ of habeas corpus
or postconviction relief; or

(3) Raised in any other proceeding that the petitioner has taken to secure
relief from the petitioner’s conviction and sentence,

unless the court finds both good cause for the failure to present the
grounds and actual prejudice to the petitioner.

3. Pursuant to subsections 1 and 2, the petitioner has the burden of pleading and
proving specific facts that demonstrate:

(a) Good cause for the petitioner’s failure to present the claim or for presenting
the claim again; and

(b) Actual prejudice to the petitioner.

The Nevada Supreme Court has held that “challenges to the validity of a guilty plea and
claims of ineffective assistance of trial and appellate counsel must first be pursued in post-
conviction proceedings... [A]ll other claims that are appropriate for a direct appeal must be
pursued on direct appeal, or they will be considered waived in subsequent proceedings.”
Franklin v. State, 110 Nev. 750, 752, 877 P.2d 1058, 1059 (1994) (emphasis added)
(disapproved on other grounds by Thomas v. State, 115 Nev. 148, 979 P.2d 222 (1999)). “A

court must dismiss a habeas petition if 1t presents claims that either were or could have been
presented in an earlier proceeding, unless the court finds both cause for failing to present the
claims earlier or for raising them again and actual prejudice to the petitioner.” Evans v. State,
117 Nev. 609, 646-47, 29 P.3d 498, 523 (2001).

/i
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Furthermore, substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas and waived. NRS
34.724(2)(a); see also, Evans, 117 Nev. at 646-47, 29 P.3d at 523, Franklin, 110 Nev. at 752,
877 P.2d at 1059. Under NRS 34.810(3), a defendant may only escape these procedural bars

if they meet the burden of establishing good cause and prejudice. Where a defendant does not
show good cause for tailure to raise claims of error upon direct appeal, the district court is not
obliged to consider them 1n post-conviction proceedings. Jones v. State, 91 Nev. 416, 536 P.2d
1025 (1975).

“To establish good cause, [a petitioner] must show that an impediment external to the
defense prevented their compliance with the applicable procedural rule. A qualifying
impediment might be shown where the factual or legal basis for a claim was not reasonably

available at the time of default.” Clem v. State, 119 Nev. 615, 621, 81 P.3d 521, 525 (2003)

(emphasis added). The Court continued, “appellants cannot attempt to manufacture good
cause[.]” Id. at 621, 81 P.3d at 526. Examples of good cause include interference by State
officials and the previous unavailability of a legal or factual basis. See State v. Huebler, 128

Nev. 192,275 P.3d 91 (2012).

In order to establish prejudice, the defendant must show “‘not merely that the errors of
[the proceedings] created possibility of prejudice, but that they worked to his actual and
substantial disadvantage, in affecting the state proceedings with error of constitutional
dimensions.’” Hogan v. Warden, 109 Nev. 952,960, 860 P.2d 710, 716 (1993) (quoting United
States v. Frady, 456 U.S, 152, 170, 102 S. Ct. 1584, 1596 (1982)). To find good cause there

must be a “substantial reason; one that atfords a legal excuse.” Hathaway v. State, 119 Nev.
248, 252,71 P.3d 503, 506 (2003} (quoting Colley v. State, 105 Nev. 235, 236, 773 P.2d 1229,
1230 (1989)).

Moreover, a proper petition for post-conviction relief must set forth specific factual
allegations that would entitle the petitioner to relief. NRS 34.735(6) states, in pertinent part,
“[Petitioner] must allege specific facts supporting the claims in the petition [he] file[s] seeking
relief from any conviction or sentence. Failure to raise specific facts rather than just

conclusions may cause the petition to be dismissed.” “Bare” and “naked” allegations are not

10
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sufficient to warrant post-conviction relief, nor are those belied and repelled by the record.

Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “A claim is ‘belied” when it

is contradicted or proven to be false by the record as 1t existed at the time the claim was made.”

Mann v. State, 118 Nev. 351, 354, 46 P.3d 1228, 1230 (2002).

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner’s first seven (7) grounds are all substantive
claims that could and should have been raised on direct appeal: 1) Ground One: Illegal
sentence; 2) Ground Two: Not allowed to question K-9 about dog’s reliability; 3) Ground
Three: No exigency to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 4) Ground Four: No probable cause existed
to search Petitioner’s vehicle; 5) Ground Five: Extended stop violation of NRS 171.123(4); 6)
Ground Six: Destroyed or lost body camera evidence; and 7) Ground Seven: False testimony
of Officer D. Lopez. Each of these claims were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal. Therefore, this Court concludes, pursuant to Evans, these 1ssues were substantively
waived due to Petitioner’s failure to raise them earlier. This Court further concludes
Petitioner’s substantive claims are beyond the scope of habeas. NRS 34.724(2)(a).

Petitioner does not argue good cause or prejudice to overcome these procedural bars.
Indeed, this Court finds that Petitioner could not successfully do so, as all of the facts and
information needed to raise these issues were available at the time Petitioner filed his direct
appeal, and Petitioner does not allege that there was any external impediment to his raising of
these issues at that time. In fact, Petitioner raised four (4) issues on direct appeal: 1) Whether
the District Court abused its discretion in denying Appellant’s sixth continuance request on
the day trial was set to start; 2) Whether the District Court abused its discretion in denying
Appellant’s pretrial motion to suppress the evidence discovered in Appellant’s residence
pursuant to a search warrant; 3) Whether the District Court erred in admitting the jail calls
introduced by the State; and 4) Whether there was cumulative error. This Court concludes that
Petitioner cannot demonstrate good cause to ignore his procedural defaults because all of the
necessary facts and law were available for a timely appeal and he has not alleged an
impediment external to the defense prevented raising these claims at the appropriate time.

Therefore, these additional substantive claims are waived.

11
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II. PETITIONER’S CLAIMS OF INEFFECTIVE ASSISTANCE OF COUNSEL DO
NOT ENTITLE HIM TO RELIEF
To prevail on a claim of ineffective assistance of trial counsel, a defendant must prove

he was denied “reasonably eftective assistance” of counsel by satisfying the two-prong test of

Strickland, 466 U.S. at 686-87, 104 S. Ct. at 2063-64. See also Love, 109 Nev. at 1138, 865

P.2d at 323. Under the Strickland test, a defendant must show first that his counsel’s
representation fell below an objective standard of reasonableness, and second, that but for
counsel's errors, there is a reasonable probability that the result of the proceedings would have
been different. 466 U.S. at 687-88, 694, 104 S. Ct. at 2065, 2068; Warden, Nevada State Prison
v. Lyons, 100 Nev. 430,432, 683 P.2d 504, 505 (1984} (adopting the Strickland two-part test).

“[T]here 1s no reason for a court deciding an ineffective assistance claim to approach the
inquiry in the same order or even to address both components of the inquiry if the defendant
makes an insufficient showing on one.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 697, 104 S. Ct. at 2069.

The court begins with the presumption of effectiveness and then must determine
whether the defendant has demonstrated by a preponderance of the evidence that counsel was

ineffective, Means v, State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1011, 103 P.3d 25, 32 (2004). “Effective counsel

does not mean errorless counsel, but rather counsel whose assistance 1s ‘[w]ithin the range of
competence demanded of attorneys in criminal cases.” Jackson v. Warden, 91 Nev. 430, 432,

537 P.2d 473, 474 (1975).

Counsel cannot be ineffective for failing to make futile objections or arguments. See

Enms v. State, 122 Nev. 694, 706, 137 P.3d 1095, 1103 (2006). Tnal counsel has the

“immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, which witnesses, 1f
any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 8, 38 P.3d 163, 167
(2002).

Based on the above law, the role of a court in considering allegations of ineffective
assistance of counsel is “not to pass upon the merits ot the action not taken but to determine
whether, under the particular facts and circumstances of the case, trial counsel failed to render

reasonably eftective assistance.” Donovan v. State, 94 Nev. 671, 675, 584 P.2d 708, 711

12
187




o o0 ~1 o gt LA = (v [ _—

[ 2 [ ) [ ) [ [ ) [ ) [ ) 2 [— [— [— [— [— [— [— [— [— [—
o0 R | o h e Lk [ ] i = o oo -] w3 LA N Ll o] — o=

(1978). This analysis does not mean that the court should “second guess reasoned choices
between trial tactics nor does it mean that defense counsel, to protect himselt against
allegations of inadequacy, must make every conceivable motion no matter how remote the
possibilities are of success.” Id. To be effective, the constitution “does not require that counsel
do what 1s impossible or unethical. If there i1s no bona fide defense to the charge, counsel
cannot create one and may disserve the interests of his client by attempting a useless charade.”

United States v. Cronic, 466 U.S. 648, 657 n.19, 104 S. Ct. 2039, 2046 n.19 (1984).

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the
best criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.”
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. “Strategic choices made by counsel after
thoroughly investigating the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State,

108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d 593, 596 (1992); see also Ford v. State, 105 Nev. 850, 853, 784

P.2d 951, 953 (1989). In essence, the court must “judge the reasonableness of counsel's
challenged conduct on the facts of the particular case, viewed as of the time of counsel's
conduct.” Strickland, 466 U.S. at 690, 104 S. Ct. at 2066.

Even if a defendant can demonstrate that his counsel’s representation fell below an
objective standard of reasonableness, he must still demonstrate prejudice and show a
reasonable probability that, but for counsel’s errors, the result of the trial would have been
different. McNelton v. State, [15 Nev. 396, 403, 990 P2d 1263, 1268 (1999) (citing
Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687, 104 S. Ct. at 2064). “A reasonable probability is a probability

sufficient to undermine confidence in the outcome.” Id. (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 687-89,
694, 104 S. Ct. at 206465, 2068).

The Nevada Supreme Court has held “that a habeas corpus petitioner must prove the
disputed factual allegations underlying his inetfective-assistance claim by a preponderance of

the evidence.” Means v. State, 120 Nev. 1001, 1012, 103 P.3d 25, 33 (2004). Furthermore,

claims of ineffective assistance of counsel asserted in a petition for post-conviction relief must
be supported with specific factual allegations, which if true, would entitle the petitioner to

relief. Hargrove v. State, 100 Nev. 498, 502, 686 P.2d 222, 225 (1984). “Bare” and “naked”
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allegations are not sufficient, nor are those belied and repelled by the record. Id. NRS
34.735(6) states in relevant part, “[Petitioner| must allege specitic facts supporting the claims
in the petition[.] . . . Failure to allege specific facts rather than just conclusions may cause your
petition to be dismissed.” (emphasis added).

The decision not to call witnesses 1s within the discretion of trial counsel and will not

be questioned unless it was a plainly unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1,

38 P.3d 163 (2002); see¢ also Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland

does not enact Newton's third law for the presentation of evidence, requiring for every
prosecution expert an equal and opposite expert from the defense. In many instances cross-
examination will be sufficient to expose defects in an expert's presentation. When defense
counsel does not have a solid case, the best strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt

about the State’s theory for a jury to convict. Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578

F.3d. 944 (2011). “Strategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating the
plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 117, 825 P.2d
593, 596 (1992).

Likewise, there is a strong presumption that appellate counsel’s performance was
reasonable and fell within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See, United

States v. Aguirre, 912 F.2d 555, 560 (2nd Cir. 1990) (citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104

S.Ct. at 2065). A claim of ineffective assistance of appellate counsel must satisfy the two-

prong test set forth by Strickland. Kirksey v. State, 112 Nev. 980, 998, 923 P.2d 1102, 1114

(1996). In order to satisfy Strickland’s second prong, the defendant must show that the omitted
issue would have had a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Id. The professional
diligence and competence required on appeal involves “winnowing out weaker arguments on
appeal and focusing on one central issue if possible, or at most on a few key issues.” Jones v.
Barnes, 463 U.S. 745, 751-52, 103 S.Ct. 3308, 3313 (1983). In particular, a “brief that raises
every colorable issue runs the risk or burying good arguments... in a verbal mound made up
of strong and weak contentions.” Id. at 753, 103 S.Ct. at 3313. “For judges to second-guess

reasonable professional judgments and impose on appointed counsel a duty to raise every

14
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‘colorable’ claim suggested by a client would disserve the very goal of vigorous and effective
advocacy.” Id. at 754, 103 S.Ct. at 3314.

In the instant Petition, Petitioner argues that his counsel, Kenneth Frizzell, Esq., was
ineftective for the tollowing reasons: (1) for not raising the issues Petitioner relayed to him
prior to the suppression hearing; 2) for not appealing the suppression hearing issues; 3} for not
using another investigator because his mvestigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather;
4) for never visiting him except after he paid for a different lawyer; 5) for failing to subpoena
or return calls of certain unnamed witnesses and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered him; 6) for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase; 7) for never asking for the testimony of
the dog handler or K-9 records; and 8) for never relaying his mental health history or the fact
that he was on and off different medications during the pre-trial process.

First, Petitioner claims that his counsel was ineffective for not raising the issues
Petitioner relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing. This Court finds that Petitioner has
failed to demonstrate that trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard, as
trial counsel not only filed a Motion to Suppress evidence obtained during the vehicle stop, he
conducted an evidentiary hearing on July 21, 2016 where Officer Daniel Lopez testified.
Exhibits were presented as well as arguments by counsel. The Court denied the Motion to
Suppress. Therefore, this Court finds that trial counsel appropriately raised the suppression
issues and properly conducted the evidentiary hearing. Further, Petitioner fails to show how,
but for counsel’s errors, the outcome of the suppression proceedings would have been
different. As such, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s first claim of ineffective assistance
does not entitle Petitioner to relief.

Second, Petitioner alleges that counsel was ineffective for not appealing the suppression
hearing issues. This Court finds that this claim likewise fails to demonstrate how counsel’s
performance fell below a reasonable standard, as Appellate counsel did raise several
meritorious issues on appeal, including the denial of Petitioner’s Motion to Suppress evidence

from Petitioner’s residence. The Nevada Supreme Court determined that the District Court did
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not abuse its discretion by denying Petitioner’s motion to suppress evidence obtained from his

condo through a search warrant. Order of Affirmance at page. 6. Further, Petitioner provides

no evidence and only makes bare and naked allegations that he was prejudiced. Such bare and
naked allegations are not sufficient to warrant relief. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502, 686 P.2d at
225. This Court finds that Petitioner cannot demonstrate that the omitted 1ssue would have had
a reasonable probability of success on appeal. Kirksey, 112 Nev. at 998, 923 P.2d at 1114.
There is a strong presumption that appellate counsel's performance was reasonable and fell
within “the wide range of reasonable professional assistance.” See Aguirre, 912 F.2d at 560
(citing Strickland, 466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 2065). As Petitioner has only made bare and

naked allegations, this Court concludes he cannot overcome the strong presumption of
counsel’s reasonableness and, therefore, relief 1s not warranted. Hargrove, 100 Nev. at 502,
686 P.2d at 225.

Third, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for not using another
investigator because his investigator knew Petitioner’s mother and stepfather. On July 21,
2016, Defendant told the Court that he cannot get any investigation done and the investigator
used by Mr, Frizzell is the same investigator Mr, Sanft used and he has filed a bar complaint
against the investigator. Counsel 1s expected to conduct legal and factual investigations when
developing a defense so they may make informed decisions on their client’s behalf. Jackson,

91 Nev. at 433, 537 P.2d at 474 (quoting In re Saunders, 2 Cal.3d 1033, 88 Cal.Rptr. 633, 638,

472 P.2d 921, 926 (1970)). “[D]efense counsel has a duty ‘to make reasonable investigations
or to make a reasonable decision that makes particular investigations unnecessary.” State v.

Love, 109 Nev. 1136, 1138, 865 P.2d 322, 323 (1993) (quoting Strickland, 466 U.S. at 691,

104 S. Ct. at 2066). A defendant who contends his attorney was ineffective because he did not
adequately investigate must show how a better investigation would have rendered a more
favorable outcome. Molina, 120 Nev. at 192, 87 P.3d at 538.

Using investigators in trial preparation and investigation is both encouraged and

common practice. Wilson v. State, 105 Nev. 110, 771 P.2d 583 (1989). Duties of investigators

are “subject to the reasonable judgment of defense counsel in light of the facts of any particular
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case.” Love, 109 Nev. at 1143-44, 865 P.2d at 327 (quoting U.S. v. Weaver, 882 F.2d 1128
(7th Cir.), cert. denied,493 U.S. 968, 110 S.Ct. 415, (1989)). A decision “not to investigate

must be directly assessed for reasonableness in all the circumstances, applying a heavy
measure of deference to counsel’s judgment.’” Id. Moreover, “[a] decision not to call a witness
will not generally constitute ineffective assistance of counsel” Id. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328.
For example, the Nevada Supreme Court in Love, 109 Nev. at 1145, 865 P.2d at 328, held that
trial counsel was not ineffective simply because they sent their investigator to interview
potential witnesses and did not to call certain alibi witnesses at trial after adequate
investigations led to that conclusion.

In this case, this Court finds that Petitioner cannot show trial counsel fell below a
reasonable standard for not using another investigator simply because Petitioner was
apparently dissatisfied with this one. A defendant is not entitled to a particular “relationship”™

with his attorney. Morris v. Slappy, 461 U.S. 1, 14, 103 S. Ct. 1610, 1617 (1983). There is no

requirement for any specific amount of communication as long as counsel i1s reasonably
effective in his representation. See id. It necessarily follows that Petitioner is not entitled to a
particular relationship with his atterney’s investigator, who 1s either also court appointed or
who has a longstanding working relationship with that particular attorney. Therefore, this
Court concludes that the choice of investigator was a reasonable decision to make and does
not amount to deficient representation under Strickland. Further, this Court finds that
Petitioner fails to demonstrate how the employment of a different investigator would have
benefitted the outcome of Petitioner’s case. Theretore, this Court concludes that Petitioner 1s
not entitled to relief.

Fourth, Petitioner contends that trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting him
except after he paid for a different lawyer. This Court finds that there is no requirement for a
specific number of visits every case necessitates, nor is that a basis for ineffective assistance
of counsel. Further, Defendant has provided no legal authority to support this claim. Counsel
also communicates with defendants in the courtroom during routinely long court calendars.

“There are countless ways to provide effective assistance in any given case. Even the best
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criminal defense attorneys would not defend a particular client in the same way.” Strickland,
466 U.S. at 689, 104 S. Ct. at 689. Theretore, this Court concludes that Petitioner has failed
to demonstrate trial counsel’s representation fell below a reasonable standard. Further, this
Court finds that Petitioner fails to demonstrate how more jail visits would have changed the
outcome at trial. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner 1s not entitled to relief on this
claim.

Fifth, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was meffective for failing to subpoena or
return calls of unnamed witnesses to testity that another female resided in the townhouse he
owned and switched vehicles with him, and that there was a strong probability the drugs in the
purse in Petitioner’s car belonged to the female. He further claims that trial counsel was
ineffective for failing to cross-examine about the passenger door being closed when officers
first encountered him and they opened the door to allow K-9 access to the interior of the
vehicle. Trial counsel has the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when
to object, which witnesses, if any, to call, and what defenses to develop.” Rhyne, 118 Nev. at
8, 38 P.3d at 167. Further, “[s]trategic choices made by counsel after thoroughly investigating
the plausible options are almost unchallengeable.” Dawson, 108 Nev. at 117, 825 P.2d at 596;
see also Ford, 105 Nev. at 853, 784 P.2d at 953. Petitioner fails to specifically name any of
these alleged witnesses. This Court finds that Petitioner fails to establish if trial counsel even
had sufficient information to locate these unnamed witnesses. Moreover, a review of the record
demonstrates that trial counsel was, in fact, not given timely information about the witness
Petitioner describes as having to wait so long she left the trial. This witness, a woman named
Mary Silva who cleaned Petitioner’s residence a few times, was discussed on the record on the

fourth day of the trial:

MR. FRIZZELL: -- what happened here. While you were probably walking
down the hallway to come in, [ was on the phone with the witness that you said
Kou would allow to testify, Mary Silva, who was on the road ostensibly heading
ome, she told me. I asked her -- [ said, we're ready and it's now time and the
judge isn't going to wait. How long was it going to take you to get back? And
p she said she could be back here by 3:00 o'clock, when I told her it was 1:55.

I
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Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 132. Earlier in the day, the Court indicated it would allow

her to testify despite the fact that she had not been properly noticed by Petitioner:

THE COURT: Okay. Notwithstanding the fact that the State was not put on
notice of these witnesses, I'm going to allow you to call her if you choose to. But
you need to make her available to the State to give them an opportunity to
question her to see what, if anything, she's I_giomg to be otfering.
MR. FRIZZELL: And that 1s fine, Your Honor. | acruall?: _]llSt learned of her
otential as a witness yesterday evening trom an e-mail, which I received.
EI)'HE COURT: Okay. So --
MR. FRIZZELL: And --
THE COURT: -- she wasn't even somebody that defendant was telling you
reviously that we discussed before we started the trial?
R. FRIZZELL: No, Your Honor.
THE DEFENDANT: I didn't know. I thought the witness —

Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 7-8. Additionally, at Petitioner’s insistence, trial counsel

called Officer Jacob Henry with the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police Department to testify in

the defense case-in-chief. See Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 4, p. 145-164. Moreover, trial

counsel cross examined all of the State’s witnesses, including Officer Daniel Lopez, who

stopped Petitioner’s vehicle. Transcript of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 127-164. Trial counsel has

the “immediate and ultimate responsibility of deciding if and when to object, and strategic
decisions such as which witnesses to call or not call are virtually unchallengeable, As such,
this Court concludes that Petitioner cannot demonstrate deficient performance and Petitioner’s
claim therefore fails.

Sixth, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel was ineffective for failing to call family and
witnesses to speak on his behalf at the penalty phase. Defendants have no right to call
witnesses during sentencing hearings unless they are convicted of First Degree Murder. NRS
176.015; NRS 175.552. Therefore, this Court finds that counsel cannot be deemed ineffective
for failing to call family and witnesses to speak on his behalf at his sentencing, as Petitioner
was not entitled to this under Nevada law.

Seventh, Petitioner claims that trial counsel was ineffective for never asking for the
testimony of the dog handler or K-9 records. The State has the burden of proving its case
beyond a reasonable doubt and can call any witnesses it deems necessary to meet that burden

ot proof. Based on the evidence presented, the jury convicted Petitioner and his Judgment of
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Conviction was atfirmed on appeal. As previously stated, the decision not to call witnesses is
within the discretion of trial counsel and will not be questioned unless it was a plainly

unreasonable decision. See Rhyne v. State, 118 Nev. 1, 38 P.3d 163 (2002); see also Dawson

v. State, 108 Nev. 112, 825 P.2d 593 (1992). Strickland does not enact Newton's third law for
the presentation of evidence, requiring for every prosecution expert an equal and opposite
expert from the detense. In many instances cross-examination will be sufficient to expose
defects in an expert's presentation. When detense counsel does not have a solid case, the best

strategy can be to say that there is too much doubt about the State’s theory for a jury to convict.

Harrington v. Richter, 131 S. Ct. 770, 791, 578 F.3d. 944 (2011). Thus, this Court finds that

neither the State nor trial counsel was required to call the K-9 officer, as his participation was
fully covered during the direct and cross-examination of Officer Lopez’ testimony. Transcript

of Jury Trial - Day 3, p. 44-147. Consequently, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim

fails.

Finally, Petitioner alleges that trial counsel never relayed his mental health history or
the fact that he was on and off different medications during the pre-tnal process. However,
this Court finds that Petitioner does not properly allege that trial counsel was aware of any
mental health or medication issues. Petitioner does not even specify exactly what mental
health history or medications he 1s referring to in the one sentence he includes on this issue.
As such, this Court finds Petitioner’s argument amounts to a bare and naked allegation under
Hargrove. Petitioner does not point to any instances in the record that demonstrate evidence
of insanity or incompetence. Further, this Court finds that Petitioner fails to argue how any
mental health or medication issues would have ultimately changed the outcome of the instant
case. Therefore, this Court concludes that Petitioner fails to meet his burden under Strickland.
III. CUMULATIVE ERROR DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A COGNIZABLE CLAIM

FOR HABEAS RELIEF

The Nevada Supreme Court has never held that instances of ineffective assistance of

counsel can be cumulated. McConnell v. State, 125 Nev. 243, 259, 212 P.3d 307, 318 (2009).

Further, Petitioner’s claim is without merit. “Relevant factors to consider in evaluating a claim
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ot cumulative error are (1) whether the issue of guilt is close, (2) the quantity and character of
the error, and (3) the gravity of the crime charged.” Mulder v. State, 116 Nev. 1, 17,992 P.2d
845, 855 (2000).

As the Nevada Supreme Court found in affirming Petitioner’s convictions:

The totallty of the circumstances supports finding probable cause to search
Keller's home. Inside Keller's car, officers found 34429 grams of
methamphetamine, 33.92 grams of herom, 537 grams of cocaine, a mixture of
the three controlled substances, and a gun. The gquantity of methamphetamme
and heroin exceed personal use levels, and the ::ZILlscovery of l-inch by l-inch
baggies, a large amount of cash, as well as a gun, fairly indicated to the officers
that Keller was trafficking in drugs. Further, when Officer Lopez initiated the
traffic stop, Keller tried to exit the car parked in front ot his condo, which in
conjunction with Keller's evasive driving, Officer Lopez took as an attempt to
escape. Taken as a whole, these circumstances supported a finding ot probable
cause that Keller was a drug dealer and that more drugs and guns would be found
inside his condo.
Order of Affirmance at page 5.

The Nevada Supreme Court has also determined that the issue of guilt was not close in
this case. In addressing Petitioner’s claim of cumulative error on appeal, the Nevada Supreme

Court further found that there was overwhelming evidence of guilt:

There is no cumulative error

Keller summarily argues that cumulative error requires reversal. But, Keller fails
to establish any error on appeal, and the evidence presented at trial against him
was overwhelming. See Big Pond v. State, 101 Nev. 1, 3, 692 P.2d 1288, 1289
(1985) (considering "whether the issue of innocence or guﬂt is close, the quantlty
and character of the error, and the gravity of the crime charged” in determining
cumulative error). We therefore, ORDER the judgment of the district court
AFFIRMED.

Order of Affirmance at pages 8-9.

Finally, even if any of Petitioner’s allegations had merit, this Court finds that Petitioner
has failed to establish that, when aggregated, those errors deprived him of a reasonable
likelihood of a better outcome at trial. This Court further finds that, even if Petitioner had
made such a showing, he has failed to show that the cumulative effect of the supposed errors
was so prejudicial as to undermine this Court’s confidence in the outcome of Petitioner’s case.
Because the issue of guilt was not close, and because Petitioner failed to sufficiently undermine
confidence in the outcome of his case, this Court concludes that Petitioner’s claim of

cumulative error 1s without merit.

/
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ORDER
THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, Petitioner Christopher Keller’s Pro Per

Petition tor Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) shall be, and 1s, DENIED.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED, Petitioner’s Motion to Appoint Counsel shall be, and is,

DENIED as Defendant is not entitled to counsel at this point.

DATED this day of October, 2020.
Dated this 2nd day of November, 2020

DISTRICT JUDGE
12A EB1 1B70 A32A

STEVEN B. WOLFSON William D. Kephart
Clark County District Attorney District Court Jud
Nevada Bar #001565 e urt Juege

BY

RB N for

TALTEEN PANDUKH
Chief Deputy Dfstrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #00

CERTIFICATE OF MAILING

I hereby certify that service of the above and foregoing was made this day of

, 2020, by depositing a copy in the U.S. Mail, postage pre-paid, addressed to:

cg/l.2

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER, BAC #81840
LOVELOCK CORRECTIONAL CENTER
1200 PRISON ROAD

LOVELOCK, NV, 89419

BY

C. Garcia
Secretary for the District Attorney's Office
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Chnistopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
Vs, DEPT. NO. Department 19

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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Electronically Filed
11/19/2020 1:02 PM
Steven D. Grierson
DISTRICT COURT CLERK OF THE COU
CLARK COUNTY,NEVADA W ’E,

oo ok

Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) Case No.:  A-19-800950-W
Vs.
State of Nevada, Detendant(s) Department 19

NOTICE OF HEARING

Please be advised that the Plaintiff's Motion to produce in the above-entitled matter is
set for hearing as follows:
Date: January 06, 2021
Time: 8:30 AM
Location: RJC Courtroom 16B
Regional Justice Center
200 Lewis Ave.
Las Vegas, NV 89101
NOTE: Under NEFCR 9(d), if a party is not receiving electronic service through the

Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System, the movant requesting a

hearing must serve this notice on the party by traditional means.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certify that pursuant to Rule 9(b) of the Nevada Electronic Filing and Conversion
Rules a copy of this Notice of Hearing was electronically served to all registered users on
this case in the Eighth Judicial District Court Electronic Filing System.

By: /s/ Michelle McCarthy
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Electronically Filed
1/5/2021 9:15 AM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERE OF THE COUEE

NOCH
DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA
Hesd
Christopher Keller, Plaintift(s) Case No.: A-19-800950-W
Vs, Department 1

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

NOTICE OF CHANGE OF HEARING

The hearing on the Motion, presently set for January 06, 2021, at 8:30 AM, has been moved
to the 6th day of January, 2021, at 8:30 AM and will be heard by Judge Bita Yeager,

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Mary Anderson

Mary Anderson
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I hereby certity that this 5th day of January, 2021

X

[

The foregoing Notice of Change of Hearing was electronically served to all registered
parties for case number A-19-800950-W.

I mailed, via first-class, postage fully prepaid, the foregoing Clerk of the Court, Notice
of Change of Hearing to:

Christopher R Keller
#81840

1200 Prison Road
Lovelock NV 89419

I placed a copy of the foregoing Notice of Change of Hearing in the appropriate
attorney folder located in the Clerk of the Court’s Office:

Christopher R Keller
Bernard B. Zadrowski
Taleen R Pandukht
Parker Brooks

Steven B Wolfson
Michael Dickerson

/s/ Mary Anderson
Mary Anderson
Deputy Clerk of the Court
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Monica Trujillo
District Court
Judge
Department IT1

Electronically Filed
01/14/2021 3:48 PM

s i

CLERK OF THE COURT
NORH

DISTRICT COURT,
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Defendant(s).

CHRISTOPHER KELLER, ) CASE NO. A-19-800950-W
) DEPT NO. HI
Plaintiffs, )
Vs, )
)
STATE OF NEVADA, )
)
)
)

NOTICE OF RESCHEDULING OF HEARING

IT IS HEREBY ORDERED, that the Writ of Habeas Corpus in this matter has been

rescheduled to January 27, 2021 at 8:30 a.m.
Dated this 14th day of January, 2021

PN R

\J

B39 286 7D6D OBFO
Monica Trujillo
District Court Judge
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Chnistopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
Vs, DEPT. NO. Department 3

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case.

If indicated below, a copy of the above mentioned filings were also served by mail
via United States Postal Service, postage prepaid, to the parties listed below at their last
known addresses on 1/15/2021

Christopher Keller #81840
1200 Prison Road
Lovelock, NV, 89419

Steven Wolfson Clark County District Attorney

200 Lewis Avenue, 3rd Floor
Las Vegas, NV, 89155
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1/15/2021 3:48 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE COU
DISTRICT COURT C%»A ﬁi"

CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

ER T
Christopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) Case No.:  A-19-800950-W
Vs. C-16-312717-1
State of Nevada, Detendant(s) Department 3

NOTICE OF DEPARTMENT REASSIGNMENT

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the above-entitled action has been reassigned to
Judge Monica Trujillo.

DX This reassignment is due to: Per Administrative Order 20-25.
ANY TRIAL DATE AND ASSOCIATED TRIAL HEARINGS STAND BUT MAY BE
RESET BY THE NEW DEPARTMENT.

Any motions or hearings presently scheduled in the FORMER department will be
heard by the NEW department as set forth below.

Motion, on 01/27/2021, at 8:30 AM

PLEASE INCLUDE THE NEW DEPARTMENT NUMBER ON ALL FUTURE
FILINGS.

STEVEN D. GRIERSON, CEO/Clerk of the Court

By: /s/ Heather Kordenbrock
Heather Kordenbrock, Deputy Clerk of the Court

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
I hereby certify that this 15th day of January, 2021
<] The foregoing Notice of Department Reassignment was electronically served to all

registered parties for case number A-19-800950-W.

/s/ Heather Kordenbrock
Heather Kordenbrock, Deputy Clerk of the Court
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03/09/2021 3:32 M
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CLERK OF THE COURT

ORDR

STEVEN B. WOLFSON
Clark County District Attorney
Nevada Bar #001565

ERCAN E. ISCAN

Chief Deputy District Attorney
Nevada Bar #009592

200 Lewis Avenue

Las Vegas, NV 86155-2212
(702) 671-2500

Attorney for Plaintiff

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

THE STATE OF NEVADA,

Plaintiff,

-V§- CASE NO: A-19-800950-W

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT KELLER, DEPT NO: 111
#1804258

Defendant.

ORDER DENYING DEFENDANT'S MOTION TO PRODUCE

DATE OF HEARING: January 27, 2021
TIME OF HEARING: 08:30 A.M.

THIS MATTER having come on for hearing before the above entitled Court on the
27th day of January, 2021, the Defendant not being present, in proper person, the Plaintiff
being represented by STEVEN B, WOLFSON, District Attorney, through ERCAN E.
ISCAN, Chief Deputy District Attorney, without argument, based on the pleadings and good
cause appearing therefor,

/
/
/
/f
1

V:\201610481131201604813C-ORDR-(CHRISTOPHER KELLER)-001. DOCX

Statistipglly closed: USJR - CV - Other Manner of Disposition (USJRO]
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ITIS HEREBY ORDERED that the Defendant's Motion, shall be, and it is DENIED.

DATED this day of February, 202phated this 9th day of March, 2021
DISTRICT
STEVEN B. WOLI'SON mg
Clark County District Attorney 949 A18 35F5 4BC9
Nevada Bar #001565 Monica Trujillo
District Court Judge

BY

to:

cg/L2

EB y for
"ERCANE. T8
Chiet Deputy Dlistrict Attorney
Nevada Bar #0

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE
72
[ certify that on the IJ”‘ day of He W,”&O?l/, I mailed a copy of the foregoing Order

CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER #81840
HIGH DESERT STATE PRISON
P.0. BOX 650

LOVELOCK, NV 89419

BY ﬂm&m /94‘005[

C./Garcla o
Secretary for the District Attorney’s Office

2
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DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

Chnistopher Keller, Plaintiff(s) CASE NO: A-19-800950-W
Vs, DEPT. NO. Department 3

State of Nevada, Defendant(s)

AUTOMATED CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

Electronic service was attempted through the Eighth Judicial District Court's
electronic filing system, but there were no registered users on the case. The filer has been
notified to serve all parties by traditional means.
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8/27/2021 12:25 PM
Steven D. Grierson

CLERK OF THE CCE
RTRAN C&wf

DISTRICT COURT
CLARK COUNTY, NEVADA

CHRISTOPHER ROBERT
KELLER,

CASE NO.: A-19-800950-W
DEPT. XIX

V8.

i
Plaintiff, ;
THE STATE OF NEVADA, g

)

Defendant.

BEFORE THE HONORABLE WILLIAM D. KEPHART, DISTRICT COURT JUDGE
THURSDAY, OCTOBER 1, 2020

RECORDER’S TRANSCRIPT OF HEARING RE:
EVIDENTIARY HEARING; PETITION FOR WRIT OF HABEAS
CORPUS; PLAINTIFF'S MOTION TO APPOINT COUNSEL

APPEARANCES:
For the Plaintiff: CHRISTOPHER R. KELLER, PRO SE
(Via Bluejeans)
For the Defendant: MICHAEL R. DICKERSON, ESQ.

Deputy District Attorney

RECORDED BY: CHRISTINE ERICKSON, COURT RECORDER
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Las Vegas, Nevada; Thursday, October 1, 2020

[Hearing commenced at 8:54 a.m.]

THE COURT: Okay, we're on the record in the case of
Christopher Keller versus State of Nevada in A800950. Mr. Keller is
present. He's joining us via video from the Nevada Department of
Corrections.

The State is represented by Mr. Dickerson. This is the time
for an Evidentiary Hearing. Mr. Keller, it -- you had the opportunity at
this time for an Evidentiary Hearing.

Mr. Keller, can you hear us?

MR. KELLER: Yes, sir.

THE COURT: Okay. You wish to call any witnesses, make
any statements or anything at this point?

MR. KELLER: | mean, | don't really understand how -- what's
going on or how to -- | put in a motion for appointment of counsel
because | don’t know -- understand how to represent myself in the
hearing.

THE COURT: Mr. Keller, at this point in time, you're not
entitled to representation by an attorney unless you hire your own. You
had made representations in a written motion and I've given you an
opportunity to present that. In regards to -- in your petition you made --
you raised some issues regarding ineffective assistance of counsel by
Mr. Frizzell. Your arguments are -- in with regards to that there’s eight

different positions that you've raised.
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You indicated that he was ineffective for not raising issues
relayed to him prior to the suppression hearing, for not appealing a
suppression hearing issues, for not using another investigator because
his investigator knew your parents, for never visiting you until after you
paid a different lawyer, for failing to subpoena, return calls of certain
unnamed witnesses, and failing to cross-examine about the passenger
door being closed when officers first encountered you, failing to call
family and witnesses to speak on your behalf, and -- never asking for
testimony of the dog handler, and for never relying -- relaying your
mental health history prior to, or during the pretrial process.

I'll address those right now and then I'm going to ask some
questions because | need some clarification on some of those. With
regards to your first -- first one for not -- ¢claim of not -- that he was
ineffective for not raising the issues, a petition relayed to him, you failed
to identify in your motion what issues you're talking about and for that
reason, you do not support -- you do not show how it’s not supported or
wasn’t supported by the record. So | believe that that's a bare naked
allegation, so | am denying it on that ground.

On the second ground, you have -- you say that he was
ineffective for not appealing the suppression hearing issues. He did in
fact appeal the suppression hearing issues. But you provide no
evidence of how what he argued or what he didn't argue would prejudice
you. So for that reason, | am denying your petition.

The concern | have on your fifth position, you claim that he

was ineffective for failing to subpoena return calls of unnamed witnesses
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to testify, that another female resided in the townhouse you owned and
switched vehicles with you. You have failed to specify any name of any
of these alleged witnesses. Matter of fact, there was a witness that was
prepared to testify at the time of trial but was not notified -- was not put
on a withess list. | allowed that to happen in the event that they had her.
And you can’t demonstrate how the -- how your attorney failed to -- fell
below deficient performance, demonstrating a deficient performance on
his behalf, as it's ultimately the responsibility of him to decide as to what
witnesses and what to object to at the time. So, I’'m denying it on that --
ground.

Your sixth ground is you're claiming that you -- he failed to call
family members or witnesses to speak on your behalf of penalty phase.
There’s no right at that stage for any of your family members or
witnesses to testify in light of the fact that this was not a first degree
murder charge. So, I'm denying it on that ground.

Okay, so the issues that | want you to address, Mr. Keller, is
you made a claim that your -- your attorney was ineffective for not using
ancother investigator because your investigator knew your parents. You
made a claim that he was never visiting you in the detention center until
he -- until you hired a paid lawyer. You need to explain to me how that
affected your case.

You also made a claim that he was ineffective for not asking
for the testimony of the dog handler and for not relaying your mental
health history prior to your pretrial process, okay?

So, those are the four areas | want you to clarify to the Court.
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| think | need to expand the record on that. So, what is it that you can

tell me about -- or your concerns were with regards to the investigator?

MR. KELLER:

Well, | never really had a chance to speak to

him because of the problems that he had with my family and then he

never visited me so | never got to tell the investigator -- | never had a

chance for the investigator to speak with the witnesses and also, the

investigator could have got the body camera footage, which - that the

officer testified that they did have the body camera footage. And

because of that, | never got the body camera footage into my case, so

that cost me the body camera footage, which that would have showed

that the officer was lying.

It would have also showed for the jury, you know, that the --

that he, you know -- like another officer testified to the female coming up

to the car and asking for her purse out of the car and her -- the purse

was a thing that had all the narcotics in it. So that --

THE COURT:
MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:
MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:

Okay.

-- that would be one of them.
Okay, so0 you're saying --
And the reason that --

You're -- hold on, hold on. You're saying that

because you -- didn’t have a chance to speak to your investigator, is that

-- your investigator didn't get this information because --

MR. KELLER: Well that --

THE COURT:

Okay.

MR. KELLER: Well that's why | couldn’t -- never got any
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subpoena -- that’'s why | never got any subpoenas, that's why | never got
the body camera footage, that's -- | mean, | never got -- | never got any,

| mean, | never got any work on my case done because he wouldn’t
come visit me.

So, if | would have been able to speak to the investigator then
| might have gotten something accomplished because my family told me
that | was going to get another lawyer, so | wasn't really speaking to
Frizzell. So then when it - so that’s the reason why we never even
spoke about my trial or the fact that it would have been in my best
interest to take a deal because we never even spoke about my case.

THE COURT: Okay, so you're saying because your family
was telling you you're getting another attorney, you never spoke to your
attorney?

MR. KELLER: Well that -- | mean, we had issues and stuff
like that. But yeah, that's why | never spoke to him because they told
me that they were getting me the attorney, which they ended up paying
$15,000 for but | never got to use her.

THE COURT: QOkay. Then you have -- but you're also saying
that you had issues -- you're telling me in your motion that there was
issues between your parents and this investigator. What are you talking
about?

MR. KELLER: Yeah, when | -- the first -- the investigator
came and tried to see me and | told -- and he asked me who my mother
was and then he told me, oh -- and then -- oh, he said, oh he’s married

to Graham, you know, the police officer? | said, yeah. He said, oh
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yeah, she’s a piece of work and stuff and | said, what does that mean?
You know, like -- and then it got all hostile. | said, hey I'm not talking to
you because, you know, he made that comment about my mother, you
know, so --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KELLER: And then that just --

THE COURT: Did you tell Mr. Frizzell that?

MR. KELLER: Yeah, | told him in the --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KELLER: And | don't know -- then --

THE COURT: Okay. Allright. Let's go to the next issue.

MR. KELLER: | was -- | made that -- | put in a -- | told that to
the Court, | told that to Frizzell, and | put in a complaint to the Nevada
Bar because no one would listen.

THE COURT: Okay. Turn to number four now. You said that
trial counsel was ineffective for never visiting you until after you paid for
a different lawyer. How did that affect your case?

MR. KELLER: Well because | never got to speak to him about
it and | never got to -- | never -- | was offered deals but -- | never was -- |
never -- we never spoke about the case so | didn’t know what kind of
evidence was against me really. So, | didn’t -- we never spoke about
any trial, like -- we never -- the only thing that we brought up was stuff
that | brought up to him. He never went over any trial strategy with me
or he never told me, you know, that it would be interest to take any deal

because of the fact that, you know, that | -- | mean, with the stuff they
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had, it would have been in my best interest to take a deal obviously,
because the case they had against me, | just thought that | was going to
be working with the other lawyer that my family had paid for.

THE COURT: Okay. Then you also said that he was
ineffective for never asking for the testimony of the K-9 handler. So, tell
me how that, you believe, would affect your case in light of the fact that
he did cross-examine the other officers that did point out that they -- that
there was a K-@ animal there. So, tell me how that would have -- how
that affected your case.

MR. KELLER: Well because | would have the right -- because
| had the right to cross-examine the dog handler and we never got to
see the K-9 reliability records or the K-8 -- it's just some officer who's not
-- that doesn’t know anything about dog behavior. He’s not trained in
dog behavior, just the same officer that made several lies in my case
claims that dog hit, but we had no evidence from a reliable source, no
one that, you know, trained in this to say that a dog hit and the whole
case is based off supposedly a dog hit, but if you look at the -- time, they
say a dog hit at one hour and one minute, the K-9 left, they say that he
hit.

Well how come if he hit supposedly, how come it took
additional one hour and 59 minutes after the K-8 left for them to
supposedly find the narcotic. That's a whole -- another two hours, two
minutes less than two hours. If a K-@ hit, then you would be able to find
something right then, so | see that there's a problem with this because,

obviously, you know, the K-8 might have never hit on that. You know
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what | mean?

We have no -- we have nobody that's like, trained in this to
make that statement.

THE COURT: Okay. And then you also claim that he never
relayed your mental health history or the fact that you were on and off
different medications during the pretrial process. So, how is that
affecting your case?

MR. KELLER: Well, it was just -- | mean, | was on different
medications, Zyprexa and then Remeron and stuff, and then -- and -- it's
just - | mean, looking back now, | know that my mind state was all over
the place and | wasn't able to -- | wasn't even able to really comprehend
what was going on.

So, you know, | mean, I'm sitting here with --

THE COURT: Did you inform your attorney of that?

MR. KELLER: -- 20 to life now.

THE COURT: Did you tell --

MR. KELLER: | told him.

THE COURT: -- Mr. Frizzell about that?

MR. KELLER: So, the only time | talked to Mr. Frizzell about
my case was when the lawyer -- because she came at calendar call to
sub in, which was a Friday, and then trial was starting on Monday. You
told her that, you know, since we're going to trial on Monday, I'm not
giving you a continuance. So, she wasn’t ready. If she wasn’t ready,
then to not take my case, so she didn't take my case, you know? So

then, that's the only time | really spoke to Frizzell about my case was
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that Friday. And then the Monday that trial started, we never really
spoke about my case because he didn’'t answer the phone and he never
came to visit me.

So, you know, | sent -- | put as a part of my thing, the visiting
log and stuff, so | never, you know, the only time | spoke with him about
my case really was before the suppression hearing which was when |
told him, if you told me that | didn’t bring up the grounds that | -- that he
should have brought -- well | was talking about grounds one through
seven of my habeas. Those are the grounds that | brought up prior to
and after the suppression hearing. Those were the grounds.

| thought | made it -- | thought | was, you know, | was talking
about the grounds one through seven. Those are the grounds that |
brought up to him. And, you know, in the State’s response, they said |
didn't name the grounds but | was speaking about those grounds. So,
those were the grounds | was speaking about.

THE COURT: Okay. All right. So, do you have anything
else, Mr. Keller?

MR. KELLER: Just that | never had a chance to go over my
case with my lawyer because we -- because we were hiring another
lawyer and | never got to use her so --

THE COURT: Okay. Well Mr. Keller, you understand that you
had some dates set previously for trial and then at the last minute, you
hired an attorney to come in and she was asking for --

MR. KELLER: Yeah, she hired her, like -- she hired her about

two months before that and then she was having medical problems, but
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she already had the money. She was having medical problems, so she
could never see me, but it would have been two months prior to that
date is when she testified that she was -- you know, so it was like --

THE COURT: Right.

MR. KELLER: It was just a bad, you know, it's a bad situation
that happened.

THE COURT: Yeah. Well we were trying to go to trial on this.
This was continued multiple times and -- because of issues you had with
Counsel. A counsel was appointed to you. Counsel had an opportunity
to be prepared on this matter and so it went forward on the date that we
had scheduled. So, at this point in time, State, did you have any
questions of Mr. Keller?

MR. DICKERSON: | do not, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Allright. So, State? Do you have any further
witnesses or anything, Mr. Keller?

MR. KELLER: | didn’t know that | would be able to present
any, you know?

THE COURT: Well, Mr. Keller, when you’re asking the Court
for an Evidentiary Hearing, what do you expect to happen? Okay.

MR. KELLER: Yeah, | didn’t know. | didn’t know what was
going to happen, honestly. | just thought --

THE COURT: Okay, so -- so you just --

MR. KELLER: | thought that was part of it.

THE COURT: Okay. State?

MR. DICKERSON: The State has no witnesses, Your Honor.

12
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THE COURT: You're not going to call Mr. Frizzell?

MR. DICKERSON: | think that based upon what we have in
front of us, Your Honor, Your Honor can make this decision on the
pleadings themselves. These allegations don’'t meet the level of
Strickland. There's nothing here that the Defendant showing where
anything about his case would be different, had any of his claims
actually been true or supported.

THE COURT: Mr. Frizzell, I'm going to call you. | have some
questions, okay?

MR. FRIZZELL: Yeah, that's fair.

THE MARSHAL.: Face he clerk, and raise your right hand.

KENNETH G. FRIZZELL, Ill
[having been called as a witness and being first duly sworn, testified as
follows:]

THE COURT CLERK: Please state your full name, spelling
your first and last name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Kenneth G. Frizzell, Ill, K-E-N-N-E-T-H,
middle initial G, last name F as in Frank, R-I-Z-Z-E-L-L, the third.

QUESTIONS BY THE COURT
BY THE COURT:

Q Mr. Frizzell, you had heard statements by Mr. Keller regarding
allegations that his investigator -- because his investigator knew his
mother and father that there seemed to be some kind of tension
between the two and that his investigator didn’'t do anything with regards

to this case. Are you familiar with that investigator?

13
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A
Q

I am.

Can you tell me what your understanding is with regards to

this and your --

A

Q
A

Sure.
-- the investigator’s actions?

Sure. Well, it was quite the opposite. First off, my investigator

went over to either deliver discovery and/or visit with Mr. Keller on at

least a dozen occasions throughout the representation. Early on, my

investigator is a retired Metro officer, and candidly, worked with Mr.

Keller's father back when he was -- they were both on SWAT together

and then -- my investigator informed me of that.

However, he said -- he had told me and | understand that this

could be --

Q

A
Q
A

When he had told you, who is this?

My investigator.

Okay.

Because he relayed --

THE COURT: Mr. Keller, in this particular hearing --
MR. KELLER: Yes, yeah.

THE COURT: In this particular hearing, statements that you

just represented and what you discussed with your attorney, and now

your attorney is on the stand testifying, there's a privilege of self-

incrimination here. Are you waiving that privilege -- so your attorney can

-- 80 Mr. Frizzell can tell us what it was that he said and that you can tell

us what you said to your attorney?

14
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MR. KELLER

: Yeah, | mean, | couldn’t -- | submitted the

visiting records from County Jail. | mean, | don't --

THE COURT:

MR. KELLER

THE COURT:

Okay.
: Yeah.

Well, what I'm getting at is the actual

communication that you had with Mr. Frizzell. In order for me to

consider this and in ligh

to know --

MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:

rights.

MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:
MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:
MR. KELLER:

t of the fact that you just testified to that, | need

Well, he just lied --

-- whether or not you're willing to waive those

-- anyways, so --
You'll waive those?
Yes, I'll waive it --
Okay.

-- and he just lied because | have the video. |

have the -- | mean, Frizzell just lied about him. Maybe the dude told

Frizzell --

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Keller?

MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:
MR. KELLER:
THE COURT:

any question you'd like.

-- that he visited me, but he didn't.

Mr. Keller --

Yes, sir.

You'll have an opportunity to ask Mr. Frizzell

That's why | have him here. So --

MR. KELLER: All right, thank you.

15
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THE COURT: Let me get -- done with this and then you can
ask any question you'd like, okay?

MR. KELLER: All right.

BY THE COURT:

Q All right. So, Mr. Frizzell, are you satisfied with that waiver?

A I am.

Q Okay, go ahead. So --

A So essentially, my investigator had informed me that he didn’t
-- he said - Mr. Keller's mother did work for Metro as well, but she was
in the administrative side of things and he said that he did not know her
other than know who she was by virtue of having worked with SWAT
with her husband.

Quite the contrary to what Mr. Keller testified to, Mr. Mastin,
my investigator, enjoyed his time working with Mr. Graham and said that
he was a -- he was a fine lieutenant. At that time my -- investigator was
a captain of SWAT and Mr. Graham, his father -- Mr. Keller's father, was
a lieutenant with SWAT. And they worked together and he had nothing
negative to say. And, you know, he had only said | know of his mother
but I've not had any communication.

After | reviewed Mr. Keller’s petition, | did ask him, did you
ever say anything like, your mother’s a piece of work or anything like
that? And he vehemently informed me no. And so, that's what | have
on that issue.

Q During the time that you were representing Mr. Keller, had he

ever represented to you that there was a conflict between the
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investigator and his parents?

A Never.

Q S0, the first time you heard about it was in the petition?

A With reading his petition.

Q Okay.

MR. KELLER: | said it in open court, Your Honor -- in open
court, several times. | put it in the motion to get a change of attorney. |
put -- so there’s record all throughout the court of it, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KELLER: Since the first day the investigator came --

THE COURT: Okay.

MR. KELLER: | have nothing to gain from making that up.

THE COURT: Mr. Keller, hold on. You'll have an opportunity
to address that. I'm just trying to get through this, one at a time. We
don’t go in and out like that, okay?

MR. KELLER: All right.

THE COURT: All right.

MR. KELLER: Yes, Your Honor.

BY THE COURT:

Q S0 then, Mr. Keller has also represented that you were
ineffective for never visiting him until after -- they paid for a different
lawyer. Do you understand what that is?

A That's not true because | went over to the jail, | brought my
billing records, and | don't have them in front of me, the State has them.

But | know that -- | believe specifically throughout the representation, |

17
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personally went over to the jail on, | believe, four occasions, possibly
five. There might be five on there. In addition to that, when my
investigator would go over at my direction, he went over either to go
over some discovery with Mr. Keller or at least just deliver something or
talk with him on the video, or something along that line.

In addition, every single hearing that we had on the case,
which was when you were in the other courtroom downstairs, we were
always talking about his case, always. And to -- just to reiterate
something that he said is -- he said he didn't like the investigator, yes in
open court on one of those motions to withdraw hearings. But he never
relayed that there was a conflict or that might -- or that my investigator
hated his parents or made any specific comments, derogatory or
otherwise, regarding his mother. That's the part that | first -- that | first
knew of -- that there was a conflict or that he was claiming a conflict,
was in his petition, so --

Q Okay.

A So the record is clear.

Q S0, you were actually appointed in this matter after a second
continuance. Is that your understanding?

A Yes. | -- he had prior appointed counsel that he did not get
along with and so, Your Honor appointed me.

Q Okay. And you’re aware that this was continued multiple
times -- actually to the point of, | believe, possibly five continuances?
Let me see, fifth -- yeah. | believe five, and then you actually proceeded

to trial after the fifth continuance?
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A Yeah.

Q S0, you had the case from the second continuance, so it
would have been a third continuance, a fourth continuance, and a fifth
continuance. Is that your understanding?

A Yes, total. | mean, | was on for four settings.

Q Okay.

A And then the final one we went to trial on.

Q Okay.

A And | can relay to the Court that candidly, and despite --
contrary to Mr. Keller's assertions, a couple of those were because he
had informed me he didn’t want to go trial and wanted me to try to get
him a deal. There was at least, | believe, three different offers that were
conveyed to him. And then, when Mr. Dickerson ultimately withdrew the
last offer, then on the first day of trial, he re-extended that same offer
which, candidly, had Mr. Keller accepted it, which he did not and
vehemently said he was not going to accept it, he would be looking at
getting parole probably within the next six months.

Q Okay. S0, because of that and understanding that the State
had filed habitual notices -- in this matter, one of Mr. Keller's allegations
is that you never discussed with him or investigated -- the words
investigated is -- in my words, his mental health history. Did you have
any concern with that in light of the fact that there was these offers made
that were pretty favorable, and he was facing habitual notices here and
he adamantly rejected them?

A He had told me that throughout his life that he had had some

19
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issues -- with bipolar or some other issues like that. | specifically --
because early on in the representation when he relayed that information
to me, | said, are you on a medication? He said, yes, | take medication.

| asked him similar to our canvasses on guilty plea
agreements, is there anything about the medication that you take, that
would render you unable to understand what’s going on or to help me in
your defense? And he said, no. And we actually talked about that
issue, at least, on two separate occasions.

Q And even --

A And | told him | did not see a reason then, to bring that up.

Q Was there anything in the medications that stuck out to you
based on what he represented to you that you think would have affected
his ability to understand or comprehend or --

A No, because they were pretty standard for what he said his
ailments were. | don’t remember the specific names off the top of my
head. But if he was not on them, there might have been a potential for
that issue, but it could have -- it would have been remedied upon just
reinitiating the medication.

Q Were you comfortable with his representations to you about
what he was taking and what you viewed of him and his demeanor and
ability to discuss with you the case?

A Absolutely. He was at all points. He could relay his version of
events and he was not incoherent. The ideas were not -- were strung
together appropriately. He never went off tangent as far as what he was

claiming was the situation and how the whole incident went down.
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Now candidly, as virtually every potential defendant -- every
defendant asks their lawyers, but certainly asks me, file this motion, file
that motion, redo this, redo that, and candidly, some of the things that he
asked for, | did. Which was the bail motion, the suppression motion and
the other things that he was asking me to do were not -- did not have a
good face -- good faith basis in law or fact.

Q Okay.

A And so, | chose to not file the plethora of other motions he
kept asking me to do.

Q Okay, now | am -- why we -- you've been testifying, I've had
an opportunity to go back through his motion to dismiss counsel and
appoint alternative counsel. | will tell you that in his written motion -- and
it’s filed June 13, 2016, he doesn’t say anything in there about an
investigator.

However, on the hearing of July 21, 20186, his pro per motion
to dismiss counsel and appoint alternative counsel, after my questioning
he advised that he cannot get any investigation done, that the
investigator used by Mr. Frizzell is the same investigator Mr. Sanft used,
and then he had filed a bar complaint against the investigator. Were you
aware of anything like that?

A He had mentioned something like that but there was never --
my investigator never said that there was anything that came of that.

Q Okay.

A That he -- basically that he was told that but the State Bar

never contacted him, never did any kind of formal grievance to Mr. Sanft
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or anything. So, | don’t know where that went, but it didn’t -- | don’t think
it went anywhere.

Q That -- actually happened to be on the date of the -- date of
Defendant’s motion to suppress and there was a -- and calendar call
and the calendar call date, everyone announced ready. So, you actually
request a continuance as you'd been preparing for a motion to suppress
and you had not been able to prepare for trial. And | granted a request
to continue the trial date, vacate and | reset it. So, that would have been
on the date of the calendar call. But then we went — that was July 21
and it went to trial then in September.

So, now you had two additional months. Was there anything
in that -- those two months that Mr. Keller represented to you, possibly
dissatisfaction with the fact that the Court kept you on the case and that
you still had the same investigator? Was there anything that he was --
was he doing in those two months that you believe affected this case?

A When you say he, you mean my investigator?

Q No, Mr. Keller.

A He had mentioned, | think, at one point that he was not -- that
he was not going to assist in his -- he was not going to talk to me. He

was not going to help me with my defense --

Q Okay.

A -- because he was angry about you keeping me on --

Q Okay.

A --and so --

Q | will note for the record, that on August 22" 2016 that the
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Defendant has chosen not assist counsel with the case as Defendant
has refused to speak with counsel and his investigator. And Defendant
stated Counsel refused to assist him and needs a new attorney. So, he
made it a position on his own not to speak to you and that continued
throughout, | mean, from that point until trial date?

A It did. | believe | -- | went over -- | think there was one other
occasion, maybe two after that, where | physically went over to the jail to
talk with him. One of the times, | took my investigator and Mr. Keller --
we started out talking and then he got a little bit combative so | just
pressed the button, had the officer come get me. And it was not long
after that that | learned of his family hiring Ms. Feliciano because his
mother called me --

Q Okay.

A -- to inform me of that. And so, it was probably February 2017
when | was contacted by Ms. Feliciano. | took my entire files over to
her, kept obviously what was my work product, but basically took all of
Mr. Keller’s file over to her and | did not get it back until that Friday of
calendar call when she wanted to sub in but also continue the trial. So,
that's when | got it back from her.

S0, | had a weekend -- so that day, not only did | visit with Mr.
Keller at the calendar call, but then later that afternoon after you had
said this is going forward and Mr. Frizzell you're going to do it, yes, |
went over to the jail that afternoon -- on that Friday afternoon to talk with
him.

Q Okay.
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A

And he was still combative about the whole thing. Just talking

about how his parents wasted 15 grand on an attorney that can’t come

in as the -- can’'t come in as counsel.

Q

Okay, so as of the September 19" date, that was continued

once again and it actually went to trial in March.

A
Q

Yes.

So, you were told in February of that year of 2017 that that's

when you first learned that Ms. Feliciano was involved -- was --

A
Q
A
Q
A

Maybe it was the end of January but --

Okay.

-- that's when | was told that she was actually hired.

Okay.

| was told probably in October of 2016 that they were looking

for new counsel.

Q
A
Q
A

Q

Okay.

And that was contact from his mother.
Okay.

That was not Mr. Keller.

And as of -- you were present though during the time frame

when it was scheduled to go to trial in March when Ms. Feliciano made

an appearance?

A
Q

Yes.

Okay. And you were here when the Court made the

determination that it was going to trial?

A

Yes.
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Q And | wasn’t allowing them to substitute in that late?

A Yes.

Q Okay. Did Mr. Keller speak to you any further or other than he
was just upset because of the -- they had paid the attorney?

A Right.

Q  And the attorney wasn’t able to do it?

A Right. That's correct.

Q Okay. Now, Mr. Keller has also represented in his petition
and | had some guestions about this as well, is what was your thoughts
with respect to -- he's saying he was upset because you never called the
K-9 handler and then there's some issues involving body camera
footage. Tell me about -- what's your recall of that?

A Well, regarding the K-8 handler, there wasn't an issue there.

If you'll recall at the suppression hearing --

Q Mm-hmm.

A -- the other officers were very clear about how they got a
warrant for the K-9. The dog came out and immediately led them to the
glove box because the way they got in the car was there were -- there
was marijuana in plain sight.

Q Mm-hmm.

A And so then they just kind of did a -- an inventory of the
vehicle there to see if there were more drugs, but they got the -- they got
the warrant for the K-8, K-8 came out, led him to a glove box that had a
hole cut in it and reaching back there, they found -- | think there was a

gun and drugs back there.
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Q Mm-hmm.

A And so then they got a further warrant for the search of the
entire vehicle, and of course, then opened the trunk and there was
enough in there to choke a horse.

Q Okay. And with respect to his representation here today
about the body camera?

A When | -- | know that | had spoke with Mr. Dickerson on that
issue. | believe that the review of it that we did have was not -- and not
that Mr. Dickerson can testify to it, but there was nothing in there that
would -- in what we were able to see, that would have helped us.

Q | actually am getting the minutes on that because | made a
record with regards to that so --

A That's fine. But when he’s saying that he didn't --

MR. KELLER: They never -- they never go to review it, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: No, no, | understand. And we had a hearing
on that. So, | wanted to -- we had -- | made a record with regards to that
-- what the parties did. So, | want to make sure that that's part of this so
it’s clear.

MR. KELLER: Thank you, Your Honor.

Well, he testified at the trial --

THE COURT: Mr. Keller, Mr. Keller --

MR. KELLER: -- we called him in specifically to testify.

THE COURT: All right. Hold on, hold on. You’'ll have an

opportunity to ask Mr. Frizzell any further questions to clarify these
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issues. But -- at the -- yeah, this was a -- Defendant’s motion for
production including potentially exculpatory evidence and the -- this took
place on February 22™, 2017. That Ms. Baraha [phonetic] advised
when this event number is inputted into the database regarding
bodycam information, there was nothing for this event number and the
State has complied with their obligation.

So Mr. Keller, there was no body camera footage that they
had access to because nothing was inputted into the database regarding
bodycam footage. So --

MR. KELLER: But -- the thing was though is that they --
because at that point, that it automatically erase -- that's why | showed
in open court -- because at like 30 days | told -- | had a article from Las
Vegas Review Journal how the bodycam footage automatically deletes
after 45 days of not being marked.

So | had said in open court, at about 30 days, that we need to
get this stuff and then they -- Frizzell and -- they never got it, so they
ended up getting deleted. That’s why there wasn’t nothing in that event
number for the bodycam for -- because they let it get deleted. But -- so
we had -- you let me call back the officer that wore the body camera
footage -- you let me call him back and he wasn’t even in court. We
waited until he came back and you let us talk to him and he said, yes, |
was wearing a bodycam, yes | was running it, and yes | did download it
to the thing, you know.

But then since the DA and Mr. Frizzell let it get -- they let it get

deleted and I'm in open court, | was -- | was getting the court minutes -- |
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was -- I'm in open court at 30 days, standing up in court saying that |
need that because it's going to be deleted at 45 days, because thatis a -
- that’s one of the most important things to my case, you know. And
that's -- | mean, that’s the whole point.

THE COURT: Mm-hmm.

MR. KELLER: You know, that's where this whole thing -- | got
20 to life.

THE COURT: Yup.

MR. KELLER: This whole thing, you know, because | couldn’t
get -- it's just frustrating, you know?

THE COURT: Okay. Mr. Keller --

MR. KELLER: That's one of the things -- they had all these
problems with Frizzell.

THE COURT: Mr. Keller, you hadn’t even had Mr. Frizzell by
that time. You were in -- by -- within 30 days, you were in a lower court
dealing with this --

MR. KELLER: Yeah, | had to --

THE COURT: Okay, but --

MR. KELLER: Yeah, that was when | had that -- that’s -- that
attorney that | had had that same investigator and he wasn’t -- and then
-- yeah, | didn’t get him, but | was in open court asking for it. | told
Frizzell about that and stuff. So --

THE COURT: Okay, well | understand what you’re saying that
you didn'’t get, but there wasn't any to have. | don’t see -- based on

what was presented previously that there was a prejudice to you
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